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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

X1 ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended January 2, 2010
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 001-33264

U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Chaerr)

Delaware 68-0623433
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)

17150 South Margay Avenue, Carson, CA 90746
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code(310) 735-0553
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dlie Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, $0.001 par value per shai The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
(NASDAQ Global Market)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tfie Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405c08#turities Act.  Yed No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes[ No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant éf filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti® or 15(d) of the Securities Excha
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordioch shorter period that the registrant was requaodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pasti@s. Yes[X] No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lisntted electronically and posted on its corpo¥absite, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted pumsto Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of tiapter) during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). YEb No OO

Indicate by a check mark if disclosure of delingudars pursuant to ltem 405 of Regulation S-Ka contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge]dfinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part 1l of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K1

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, noa-accelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company. See the definitions‘large accelerated file’ “accelerated file” and“smaller reporting compa” in Rule 12I-2 of the



Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated file( Accelerated filerO™ Non-accelerated fileid Smaller reporting companxl
(Do not check if a smalle
reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 2gb-Yes [ No

The aggregate market value of the common stocklhelibn-affiliates of the registrant as of July2809 was approximately $35,911,470
(based on the closing sales price of the regisgranimmon stock on that date). For the purposekisfcalculation, shares owned by officers,
directors and 10% stockholders known to the regigthave been deemed to be owned by affiliates détiermination of affiliate status is not
necessarily a conclusive determination for otheppses.

As of March 11, 2010, there were 29,961,721 shafrése registrant's common stock outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of our proxy statement for the 2010 Anriakting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement’§ mrcorporated by reference in
Part 11l hereof. Except with respect to informatgpecifically incorporated by reference in thisfAdk0-K, the Proxy Statement is not deemed
to be filed as a part hereof.
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Unless the context requires otherwise, as usddsmreport, the terms “U.S. Auto Parts,” the “Comypa “we,” “us” and “our” refer to U.S.
Auto Parts Network, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

U.S. Auto Part® , U.S. Auto Parts Network™, PadsT® , Partsbin™, Kool-Vue™ and Auto-Vend™ are ounited States trademarks. All
other trademarks and trade names appearing inegh@st are the property of their respective owr
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The statements included in this report, other thi@tements or characterizations of historical orremt fact, are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A o$twurities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Secsriiet”) and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended “Exchange Act”), and we intend that such forwaraking statements be subject to the safe harbors
created thereby. Any forward-looking statementtuithed herein are based on management’s beliefsaaadmptions and on information
currently available to management. We have attedjatédentify forward-looking statements by termshsas “anticipates,” “believes,”
“could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “shou Id,” “will,” “would”, “will likely
continue,” “will likely result” and similar expressns. These forward-looking statements include doeitnot limited to, statements regarding
future events, our future operating and financiedults, financial expectations, expected growth strategies, current business indicatc
capital needs, capital deployment, liquidity, cets, litigation, product offerings, customers, aisitions, competition and the status of our
facilities. Forwarc-looking statements, no matter where they occtinismdocument or in other statements attributabléhe Company involve
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and othetoiz that may cause our actual results, perforneaocachievements to be materially
different from any future results, performanceschievements expressed or implied by the forwaollihg statements. We discuss many of
these risks in greater detail under the headingsiRFactors” in Part I, Item 1A of this report. Givéhese uncertainties, you should not place
undue reliance on these forward-looking stateme¥st should read this report and the documentswieateference in this report and have
filed as exhibits to the report completely and vifite understanding that our actual future resulsyrbe materially different from what \
expect. Also, forward-looking statements representmanagement’s beliefs and assumptions only #seadate of this report. Except as
required by law, we assume no obligation to updla¢se forward-looking statements publicly, or talate the reasons actual results could
differ materially from those anticipated in theseward-looking statements, even if new informabesomes available in the future.

” o LI " ou ”ou ” ” o ” o ” i, ” i,

PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are one of the largest online providers of afteket auto parts, including body parts, enginéspand performance parts and
accessories. We principally sell our products, fified as stock keeping units (“SKUs"), to indivigiiconsumers through our network of
websites and online marketplaces. Our user-frienaisites provide customers with a comprehensikeetsen of approximately 975,000
SKUs with detailed product descriptions and phapps. We have developed a proprietary product datathat maps our SKUs to product
applications based on vehicle makes, models and.yea

Our online sales channel and relationships wittpBers enable us to eliminate several intermedsarnehe traditional auto parts supply
chain and offer a broad selection of SKUs. Addiin as an online retailer, we believe greatemecoies of scale can be achieved online than
in brick and mortar stores.

We were incorporated in 1995 as a distributor térafiarket auto parts and launched our first welisiB900. Since then, we have
continued to expand our online operations, increpie number of SKUs sold through our e-commeeateork, adding additional websites,
improving our Internet marketing proficiency, armmamencing sales on online marketplaces. In Oct2068, we acquired AutoMD.com for
the purpose of developing content and a user corityianeducate consumers on maintenance and sesk/ibeir vehicles. Our flagship
websites are located atvw.autopartswarehouse.com and www.partstrain.canmd our corporate website is locatesvatw.usautoparts.net

Our Products

We offer a broad selection of aftermarket autogahte frequently refine our product offering byrattucing new merchandise and
updating the existing product selection to offenare complete and relevant product line and to kenow-selling or obsolete SKUs. We
broadly classify our products into three categofiesly parts, engine parts, and performance patsacessories.
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Body Parts. The body parts category is primarily comprisegaits for the exterior of an automobile. Our partthis category are
typically replacement parts for original body pattat have been damaged as a result of a coll@itmrough general wear and tear. The
majority of these products are sold through oursiteb. In addition, we sell an extensive line ofrori products, including our own private-
label brand called Kool-Vue™, which are marketed sold as aftermarket replacement parts and asdegito existing parts.

Engine/Hard Parts The engine parts category is comprised of engimeponents and other mechanical and electricas pattich are
often referred to as hard parts. These parts serveplacement parts for existing engine partssaadjenerally used by professionals and do-it-
yourselfers for engine and mechanical maintenandeepair.

Performance Parts and Accessorie&/e offer performance versions of many parts gokiach of the above categories. Performance
and accessories generally consist of parts thatrerhthe performance of the automobile, upgradstiegifunctionality of a specific part or
improve the physical appearance or comfort of titeraobile.

Our Sales Channels
Our sales channels include the online channel lamdffline channel.

Online Sales ChannelOur online sales channel consists of our e-coroenelnannel and online marketplaces. Our e-comnuotraenel
includes a network of e-commerce websites, supgdnyeour call-center sales agents. Our e-commeéraerel generated approximately
1.4 million orders for the fifty-two weeks endeddary 2, 2010. We also sell our products througlmemnarketplaces, including third-party
auction sites and shopping portals, which provisivith access to additional consumer segmentsnidjerity of our online sales are to
individual consumers.

Offline Sales ChannelWe sell and deliver to collision repair shopotighout Southern California via our offline salésuwnel. We also
market our Kool-Vue™ products nationwide to autatpavholesale distributors.

Media Sales ChannelM/e sell advertising and sponsorship positionsumnescommerce websites to highlight vendor bramibcdfer
complimentary products and services that benefitagtomers. Advertising is targeted to specifictisas of the websites and can also be
targeted to specific users based on the vehictsdhive. Advertising partners primarily includerpaendors, national automotive aftermarket
brands, and automobile manufacturers.

Our Fulfillment Operations

We fulfill customer orders using two primary metkogl) stock-and-ship, where we take physical dglnof merchandise and store it in
one of our distribution centers until it is shippgeda customer, and (ii) drop-ship, where merchemdi shipped directly to customers from our
suppliers. We believe that the flexibility of fulfing orders using two different fulfillment methsa@llows us to offer a broader product
selection, helps optimize product inventory andagrtes our overall business profitability.

The selection of fulfilment methodology occurdfz time of order submission. When a customer stgoam order, our fulfillment syste
performs a check on the ordered item to deternifiitésiin stock at any of our distribution centeFailfillment teams in our distribution centers
then process orders for in-stock products. Ordmradn-stocked products are sent to our suppliedspaocessed via drop-ship.

Stock-and-Ship FulfillmentOur stock-andhip products are sourced primarily from manufaatiand other suppliers located in Asia
in the U.S. and are stored in one of our distrimutienters in Carson, California, Clarksville, Tessee, and Chesapeake, Virginia. All prod
received into our distribution centers are enténéal our inventory management systems, allowingpudosely monitor inventory availability.
We consider a number of factors in determining Wliiems to stock in our distribution centers, imthg which products can be purchased at a
meaningful discount to domestic prices for simitams, which products have historically sold inthigolumes, and which products may be out
of stock when we attempt to fulfill via drop-ship.

Drop-Ship Fulfillment We have developed relationships with several-0a8ed automobile parts distributors that opetst bwn
distribution centers and will deliver products ditg to our customers. We internally developed@ppietary distributor selection system, Auto-
Vend™, which allows us to electronically select tipl¢ vendors for a given order. Auto-Vend™ wilteahpt to first direct an order to one of
our warehouses. If the product is not in stock,0Adend™ will process the order to the next appmtperivendor based on customer location,
contractual agreements, and then service leveairist
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Suppliers

We source our products from foreign manufacturacsimporters located in Taiwan and China, and fkdu®. manufacturers and
distributors. We typically order stock-and-ship g¢wots from our Asian manufacturers and importecsfaom U.S. manufacturers or
distributors for our high demand U.S. manufactysestiucts. We drop-ship orders for low demand préslo@anufactured in the U.S. directly
from our manufacturers and distributors. Over time have increased the percentage of orders shipgesl and our inventory will likely
increase as a result. We generally place largeavelarders with these suppliers and, as a resujt,reweive volume discounts on certain
ordered products. Our domestic suppliers offeratlite-customer shipping, allowing us to save on fulfilimheosts and offer a broader select
of products. We have developed application progrargrimterfaces with several of these suppliers #flatv us to electronically transmit ord
and check inventory availability. We are a sigrfit customer for many of our drop-ship vendorstzenge long standing relationships and
contracts with many of these suppliers. Additiopadine of our drop-ship vendors provides 19.8%.uwoftotal product purchases.

Marketing

Our online marketing efforts are designed to attvagitors to our websites, convert visitors intarghasing customers and encourage
repeat purchases among our existing customer Bésese a variety of online marketing methods taettvisitors, including paid search
advertising, search engine optimization, affiliptegrams, e-mail marketing and inclusion in onkh@pping engines. To convert visitors into
paying customers, we periodically run in-site prsioms for discounted purchases. We seek to creass-selling opportunities by displaying
complementary and related products available fier theiloughout the purchasing process. We utilizess marketing techniques, including
targeted e-mails about specific vehicle promotidasncrease customer awareness of our products.

International Operations

We have established offshore operations in thagpiles. Our offshore operations allow us to acees®rkforce with the necessary
technical skills at a significantly lower cost themmparably experienced U.S.-based professionalsoffishore operations are responsible for a
majority of our website development, database mamagt, catalog management, and search engine ngrkethnologies. Our offshore
operations also house our call center, which isgrggad of over 800 employees.

In addition to our operations in the Philippine® ave a Canadian subsidiary to facilitate salesioproducts in Canada. We also ship
parts directly to Canada and through a freight &ming partner throughout the world. In 2009 wepbkd auto parts to over 160 different
countries.

Competition

The auto parts industry is competitive and higihgfented, with products distributed through miigtied and overlapping channels. We
compete with both online and offline retailers wdfter original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) anilemarket parts to either the do-it-
yourself “DIY”) or do-it-for-me (“DIFM”) customer segment€urrent or potential competitors include the foliog:

. national auto parts retailers such as Advance Raits, AutoZone, Napa Auto Parts, CarQue’Reilly Automotive and Pep Boy
. large online marketplaces such as Amazon.com dledssen eBay

. other online retailers

. local independent retailers or niche auto partsless; anc

. wholesale aftermarket auto parts distributors aschKQ Corporation

We believe the principal competitive factors in ouairket are helping customers easily find theitgaducating consumers on the set
and maintenance of their vehicles, maintainingappetary product catalog that maps individual p&otrelevant vehicle applications, broad
product selection and availability, price, knowledble customer service, and rapid order fulfillmemd delivery. We believe we compete
favorably on the basis of these factors. Howevanesof our competitors may be larger, have strobgand recognition or may have access to
greater financial, technical and marketing resasiarehave been operating longer than we have.
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Government Regulation

We are subject to federal and state consumer gimtdaws, including laws protecting the privacyoofstomer non-public information
and the handling of customer complaints and reguiatprohibiting unfair and deceptive trade pradicThe growth and demand for online
commerce has and may continue to result in moirggint consumer protection laws that impose aduificompliance burdens on online
companies. These laws may cover issues such aprisaey, spyware and the tracking of consumenwdigs, marketing e-mails and
communications, other advertising and promotiomatfices, money transfers, pricing, content andityuaf products and services, taxation,
electronic contracts and other communications afatrnation security. In addition, most states hpassed laws that prohibit or limit the us
aftermarket auto parts in collision repair work &mdequire enhanced disclosure or vehicle ownasent before using aftermarket auto par
such repair work and additional legislation of tkiisd may be introduced in the future.

There is also great uncertainty over whether or bristing laws governing issues such as propertyesghip, sales and other taxes,
auctions, libel and personal privacy apply to therdnet and commercial online services. These $sswgy take years to resolve. For example,
tax authorities in a number of states, as well @prgressional advisory commission, are curremyewing the appropriate tax treatment of
companies engaged in online commerce, and newtatategulations may subject us to additional states and income taxes. New legislation
or regulation, the application of laws and reguwlasi from jurisdictions whose laws do not curremibply to our business or the application of
existing laws and regulations to the Internet ammmercial online services could result in significadditional taxes or regulatory restrictions
on our business. These taxes or restrictions duaNe an adverse effect on our cash flows and sesfitiperations. Furthermore, there is a
possibility that we may be subject to significanes or other payments for any past failures toplgrwith these requirements.

Environmental

We are subject to environmental regulation asféica$ certain of the products we sell. For insta@adifornia currently only allows
catalytic converters approved by the state to lwsithin the state and, on March 4, 2010, the Camypmet with the California Air Resources
Board (“CARB”) to discuss alleged sales of catalytbnverters into California by the Company anddtipiarty suppliers that are not compliant
with California regulations. CARB informed the Coamy that penalties may be assessed with regamyta@-compliant sales; discussions
are ongoing, and any penalties are not estimalilésatime. There has been an indication thateghirtother states may be pursuing the
enactment of similar regulations. In addition, & expanded our product lines, we may be subjemtditional environmental regulation.

Employees

As of February 27, 2010, we had 231 employeesdrithited States and 791 employees in the Philigdioiea total of 1,022 employees.
None of our employees are represented by a laionuand we have never experienced a work stopj

Available Information

Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reportd=orm 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and aimemmts to those reports are
available free of charge on the Investor Relatgextion of our corporate website locatedvatw.usautoparts.nets soon as reasonably
practicable after such reports are electronicaliy fwith, or furnished to, the Securities and Exogge Commission (“SEC”). The inclusion of
our website address in this report does not inctrdacorporate by reference into this report arfgrimation on our website.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business is subject to a number of risks, sofimehich are discussed below. Other risks are pregbelsewhere in this report and in
the information incorporated by reference into ttéport. You should consider carefully the follogviisks in addition to the other information
contained in this report and our other filings witie SEC, including our subsequent reports on Fdt€ and 8-K, and any amendments
thereto, before deciding to buy, sell or hold oamenon stock. The risks and uncertainties desciigdolv are not the only ones we face.
Additional risks and uncertainties not presentlpkm to us or that we currently deem immaterial raksp affect our business. If any of th:
known or unknown risks or uncertainties actuallgus with material adverse effects on us, our bessnfinancial condition, results of
operations and/or liquidity could be seriously hawun In that event, the market price for our comrsimtk will likely decline and you may lose
all or part of your investment.
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Risks Related To Our Business

Purchasers of aftermarket auto parts may not choaseshop online, which would prevent us from acdmig new customers who ai
necessary to the growth of our business.

The online market for aftermarket auto parts is sveloped than the online market for many otheimess and consumer products, and
currently represents only a small part. Our suceébslepend in part on our ability to attract neawstomers and to convert customers who |
historically purchased auto parts through tradalaetail and wholesale operations. Furthermoremag have to incur significantly higher and
more sustained advertising and marketing expereditar may need to price our products more comypeljtthan we currently anticipate in
order to attract additional online consumers anmt/ed them into purchasing customers. Specificdiacthat could prevent prospective
customers from purchasing from us include:

. concerns about buying auto parts without -to-face interaction with sales personr

. the inability to physically handle, examine and game products

. delivery time associated with Internet orde

. concerns about the security of online transactésthe privacy of personal informatic
. delayed shipments or shipments of incorrect or dgdgroducts

. increased shipping costs; a

. the inconvenience associated with returning or arghng items purchased onlir

If the online market for auto parts does not gaitdespread acceptance, our sales may decline artzlsimess and financial results may
suffer.

We depend on search engines and other online sositoeattract visitors to our websites, and if weeamable to attract these visitors and
convert them into customers in a cost-effective man, our business and results of operations will barmed.

Our success depends on our ability to attract erdionsumers to our websites and convert them irgtomers in a cost-effective manner.
We are significantly dependent upon search engsfespping comparison sites and other online sodoczesur website traffic. We are includ
in search results as a result of both paid se#&tihds, where we purchase specific search teratsathl result in the inclusion of our listing,
and algorithmic searches that depend upon thelssaleccontent on our sites. Algorithmic listingsieat be purchased and instead are
determined and displayed solely by a set of forsuldlized by the search engine. Search enginegpsing comparison sites and other online
sources revise their algorithms from time to timemn attempt to optimize their search resultsné or more of the search engines, shopping
comparison sites or other online sources on whiehiely for website traffic were to modify its geabmethodology for how it displays or
selects our websites, it could result in fewer comars clicking through to our websites, and ouarficial results could be adversely affected.
We operate a multiple website platform that gemgirdlows us to provide multiple search resultsdqguarticular algorithmic search. If the
search engines were to limit our display resulta single result or entirely eliminate our reséitsn the algorithmic search, our website traffic
would significantly decrease and our business wbeldnhaterially harmed. If any free search enginghopping comparison site on which we
rely begins charging fees for listing or placementf one or more of the search engines, shoppamparison sites and other online sources on
which we rely for purchased listings, modifies @mbinates its relationship with us, our expensesdcose, we could lose customers and traffic
to our websites could decrease. In addition, oacass in attracting visitors who convert to custanvell depend in part upon our ability to
identify and purchase relevant search terms, peorgtevant content on our sites, and effectivelgdbour other marketing programs such as e-
mail campaigns and affiliate programs. If we arahla to attract visitors to our websites and contyerm to customers in a cost-effective
manner, then our sales may decline and our busaresfinancial results may be harmed.
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Future acquisitions could disrupt our business amarm our financial condition.

As part of our growth strategy, we expect that vileselectively pursue acquisitions of businesseshnologies or services in order to
expand our capabilities, enter new markets or asgeour market share. Integrating any newly acduitsinesses’ websites, technologies or
services is likely to be expensive and time consgmiror example, our acquisition of All OEM Patts;., the Partsbin.com, Inc., and other
affiliated companies (collectively “Partsbin”), téted in significant costs, including a materiapiarment charge, a write-down of goodwill
associated with the acquisition, and a number aflehges, including retaining employees of the &egucompany, integrating our order
processing and credit processing, integrating ooayct pricing strategy, and integrating the dieeiechnologies and differing e-commerce
platforms and accounting systems used by each aoynffave are unable to successfully complete titiegration of acquisitions, we may not
realize the anticipated synergies from such actipisiand our business and results of operationklcguffer. To finance any future
acquisitions, it may also be necessary for usiseradditional capital through public or privateancings or to obtain bank financing.
Additional funds may not be available on terms tratfavorable to us, and, in the case of equiigricings, would result in dilution to our
stockholders. Future acquisitions by us could edsalt in large and immediate write-offs, assunptid debt and unforeseen liabilities and
significant adverse accounting charges, any of whauld substantially harm our business, finanogaidition and results of operations.

If we are unable to manage the challenges assodatéth our international operations, the growth afur business could be limited and o
business could suffer.

We maintain business operations in the United Statel the Philippines. These international opematinclude development and
maintenance of our websites, Internet marketinggrerel, and sales and customer support servicesldd@perate a Canadian subsidiary to
facilitate sales in Canada. We are subject to abaurof risks and challenges that specifically eetatour international operations. Our
international operations may not be successfukifane unable to meet and overcome these challenbes) could limit the growth of our
business and may have an adverse effect on ourdsgsand operating results. These risks and cigaeinclude:

. difficulties and costs of staffing and managingefgn operations

. restrictions imposed by local labor practices awasl on our business and operatic

. exposure to different business practices and ktgaldards

. unexpected changes in regulatory requirem

. the imposition of government controls and restwics;

. political, social and economic instability and tiek of war, terrorist activities or other interiwatal incidents
. the failure of telecommunications and connectiuifyastructure

. natural disasters and public health emergen

. potentially adverse tax consequenc

. the failure of local laws to provide a sufficierggtee of protection against infringement of oueliettual property; an
. fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates r@tative weakness in the U.S. Doll

We are dependent upon relationships with supplierdaiwan, China and the United States for the vasgajority of our products.

We acquire substantially all of our products froramafacturers and distributors located in Taiwarnin€land the United States. Our top
ten suppliers represented approximately 64% otatat product purchases during the fiscal year dridauary 2, 2010. We do not have any
long-term contracts or exclusive agreements withforeign suppliers that would ensure our abildyatquire the types and quantities of
products we desire at acceptable prices and melyimanner. In addition, our ability to acquir@gucts from our suppliers in amounts and on
terms acceptable to us is dependent upon a nurhfestors that could affect our suppliers and whacé beyond our control. For example,
financial or operational difficulties that someafr suppliers may face could result in an incréagbe cost of the products we purchase from
them. In addition, the increasing consolidation agrauto parts suppliers may disrupt or end outicglship with some suppliers, result in
product shortages and/or lead to less competitiol) @onsequently, higher prices.

In addition, because many of our suppliers areidetsf the United States, additional factors cantdrrupt our relationships or affect our
ability to acquire the necessary products on aetdpterms, including:

. political, social and economic instability and tiek of war or other international incidents in Asir abroad

. fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates thay increase our cost of produc

. tariffs and protectionist laws and business prastibat favor local business:

. difficulties in complying with import and exportie, regulatory requirements and restrictions;

. natural disasters and public health emergen
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If we do not maintain our relationships with ouistixg suppliers or develop relationships with reyppliers on acceptable commercial
terms, we may not be able to continue to offeraatirselection of merchandise at competitive praceh as a result, we could lose customers
and our sales could decline.

If we do not maintain our relationships with ouisting suppliers or develop relationships with reyppliers on acceptable commercial
terms, we may not be able to continue to offeraatirselection of merchandise at competitive praceh as a result, we could lose customers
and our sales could decline.

We are dependent upon third parties for distributi@and fulfillment operations with respect to many our products.

For a number of the products that we sell, we aurtsothe distribution and fulfillment operation aan@ dependent on our distributors to
manage inventory, process orders and distributsetipooducts to our customers in a timely mannarthefifty-two weeks ended January 2,
2010, our product purchases from a single suppigresented 19.8% of our total product purcha$ege do not maintain our existing
relationships with this supplier and our otherrilisttors on acceptable commercial terms, we wilchto obtain other suppliers and may not be
able to continue to offer a broad selection of hardlise at competitive prices, and our sales mesedse.

In addition, because we outsource to distributararaber of these traditional retail functions rigigtto those products, we have limited
control over how and when orders are fulfilled. ®eo have limited control over the products thatdistributors purchase or keep in stock.
Our distributors may not accurately forecast trapcts that will be in high demand or they maycdte popular products to other resellers,
resulting in the unavailability of certain produéts delivery to our customers. Any inability tofef a broad array of products at competitive
prices and any failure to deliver those productsuocustomers in a timely and accurate manneraaayage our reputation and brand and
could cause us to lose customers.

We depend on third-party delivery services to daligur products to our customers on a timely anchetstent basis, and any deterioration in
our relationship with any one of these third parier increases in the fees that they charge couédrh our reputation and adversely affect
our business and financial condition.

We rely on third parties for the shipment of oungurcts and we cannot be sure that these relatsshil continue on terms favorable to
us, or at all. Shipping costs have increased fiom to time, and may continue to increase, whialiccbarm our business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operations by increasingamsts of doing business and resulting in redgeeds margins. In addition, if our
relationships with these third parties are terng@dair impaired, or if these third parties are ueabldeliver products for us, whether due to
labor shortage, slow down or stoppage, deterigydtirancial or business condition, responses totist attacks or for any other reason, we
would be required to use alternative carrierslierghipment of products to our customers. Changamgers could have a negative effect on
business and operating results due to reducedlitistif order status and package tracking and yiela order processing and product delivery,
and we may be unable to engage alternative caoieestimely basis, upon terms favorable to usteatl.

If commodity prices such as fuel, plastic and steehtinue to increase, our margins may shrin

Our third party delivery services have increasedl $urcharges from time to time, and such increasgatively impact our margins, as
we are generally unable to pass all of these disstly to consumers. Increasing prices in the gonent materials for the parts we sell may
impact the availability, the quality and the prafeour products, as suppliers search for altereatte existing materials and as they increase the
prices they charge. We cannot ensure that we cavee all the increased costs through price ine@gasur suppliers may not continue to
provide the consistent quality of product as theyreubstitute lower cost materials to maintainipgdevels, all of which may have a negative
impact on our business and results of operations.
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If our fulfillment operations are interrupted for ay significant period of time or are not sufficierib accommodate increased demand, «
sales would decline and our reputation could be hsed.

Our success depends on our ability to successfedlgive and fulfill orders and to promptly delivar products to our customers. The
majority of orders for our auto body parts prodwars filled from our inventory in our distributianters, where all our inventory managemn
packaging, labeling and product return processeparformed. Increased demand and other considesatiay require us to expand our
distribution centers or transfer our fulfillmenterptions to larger facilities in the future.

Our distribution centers are susceptible to danmageterruption from human error, fire, flood, pawess, telecommunications failures,
terrorist attacks, acts of war, break-ins, eartkgaand similar events. We do not currently mamkeick-up power systems at our fulfillment
centers. We do not presently have a formal disastavery plan and our business interruption instceanay be insufficient to compensate us
for losses that may occur in the event operatidomsigafulfilment center are interrupted. Any intgptions in our fulfillment operations for any
significant period of time, including interruptionssulting from the expansion of our existing fitieis or the transfer of operations to a new
facility, could damage our reputation and brand sunostantially harm our business and results ofadjpes and alternate arrangements may
increase the cost of fulfilment. In addition, iEvdo not successfully expand our fulfillment captés in response to increases in demand, we
may not be able to substantially increase our aless

We rely on bandwidth and data center providers asttier third parties to provide products to our costers, and any failure or interruption
in the services provided by these third parties Icbdisrupt our business and cause us to lose cusosn

We rely on third-party vendors, including data egretnd bandwidth providers. Any disruption in tlework access or co-location
services, which are the services that house anddadnternet access to our servers, provided bgethird-party providers or any failure of
these third-party providers to handle current ghki volumes of use could significantly harm ousibass. Any financial or other difficulties
our providers face may have negative effects orbasmess, the nature and extent of which we cammeatict. We exercise little control over
these third-party vendors, which increases ourenalbility to problems with the services they pravitVe also license technology and related
databases from third parties to facilitate elemehtsur e-commerce platform. We have experiencebexipect to continue to experience
interruptions and delays in service and availgbftir these elements. Any errors, failures, intptians or delays experienced in connection
with these third-party technologies could negagiveipact our relationship with our customers andeaslely affect our business.

Our systems also heavily depend on the availahifitylectricity, which also comes from third-papsoviders. If we were to experience a
major power outage, we would have to rely on baglgenerators. These back-up generators may noateparoperly through a major power
outage, and their fuel supply could also be inadegiduring a major power outage. Information systeath as ours may be disrupted by even
brief power outages, or by the fluctuations in povesulting from switches to and from backup getwega This could disrupt our business and
cause us to lose customers.
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We face intense competition and operate in an inttyswith limited barriers to entry, and some of ogompetitors may have greater
resources than us and may be better positionedapitalize on the growing e-commerce auto parts metrk

The auto parts industry is competitive and highégmented, with products distributed through miigtied and overlapping channels. We
compete with both online and offline retailers wifter OEM and aftermarket auto parts to eitherdbet-yourself or do-it-for-me customer
segments. Current or potential competitors inclingefollowing:

. national auto parts retailers such as Advance Raits, AutoZone, Napa Auto Parts, CarQue’Reilly Automotive and Pep Boy
. large online marketplaces such as Amazon.com aagl;

. other online retailers

. local independent retailers or niche auto part;entetailers; an

. wholesale aftermarket auto parts distributors sagchKQ Corporation

Barriers to entry are low, and current and new cetitqrs can launch websites at a relatively lowt.celany of our current and potential
offline competitors have longer operating histgriasger customer bases, greater brand recogratidrsignificantly greater financial,
marketing, technical, management and other resstihem we do. In addition, some of our competitarge used and may continue to use
aggressive pricing tactics and devote substantiatiye financial resources to website and systemldpment than we do. We expect that
competition will further intensify in the future &sternet use and online commerce continue to growdwide. Increased competition may
result in reduced sales, lower operating margediiced profitability, loss of market share and distied brand recognition.

We would also experience significant competitivegsure if any of our suppliers were to sell theddpicts directly to customers. Since
our suppliers have access to merchandise at vergadsts, they could sell products at lower prices maintain higher gross margins on their
product sales than we can. In this event, our atiaed potential customers may decide to purchasetly from these suppliers. Increased
competition from any supplier capable of maintagnimgh sales volumes and acquiring products atidgsiees than us could significantly
reduce our market share and adversely impact nanéial results.

If we falil to offer a broad selection of products aompetitive prices to meet our custon” demands, our revenue could decline.

In order to expand our business, we must succégsfifiér, on a continuous basis, a broad seleatibauto parts that meet the needs of
our customers. Our auto parts are used by consuoreasvariety of purposes, including repair, pemfiance, improved aesthetics and
functionality. In addition, to be successful, owoguct offerings must be broad and deep in scapapetitively priced, well-made, innovative
and attractive to a wide range of consumers. Waagpredict with certainty that we will be successh offering products that meet all of
these requirements. If our product offerings faisatisfy our customers’ requirements or resporgzhémges in customer preferences, our
revenue could decline.

Challenges by Original Equipment Manufacturers (“Ofs”) to the validity of the aftermarket auto pariadustry and claims of intellectual
property infringement could adversely affect our &iness and the viability of the aftermarket autorfmindustry.

Original equipment manufacturers have attemptadséoclaims of intellectual property infringemenaigt manufacturers and
distributors of aftermarket products to restriceiminate the sale of aftermarket products thatthe subject of the claims. The OEMs have
brought such claims in federal court and with thretéd States International Trade Commission. Weelraceived in the past, and we anticig
we may in the future receive, communications afigghat certain products we sell infringe the pttecopyrights, trademarks and trade names
or other intellectual property rights of OEMs ohet third parties. For instance, after the 3 ahdlfyears of litigation and related costs and
expenses, on April 16, 2009, we entered into dese¢int agreement with Ford Motor Company and Fdabh&@ Technologies, LLC that ended
the two pending legal actions that were initiatgd-brd against us. For additional information, Blete 12 — Commitments and Contingencies
of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The United States Patent and Trademark Office dscioidicate that OEMs are seeking and obtainingerdesign patents then they have
in the past. To the extent that the OEMs are sséalesith intellectual property infringement claimse could be restricted or prohibited from
selling certain aftermarket products which coulgiéhan adverse effect on our business. Infringeraims could also result in increased costs
of doing business arising from increased legal agps, adverse judgments or settlements or changes business practices required to settle
such claims or satisfy any judgments. Litigatiomldaresult in interpretations of the law that reguis to change our business practices or
otherwise increase our costs and harm our busiésslo not maintain insurance coverage to covetythes of claims that could be asserte
a successful claim were brought against us, itcceMpose us to significant liability.
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If we are unable to protect our intellectual proptgrrights, our reputation and brand could be impaid and we could lose custome

We regard our trademarks, trade secrets and simikltectual property as important to our succ#gs.rely on trademark and copyright
law, and trade secret protection, and confidemyialnd/or license agreements with employees, custarpartners and others to protect our
proprietary rights. We cannot be certain that weehtaken adequate steps to protect our proprigiginys, especially in countries where the
laws may not protect our rights as fully as in théted States. In addition, our proprietary righiay be infringed or misappropriated, and we
could be required to incur significant expensegraserve them. For instance, on June 25, 2009iledked lawsuit in United States District
Court, Central District of California against P&tek LLC, its shareholders and several of its eygae (“Defendant”), alleging (among other
things), misappropriation of trade secrets, brezdatontract and unfair competition. We are requeestioth monetary and injunctive relief. The
outcome of such litigation is uncertain, and thst@j prosecuting the litigation may have an advémrgpact on our earnings. We have common
law trademarks, as well as pending federal trademeagistrations for several marks and two registenarks. Even if we obtain approval of
such pending registrations, the resulting registnatmay not adequately cover our inventions otgmtaus against infringement by others.
Effective trademark, service mark, copyright, paterd trade secret protection may not be avail@bésery country in which our products and
services may be made available online. We als@ntlyrown or control a number of Internet domaimes, includingvww.usautoparts.net
www.autopartswarehouse.com, and www.partstrain.@md,have invested time and money in the purchaderafin names and other
intellectual property, which may be impaired if wannot protect such intellectual property. We maybable to protect these domaames ¢
acquire or maintain relevant domain names in thieedrStates and in other countries. If we are bte &0 protect our trademarks, domain
names or other intellectual property, we may exgrexe difficulties in achieving and maintaining kaecognition and customer loyalty.

If our product catalog database is stolen, misappriated or damaged, or if a competitor is able t@ate a substantially similar catalo
without infringing our rights, then we may lose aimportant competitive advantage.

We have invested significant resources and timeutidl and maintain our product catalog, which ismtened in the form of an electrol
database, which maps SKUs to relevant productegtpins based on vehicle makes, models and yeardélieve that our product catalog
provides us with an important competitive advantiageoth driving traffic to our websites and cortugg that traffic to revenue by enabling
customers to quickly locate the products they nregqiWe cannot assure you that we will be able ¢dget our product catalog from
unauthorized copying or theft or that our prodwtaéog will continue to operate adequately, withany technological challenges. In addition,
it is possible that a competitor could develop talog or database that is similar to or more cotmpngive than ours, without infringing our
rights. In the event our product catalog is damaged stolen, copied or otherwise replicated tmpete with us, whether lawfully or not, we
may lose an important competitive advantage anduosiness could be harmed.

Our e-commerce system is dependent on open-sowftevare, which exposes us to uncertainty and potehtiability.

We utilize open-source software such as Linux, ApadlySQL, PHP, Fedora and Perl throughout our preperties and supporting
infrastructure. Open-source software is maintaiged upgraded by a general community of softwareldg@ers under various open-source
licenses, including the GNU General Public Lice(i§&&PL"). These developers are under no obligatmmaintain, enhance or provide any
fixes or updates to this software in the futuredidnally, under the terms of the GPL and othegrogource licenses, we may be forced to
release to the public source-code internally dgpedidby us pursuant to such licenses. Furthermioaayiof these developers contribute any
code of others to any of the software that we wsemay be exposed to claims and liability for ileual property infringement. A number of
lawsuits are currently pending against third partieer the ownership rights to the various comptmetthin some open-source software that
we use. If the outcome of these lawsuits is unfabiar, we may be held liable for intellectual prapénfringement based on our use of these
open-source software components. We may also beddo implement changes to the code-base fostfigiare or replace this software with
internally developed or commercially licensed saitev

We face exposure to product liability lawsuits.

The automotive industry in general has been subjeatiarge number of product liability claims doehe nature of personal injuries that
result from car accidents or malfunctions. As drittigtor of auto parts, including parts obtaineei®eas, we could be held liable for the injury
or damage caused if the products we sell are degeat malfunction. While we carry insurance agapreduct liability claims, if the damages
in any given action were high or we were subjecattdtiple lawsuits, the damages and costs couléex¢he limits of our insurance coverage.
If we were required to pay substantial damagesrasut of these lawsuits, it may seriously harmlmusiness and financial condition. Even
defending against unsuccessful claims could casige incur significant expenses and result in @idivon of management’s attention. In
addition, even if the money damages themselvesalidause substantial harm to our business, thageto our reputation and the brands
offered on our websites could adversely affectfature reputation and our brand, and could resudt decline in our net sales and profitability.
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We rely on key personnel and may need additionatpanel for the success and growth of our business.

Our business is largely dependent on the persdfmateand abilities of highly skilled executivechnical, managerial, merchandising,
marketing, and call center personnel. Competit@rstich personnel is intense, and we cannot agsurthat we will be successful in attract
and retaining such personnel. The loss of any keyl@yee or our inability to attract or retain otlyeralified employees could harm our
business and results of operations.

System failures, including failures due to naturdisasters or other catastrophic events, could preveccess to our websites, which col
reduce our net sales and harm our reputation.

Our sales would decline and we could lose exigtingotential customers if they are not able to asa@air websites or if our websites,
transactions processing systems or network infresire do not perform to our customers’ satisfactiny Internet network interruptions or
problems with our websites could:

. prevent customers from accessing our webs

. reduce our ability to fulfill orders or bill custars;
. reduce the number of products that we ¢

. cause customer dissatisfaction

. damage our brand and reputati

We have experienced brief computer system inteionptin the past, and we believe they will contitmeccur from time to time in the
future. Our systems and operations are also vdteta damage or interruption from a number of sesyincluding a natural disaster or other
catastrophic event such as an earthquake, typlotanic eruption, fire, flood, terrorist attackymoputer viruses, power loss,
telecommunications failure, physical and electrdmigak-ins and other similar events. For example headquarters and the majority of our
infrastructure, including some of our servers,laoated in Southern California, a seismically agtiggion. We also maintain offshore and
outsourced operations in the Philippines, an drathas been subjected to a typhoon and a voleanjtion in the past. In addition, California
has in the past experienced power outages as laoéBmited electrical power supplies and duedaent fires in the southern part of the state.
Such outages, natural disasters and similar eveaysrecur in the future and could disrupt the of@neof our business. Our technology
infrastructure is also vulnerable to computer \@sjphysical or electronic break-ins and similaruitions. Although the critical portions of
our systems are redundant and backup copies argaimaid offsite, not all of our systems and da&afally redundant. We do not presently
have a formal disaster recovery plan in effect imag not have sufficient insurance for losses thay wccur from natural disasters or
catastrophic events. Any substantial disruptionwftechnology infrastructure could cause inteiinms or delays in our business and loss of
data or render us unable to accept and fulfill@ustr orders or operate our websites in a timelyrmmagror at all.

Risks Related To Our Common Stock
Our stock price has been and may continue to beatit#, which may result in losses to our stockhotde

The market prices of technology and e-commerce emieg generally have been extremely volatile ané hacently experienced sharp
share price and trading volume changes. The trgalilcg of our common stock is likely to be volatiied could fluctuate widely in response to,
among other things, the risk factors describedhim teport and other factors beyond our controhsagfluctuations in the operations or
valuations of companies perceived by investorsetadmparable to us, our ability to meet analystpeetations, or conditions or trends in the
Internet or auto parts industries.

Since the completion of our initial public offeriig February 2007, the trading price of our comretatk has been volatile, declining
from a high of $12.61 per share to a low per sb&fl.00. We have also experienced significanttflations in the trading volume of our
common stock. General economic and political camakt unrelated to our performance may also adveedédct the price of our common
stock. In the past, following periods of volatility the market price of a public company’s secesitisecurities class action litigation has often
been initiated. Due to the inherent uncertaintfdgigation, we cannot predict the ultimate outo®iwf any such litigation if it were initiated.
The initiation of any such litigation or an unfaabte result could have a material adverse effectusrfinancial condition and results of
operation.
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Our executive officers and directors own a signgiat percentage of our stock.

As of January 2, 2010, our executive officers ainélotiors and entities that are affiliated with theemeficially owned in the aggregate
approximately 46.6% of our outstanding shares aimon stock. This significant concentration of shammership may adversely affect the
trading price for our common stock because invesiften perceive disadvantages in owning stoclomganies with controlling stockholders.
Also, these stockholders, acting together, wilkbke to control our management and affairs andarsatequiring stockholder approval
including the election of our entire Board of Dit@s and certain significant corporate actions sagmergers, consolidations or the sale of
substantially all of our assets. As a result, taiscentration of ownership could delay, defer @vpnt others from initiating a potential merger,
takeover or other change in our control, evendkthactions would benefit our other stockholdedsien

Our future operating results may fluctuate, whictoald adversely affect the market price of our commstock.

We expect that our revenue and operating resultsevitinue to fluctuate from quarter to quarteeda various factors, many of which
are beyond our control. If our quarterly revenu@perating results fall below the expectationswkstors or securities analysts, the price of
our common stock could significantly decline. Thetbrs that could cause our operating results ntirnee to fluctuate include, but are not
limited to:

. fluctuations in the demand for aftermarket autds:
. price competition on the Internet or among offlie&ailers for auto part:
. our ability to attract visitors to our websites armhvert those visitors into custome

. our ability to maintain and expand our supplier digdribution relationships without significant gei increases or reduced service
levels;

. the effects of seasonality on the demand for oodyxcts;

. our ability to accurately forecast demand for otaduicts, price our products at market rates andhtaiai appropriate inventol
levels;

. our ability to build and maintain customer loyal

. infringement actions that could impact the viapitif the auto parts aftermarket or portions ther
. the success of our bre-building and marketing campaigr

. our ability to accurately project our future revespearnings, and results of operatic

. government regulations related to use of the letieior commerce, including the application of exigttax regulations to Internet
commerce and changes in tax regulatic

. technical difficulties, system downtime or Interedbwnouts

. the amount and timing of operating costs and chgigaenditures relating to expansion of our busnpeperations an
infrastructure; an

. the impact of adverse economic conditions on retdés, in genere

If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal control over financial reporting or comply witlsection 404 of the Sarban-Oxley Act o
2002, we may not be able to accurately report dnafcial results or prevent fraud, and our stockipe could decline.

While management has concluded that our internarels over financial reporting were effective dslanuary 2, 2010, we have in the
past, and could in the future, have a material wes& or significant deficiency in our control ofieancial reporting or fail to comply with
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.dffail to properly maintain an effective systemraérnal control over financial reporting, it
could impact our ability to prevent fraud or toussour financial statements in a timely manner ginasents fairly our financial condition and
results of operations. The existence of any suficidacies or weaknesses, even if cured, may &lad to the loss of investor confidence in the
reliability of our financial statements, could haowr business and negatively impact the tradingepof our common stock. Such deficiencies
or material weaknesses may also subject us to Isygwestigations and other penalties.

12



Table of Contents

Our charter documents could deter a takeover effavhich could inhibit your ability to receive an ggiisition premium for your shares.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation amdaws could make it more difficult for a third pato acquire us, even if doing so wol
be beneficial to our stockholders. Such provisioctude the following:

. our Board of Directors are authorized, without petockholder approval, to create and issue predestock which could be used to
implement an-takeover devices

. advance notice is required for director nominationfor proposals that can be acted upon at stddehmeetings

. our Board of Directors is classified such that albtmembers of our board are elected at one tinlgtwmay make it more difficu
for a person who acquires control of a majoritypof outstanding voting stock to replace all or gamty of our directors

. stockholder action by written consent is prohibiéedept with regards to an action that has beeroapg by the boarc

. special meetings of the stockholders are permitidze called only by the chairman of our Board @kbtors, our chief executi
officer or by a majority of our Board of Directol

. stockholders are not be permitted to cumulate thais for the election of directors; a

. stockholders are permitted to amend certain prongsdf our bylaws only upon receiving at least266 %/ of the votes entitled to |
cast by holders of all outstanding shares thenledtio vote generally in the election of directorgting together as a single cla

We do not intend to pay dividends on our commonc&to

We currently intend to retain any future earningd do not expect to pay any cash dividends on apital stock for the foreseeable
future.

General Market and Industry Risk

Economic conditions have had, and may continue taMe an adverse effect on the demand for aftermardeto parts and could adverse
affect our sales and operating results.

We sell aftermarket auto parts consisting of baaly @ngine parts used for repair and maintenancrpence parts used to enhance
performance or improve aesthetics and accesshidtdncrease functionality or enhance a vehicle&dudres. Demand for our products has been
and may continue to be adversely affected by géeemomic conditions. In declining economies, coners often defer regular vehicle
maintenance and may forego purchases of nonedsestiarmance and accessories products, whichesuitrin a decrease in demand for auto
parts in general. Consumers also defer purchasssvof/ehicles, which immediately impacts performeaparts and accessories, which are
generally purchased in the first six months of higle’s lifespan. In addition, during economic ddawms some competitors may become more
aggressive in their pricing practices, which woattversely impact our gross margin and could caarge Ifluctuations in our stock price.
Certain suppliers may exit the industry which mmapact our ability to procure parts and may advgreapact gross margin as the remaining
suppliers increase prices to take advantage ofdthompetition.

Vehicle miles driven have decreased and may corginol decrease, resulting in a decline in the demdadauto parts, which has negatively
affected our revenues and results of operations.

We and our industry depend on the number of velmidles driven. Decreased miles driven reduce thmber of accidents and
corresponding demand for crash parts, and redecedlar and tear on vehicles with a correspondidgatéon in demand for vehicle repairs
and replacement or hard parts, all of which maycedur revenues and adversely impact our resiuttparations.
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The success of our business depends on the contirgrewth of the Internet as a retail marketplace éithe related expansion of the
Internet infrastructure.

Our future success depends upon the continued alebspread acceptance and adoption of the Intesngtvahicle to purchase products.
If customers or manufacturers are unwilling to theelnternet to conduct business and exchangeniaion, our business will fail. The
commercial acceptance and use of the Internet magamtinue to develop at historical rates, or maydevelop as quickly as we expect. The
growth of the Internet, and in turn the growth af business, may be inhibited by concerns ovemggivand security, including concerns
regarding “viruses” and “worms,” reliability issuassing from outages or damage to Internet infuastire, delays in development or adoption
of new standards and protocols to handle the desnahiticreased Internet activity, decreased ado#igsi increased government regulation,
and taxation of Internet activity. In addition, darsiness growth may be adversely affected if tierhet infrastructure does not keep pace with
the growing Internet activity and is unable to supphe demands placed upon it, or if there is @y in the development of enabling
technologies and performance improvements.

Negative conditions in the global credit markets ynianpair the liquidity of a portion of our investmgs portfolio, and adversely affect ot
results of operations and access to financing.

Our investment securities consist of high-graddiancate preferred securities (“ARPS”). As of Janu2, 2010, our long-term
marketable securities were comprised of $4.4 nnil{joar value) of high-grade (AAA rated) ARPS isspeidharily by closed end funds that
primarily hold debt obligations from municipalitieBhe recent negative conditions in the global itn@@rkets have prevented some investors
from liquidating their holdings, including their ldings of ARPS. In response to the credit situatior-ebruary 2008, we instructed our
investment advisor to liquidate all our investmentslose end funds and move these funds into mamaket investments but there was
insufficient demand at auction for our remainingrfbigh-grade ARPS, representing approximately #7ilBon at that time. As a result, these
affected securities currently are not liquid, aadébeen reclassified as long-term investmentsthieoperiod May 19, 2009 through January 2,
2010, an additional $2.2 million of our investmeimt#A\RPS were redeemed but we do not know when iédave access to the capital in th
remaining investments. In the event we need tosactte funds that are in an illiquid state, we wilt be able to do so without a loss of
principal or until a future auction on these inveshts is successful, the securities are redeem#ukeligsuer or a secondary market emerges. If
we cannot readily access these funds, we may léreelcto borrow funds or issue additional debtauity securities to meet our capital
requirements. As of January 2, 2010, managememiwted that these remaining investments were iragand has recorded an impairment
charge to other comprehensive income totaling $ollion. Management is not sure that these inveatswill not be settled in the short term,
although the market for these investments is ptgsancertain. If the credit ratings of the secuifisuers deteriorate and any decline in market
value is determined to be other-than-temporarywaeld be required to adjust the carrying valuehefinvestment through an additional
impairment charge.

We may be subject to liability for sales and othiaxes and penalties, which could have an adverdeafon our business.

We currently collect sales or other similar taxaly@n the shipment of goods to the states of Galif, New Jersey, Kansas and
Tennessee. The U.S. Supreme Court has ruled thdbxewhose only connection with customers in e ssaby common carrier or the U.S.
mail are free from state-imposed duties to coldabes and use taxes in that state. However, statdd seek to impose additional income tax
obligations or sales tax collection obligationsoant-of-state companies such as ours, which engagefacilitate online commerce, based on
their interpretation of existing laws, includingetSupreme Court ruling, or specific facts relatingis. If sales tax obligations are successfully
imposed upon us by a state or other jurisdictiomcauld be exposed to substantial tax liabilit@spast sales and penalties and fines for fa
to collect sales taxes. We could also suffer dee@aales in that state or jurisdiction as thec#ffe cost of purchasing goods from us increases
for those residing in that state or jurisdiction.

In addition, a number of states, as well as the Gdhgress, have been considering various inigatihat could limit or supersede the
Supreme Court’s apparent position regarding saldsuge taxes on Internet sales. If any of thesiativies are enacted, we could be required to
collect sales and use taxes in additional statdanrevenue could be adversely affected. Furtbegnthe U.S. Congress has not yet extended
a moratorium, which was first imposed in 1998 bas Bince expired, on state and local governmehiktyato impose new taxes on Internet
access and Internet transactions. The impositiostdtte and local governments of various taxes Uip@nnet commerce could create
administrative burdens for us as well as substiintrapair the growth of e-commerce and adversélga our revenue and profitability. Since
our service is available over the Internet in npldtistates, these jurisdictions may require usutdify to do business in these states. If we fz
qualify in a jurisdiction that requires us to dq s could face liabilities for taxes and penalties

Additionally, in 2008, New York enacted a measuna requires many online retailers to begin caltgcsales taxes on purchases shig
to the state, even if they have no operations @l@yees working there.
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We could be liable for breaches of security on auebsites.

A fundamental requirement for e-commerce is theigetransmission of confidential information oveibpic networks. Anyone who is
able to circumvent our security measures could ppisgpriate proprietary information or cause intptions in our operations. Although we
have developed systems and processes that areel@smprotect consumer information and preventdudent credit card transactions and
other security breaches, failure to mitigate swahd or breaches may adversely affect our operatisgits. We may be required to expend
significant capital and other resources to proagetinst potential security breaches or to alleypadblems caused by any breach. We rely on
licensed encryption and authentication technolaggrovide the security and authentication necedearyecure transmission of confidential
information, including credit card numbers. Advamae computer capabilities, new discoveries infiblel of cryptography, or other events or
developments may result in a compromise or bre&tmecalgorithms that we use to protect custormardaction data. In the event someone
circumvents our security measures, it could seljooarm our business and reputation and we cowdd tmstomers. Security breaches could
also expose us to a risk of loss or litigation aondsible liability for failing to secure confidealticustomer information.

If we do not respond to technological change, ouebgites could become obsolete and our financialessand conditions could be advers
affected.

We maintain a network of websites which requirdsssantial development and maintenance efforts eatails significant technical and
business risks. To remain competitive, we mustinartto enhance and improve the responsivenesstjdnality and features of our websites.
The Internet and the e-commerce industry are ctexiaed by rapid technological change, the emergehcew industry standards and
practices and changes in customer requirementprafiekences. Therefore, we may be required tosie@merging technologies, enhance our
existing websites, develop new services and teclgyahat address the increasingly sophisticatedvaniéd needs of our current and
prospective customers, and adapt to technologtbalraces and emerging industry and regulatory stdsdend practices in a cost-effective and
timely manner. Our ability to remain technologigatbmpetitive may require substantial expenditanmed lead time and our failure to do so
may harm our business and results of operations.

Existing or future government regulation could expe us to liabilities and costly changes in our busss operations and could redu
customer demand for our products and services.

We are subject to federal and state consumer pgimteaws and regulations, including laws protegtihe privacy of customer nguniblic
information and regulations prohibiting unfair ashekceptive trade practices, as well as laws andatgns governing businesses in general and
the Internet and e-commerce and certain envirorshi&aws. Additional laws and regulations may bepdd with respect to the Internet, the
effect of which on e-commerce is uncertain. Thaseslmay cover issues such as user privacy, spyamaréhe tracking of consumer activities,
marketing e-mails and communications, other adsiagiand promotional practices, money transfefising, content and quality of products
and services, taxation, electronic contracts ahdratommunications, intellectual property rightsd énformation security. Furthermore, it is
not clear how existing laws such as those goverisisiges such as property ownership, sales and tatkes, trespass, data mining and
collection, and personal privacy apply to the In&trand e-commerce. California has enacted le@isl&gnning the sale of catalytic converters
that do not meet California emissions regulatiemsl the current federal administration has indit#tat 13 additional states will be allowed to
enact their own legislation that mirrors Californigy way of example, on March 4, 2010 the Compaey with the California Air Resources
Board (“CARB”) to discuss alleged sales of catalytbnverters into California by the Company anddtipiarty suppliers that are not compliant
with California regulations. CARB informed the Coamy that penalties may be assessed with regamyta@-compliant sales; discussions
are ongoing, and any penalties are not estimalilésatime. This will impact sale of products fonissions systems to those states and may
adversely impact our sales and operating resuttsh@ extent we expand into international marketswill be faced with complying with local
laws and regulations, some of which may be matgritifferent than U.S. laws and regulations. Anglsdoreign law or regulation, any new
U.S. law or regulation, or the interpretation opligation of existing laws and regulations to théeknet or other online services, may have a
material adverse effect on our business, prospitésicial condition and results of operations &yong other things, impeding the growth of
the Internet, subjecting us to fines, penaltiemalges or other liabilities, requiring costly chasm@eour business operations and practices, and
reducing customer demand for our products and ssvMWe do not maintain insurance coverage to dbveetypes of claims or liabilities that
could arise as a result of such regulation.

15



Table of Contents

The United States government may substantially E&@se border controls and impose restrictions onss-dborder commerce that may
substantially harm our busines:

We purchase a substantial portion of our product® fforeign manufacturers and other suppliers whoee products internationally.
Restrictions on shipping goods into the United &tdtom other countries pose a substantial rigkutdbusiness. Particularly since the terrorist
attacks on September 11, 2001, the United Statesrgment has substantially increased border sleme# and controls. If the United States
were to impose further border controls and restmist, impose quotas, tariffs or import duties, @age the documentation requirements
applicable to cross border shipments or take athions that have the effect of restricting thevflaf goods from other countries to the United
States, we may have greater difficulty acquiringiouentory in a timely manner, experience shippiletays, or incur increased costs and
expenses, all of which would substantially harm lousiness and results of operations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters and primary distributemters are located in Carson, California in apipmately 173,000 square feet of
office and warehouse space. We have a 116,000esépardistribution center in Chesapeake, Virgitige currently lease approximately
39,500 square feet of office space in the Philippifor our employees located in that country. Védseeall of our facilities under leases which
expire between September 10, 2010 and Decemb@0338, For additional information regarding our ghtions under property leases, see
Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financiale®tants, included in Part IV, Item 15 of this rep

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information set forth under the caption “Lelyttters” in Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidateddricial Statements, included in Part
IV, Item 15 of this report, and is incorporateddierby reference. For an additional discussioneofain risks associated with legal proceedi
see the section entitled “Risk Factors” in Item df&his report.

ITEM 4. RESERVED
PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information

Our common stock commenced trading on the NASDAGQb@&I Market on February 9, 2007 under the symbBIT8.” Prior to such
time, there was no public market for our commorlstd@he table below sets forth the high and lovesalrices of our common stock for the
periods indicated:

High Low
Quarter ended March 31, 20 $8.2C $2.1:
Quarter ended June 30, 2C 4.4C 3.01
Quarter ended September 30, 2! 3.67 1.41
Quarter ended December 31, 2( 2.3t 1.0C
Quarter ended April 4, 20( 1.8C 1.01
Quarter ended July 4, 20! 4.1¢ 1.61
Quarter ended October 3, 20 6.3t 3.5¢
Quarter ended January 2, 2( 6.24 4.2¢

On March 11, 2010, the last reported sale priceuofcommon stock on the NASDAQ Global Market wa$per share.

Holders
As of March 11, 2010, there were approximately &,86n-objecting holders of record of our commortisto
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Stock Performance Graph

The material in this section is not “soliciting neaial,” is not deemed “filed” with the SEC, and dhaot be deemed to be incorporated by
reference into any of our filings under the SedesitAct of 1933, as amended, or the Securities &g Act of 1934, as amended.

The following graph shows a comparison of the totahulative returns of an investment of $100 irhcais February 9, 2007, the first
trading day following our initial public offeringni(i) our common stock, (ii) the S&P 500 Retail éxd (iii) Morgan Stanley Technology Index
and (iv) NASDAQ Composite Index, in each case tgtoDecember 31, 2009. The comparisons in the graphequired by the SEC and are
not intended to forecast or be indicative of thegilole future performance of our common stock. ditegh assumes that all dividends have
been reinvested (to date, we have not declaredetids).
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—— |5 Auto Parls

Margan Stanley Technology I-mux!

SEPRetal indax = M asdag

Dividend Policy

Concurrently with our recapitalization and termioatof our S corporation status in March 2006, \a& @ cash distribution to our
stockholders in an aggregate amount of $51.7 millehich included our final S corporation distrilout in the amount of $1.7 million. We
currently intend to retain any future earningsitafice the growth and development of our busireesswe do not anticipate that we will
declare or pay any cash dividends on our commarksiothe foreseeable future. Any future determarato pay cash dividends will be at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and will bepgadent upon our financial condition, results ofm@pions, capital requirements, restrictions
under any existing indebtedness and other fadb@8bard of Directors deems relevant.

Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.

Use of Proceeds from Sales of Registered Securities

On February 14, 2007, we completed the initial mudifering of our common stock, pursuant to whieé sold 8,000,000 shares of our
common stock and the selling stockholders soldgamesgate of 3,500,000 shares of our common stobicfwincluded 1,500,000 shares sold
by the selling stockholders pursuant to the exerafghe underwriters’ over-allotment option) a thitial public offering price of $10.00 per
share. The shares of common stock sold in thein§fevere registered under the Securities Act oagsstration statement on Form S-1 (File.
No. 33:-138379) that was declared effective by the SEEaruary 8, 2007. RBC Capital Markets Corporatiipmas Weisel Partners LLC,
Piper Jaffray & Co., and JMP Securities LLC were ¢tl-managing underwriters for the offering.
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The aggregate purchase price of the shares sald bythe offering was $80.0 million. The aggregaiechase price of the shares sold by
the selling stockholders was $35.0 million. We #melselling stockholders paid to the underwriterdarwriting discounts and commissions
totaling $5.6 million and $2.5 million, respectiyein connection with the offering. In addition, \ieeurred additional expenses of
approximately $2.9 million in connection with théesing. After deducting the underwriting discouaisd commissions and offering expenses,
we received net proceeds from the offering of apipnately $71.5 million. We did not receive any peeds from the sale of shares by the
selling stockholders.

Approximately $28.0 million of the net proceedsnfrthe offering was used to repay our outstandidettedness under two term loans
for approximately $18.0 million and $10.0 milligmayable to our commercial lender. In addition, $8ilion of the net proceeds from the
offering was paid on the notes payable to the fost@ckholders of Partsbin. Except for the paynuérsuch debt, none of the net proceeds
from the offering were paid directly or indirectly any of our directors or officers (or their adates) or persons owning ten percent or more of
any class of our equity securities or to any otféliate, other than in the form of wages or s@amand bonuses paid out in the ordinary course
of business. In March 2007, a class action lawsa filed alleging violations of federal securitlaw/ in connection with our initial public
offering. The Company entered into a settlement¢@ment in this regard in May 2008. In July 2008, @ompany funded the settlement
consideration to an escrow account totaling $3Maniwhich was court approved in October 2008 antsequently disbursed. See Note 12 of
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsai IF of this report. The remaining net proceedsrf the offering have been investec
investmentgrade securities and cash equivalents. We willrrdteoad discretion over the use of the net proseedeived from our initial publ
offering. The amount and timing of our actual exglijtires may vary significantly depending on a nundfedactors, including, but not limited
to, the growth of our sales and customer baseytreeof efforts we make to build our brand and ste@ents in our business.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and fiiated Purchaser
We did not repurchase any of our outstanding ecégturities during the most recent quarter covbyetthis report.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial information asawfd for the dates and periods indicated have beewed from our audited consolidated
financial statements. The information set fortholels not necessarily indicative of results of fetoperations, and should be read in
conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and As&yof Financial Condition and Results of Operatian Part II, Iltem 7 of this report and
our consolidated financial statements and relatgdsincluded elsewhere in this report.

52 Weeks Ende

Years Ended December 31, January 2,
2005 2006 (1) 2007 (2) 2008 (3) 2010
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Date

Net sales $ 59,69¢ $ 120,06( $ 160,95 $ 153,42 $ 176,28t
Cost of sale: 34,82¢ 78,57 107,13: 100,86¢ 112,41!
Gross profil 24,86¢ 41,48 53,82t 52,55¢ 63,87
Operating expense
General and administrati\ 7,25¢ 9,59¢ 18,58’ 18,23« 19,64(
Marketing 5,80z 15,10: 21,55; 22,96: 23,41¢
Fulfillment 4,357 4,96: 7,551 9,11¢ 11,437
Technology 86¢ 1,33 1,98 3,64 4,467
Amortization of intangibles and impairment
loss 17 5,092 8,35( 28,32¢ 661
Total operating expens: 18,29¢ 36,08: 58,03: 82,28: 59,62
Income (loss) from operatiol 6,571 5,40¢ (4,20%) (29,729 4,24¢
Other income (expense), r 85 (1,35%) 1,14¢ 1,00( 191
Income (loss) before income tax 6,65¢ 4,04¢ (3,059 (28,72 4,44(
Income tax provision (benefi (163) (550) 53¢ (11,827) 3,12
Net income (loss $ 6,81¢ $ 3,49¢ $ (3,599 $ (16,900 $ 1,317
Basic net income (loss) per shi $ 0.52 $ 0.2¢ $ (0.19) $ (0.57) $ 0.0
Diluted net income (loss) per shi $ 0.52 $ 0.17 $ (0.1%) $ (0.57) $ 0.04
Shares used in computation of basic net incoms)
per share 13,200,00 14,437,65 28,274,02 29,846,75 29,851,87
Shares used in computation of diluted net inc
(loss) per shar 13,200,00 19,990,43 28,274,02 29,846,75 30,809,11

(1) 2006 includes the results of Partsbin, which wagisied in May 2006, and is not reflected in prieripds.
(2) 2007 includes a reserve of $4.5 million for theusiies litigation settlement fee and associateueases
(3) 2008 includes a $23.4 million n-cash impairment charge on goodwill and intangilsieets
52 Weeks Ende
Years Ended December 31, January 2,

2005 2006 2007 2008 2010
(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Datz¢

Cash and cash equivale $ 1,350 $ 2,387 $19,39¢ $32,47! $ 26,25
Working capital (deficit)(1 3,27¢ (11,219 40,421 36,01 42,04¢
Total asset 14,48¢ 69,91( 110,05¢  90,43( 104,61
Notes payable to stockholde — 5,00( 1,00(¢ — —
Long-term debt (excluding notes payable to stockholdatscurrent portion 357 20,78¢ 48 — —
Stockholder’ equity 5,23¢ 20,61: 91,64: 77,52: 82,681

(1) 2008 excludes $6.5 million of investments whigére reclassified to long-term due to illiquiditythe market. Additionally, 2009
excludes $4.3 million of the same investme
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial conditiand results of operations should be read togetbithy our consolidated financial
statements and related notes included in Partt#&ml15 of this report. This discussion containsveind-looking statements that involve risks
and uncertainties. As a result of many factorshsag those set forth under the section entitledskRiactors” in Item 1A and elsewhere in this
report, our actual results may differ materiallypfn those anticipated in these forward-looking steats.

We are one of the largest online providers of aftgket auto parts, including body parts, enginéspand performance parts and
accessories. Our user-friendly websites providéooosrs with a broad selection of SKUs, with dethjpeoduct descriptions and photographs.
Our proprietary product database maps our SKUsddyet applications based on vehicle year, makelelaylinder and, sub model. We
principally sell our products to individual consusiéhrough our network of websites and online mipllees. Our flagship websites are loci
atwww.autopartswarehouse.candwww.partstrain.com We believe our strategy of disintermediating tifaglitional auto parts supply chain
and selling products directly to customers overltiternet allows us to more efficiently deliver gumts to our customers while generating
higher margins.

Our History. We were formed in 1995 as a distributor of afterket auto parts and launched our first websi@0i@0. We rapidly
expanded our online operations, increasing the mambSKUs sold through our@mmerce network, adding additional websites, agtgihe
Partsbin business, improving our Internet marketirgficiency and commencing sales in online markegs. As a result, our business has
grown since 2000, generating net sales of $176l&mfor the fifty-two weeks ended January 2, 2010

International Operationsin April 2007, we entered into a purchase agreerttehting in-house certain sales and customer cervi
employees based in the Philippines, who were phogidupport to us through our outsourced call agmtevider, Access Worldwide. Under
terms of this purchase agreement, approximatelyeh®®oyees of Access Worldwide were given the ojymitly to become employees of our
Philippines subsidiary and join our existing direntployees in the Philippines. As of the closinghig transaction, approximately 171 of the
Access employees had agreed to transition overgéotcemployment by our Philippines subsidiary, asdf January 2, 2010 we had 744
employees. The purchase price for the right to inedhis assembled workforce was approximately $dillion. In addition to our Philippines
operations, we own a Canadian subsidiary to fatdisales of our products in Canada which currdrat/no employees. We believe that the
cost advantages of our offshore operations prowvideith the ability to grow our business in a ceective manner, and we expect to continue
to add headcount and infrastructure to our offsloperations.

AcquisitionsFrom time to time, we may acquire certain busingssebsites, domain names, or other assets. DRE€0§, we acquired
several websites and domain name assets. In M&y, ##completed the acquisition of Partsbin, whagpanded our product offering, and
enhanced our ability to reach more customers. HutsBin acquisition significantly increased our saes and added a complementary, drop-
ship order fulfillment method, and operations im&da. We may pursue additional acquisition oppdiasin the future to increase our share
of the aftermarket auto parts market or expandooatiuct offerings.

Basis of Presentation

Net SalesOnline and offline sales represent two differetésahannels for our products. We generate onktesales primarily through
the sale of auto parts to individual consumersughoour network of e-commerce websites and onliagketplaces. E-commerce sales are
derived from our network of websites, which are pamy owned and operated. E-commerce and onlineatpdake sales also include inbound
telephone sales through our call center that supploese sales channels. Online marketplaces t@nsigrily of sales of our products on
online auction websites, where we sell throughianstas well as through storefronts that we mainbai these thirgharty owned websites. O
offline sales channel represents our distributibproducts directly to commercial customers byisglauto parts to collision repair shops
located in Southern California. Our offline salésenel also includes the distribution of our Koalé/mirror line to auto parts distributors
nationwide. To understand revenue generation thrawg network of eommerce websites, we monitor several key busimegscs, including
the following:

. Unique Visitors A unique visitor to a particular website representsser with a distinct IP address that visits gaaticular website.
We define the total number of unigue visitors igien month as the sum of unique visitors to edauo websites during that
month. We measure unique visitors to understanddheme of traffic to our websites and to track #ffectiveness of our online
marketing efforts. The number of unique visitors historically varied based on a number of factoiduding our marketing
activities and seasonality. We believe an incréasmique visitors to our websites will result in mcrease in the number of orders.
We seek to increase the number of unique visitomut websites by attracting repeat customers mpdaving search engine
marketing and other Internet marketing activit
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. Total Number of OrderiWe monitor the total number of orders as an indicaf revenue trends. We recognize revenue assok
with an order when the products have been shippetsistent with our revenue recognition policy d&sed in Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimat” below.

. Average Order ValueAverage order value represents our net sales tecagorders basis for a given period of time didithy the
total number of orders recorded during the sammegeaf time. We seek to increase the average aalele as a means of increas
net sales. Average order values vary depending apamber of factors, including the componentsuwfproduct offering, the
order volume in certain online sales channels, o-economic conditions, and the general level of cditipe online.

Cost of Sale<Cost of sales consists of the direct costs assatiaith procuring parts from suppliers and delimgrproducts to custome!
These costs include product costs offset by pusctasounts, freight and shipping costs and warshgupplies.

General and Administrative Expensgeneral and administrative expense consists piiynafradministrative payroll and related expen
payment processing fees, legal and professions) &sortization of software and other administetests.

Marketing Expenseéviarketing expense consists of online advertisirgngyp Internet commerce facilitator fees and otlleetising costs
as well as payroll and related expenses assoaidtedur marketing catalog, customer service, aldsspersonnel. These costs are generally
variable and are typically a function of net sales.

Fulfillment Expenserulfillment expense consists primarily of payratidarelated costs associated with our warehousecgtegsé and our
purchasing group, facility rent, building maintenandepreciation and other costs associated witmiory management and our wholesale
operations.

Technology Expens&echnology expense consists primarily of payroll aglated expenses of our information technologgqanel, the
cost of hosting our servers, communications expeand Internet connectivity costs, computer supgadtsoftware development.

Amortization of Intangibles and Impairment Lo&mortization of intangibles and impairment loss sists primarily of the amortization
expense associated with certain intangibles anecash impairment loss recorded as a result of énsBin business.

Other Income (Expense), N&ther income (expense), net consists primarilyhtdriest income on investments and interest expemse!
outstanding loan balances and capital leases.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements have begmapee in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in the United States
(“U.S. GAAP"). The preparation of our financial &eents requires us to make estimates and assumsptiat affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, net sales, costs and expeasesell as the disclosure of contingent assetdiabitities and other related disclosures. We |
our estimates on historical experience and on uarather assumptions that we believe to be reasmoaler the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis for making judgments aboutyéag values of our assets and liabilities thatraoereadily apparent from other sources. In
many instances, we could have reasonably usedeatiffaccounting estimates. Actual results coultedffom those estimates, and we include
any revisions to our estimates in our resultsfiergeriod in which the actual amounts become known.

Effective July 1, 2009, the Company adopted theufdial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) AccougtiStandards Codification
(“ASC”) Topic 105Generally Accepted Accounting PrincipliéaSC 105”), which establishes the FASB ASC asgimgle source of
authoritative U.S. generally accepted accountimgcjples (“GAAP”) used by nongovernmental entitieghe preparation of financial
statements, except for rules and interpretive seleaf the SEC under authority of federal secsrltiers, which are sources of authoritative
accounting guidance for SEC registrants.
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We believe the critical accounting policies desetitbbelow affect the more significant judgments astiimates used in the preparation of
our consolidated financial statements. Accordintiigse are the policies we believe are the mastalrio aid in fully understanding and
evaluating our historical consolidated financiahdition and results of operations:

Revenue RecognitioWWe recognize revenue from product sales when thenfimg four revenue recognition criteria are nygtrsuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, shipment hagect; the selling price is fixed or determinahhel @ollectability is reasonably assured.

We evaluated the criteria of ASC 605-RBvenue Recognition Principal Agent ConsideratibASC 605-45"), (formerly referenced as
“Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) No. 99-1Réporting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus BlanaAgent), in determining whether
it is appropriate to record the gross amount ofipcd sales and related costs or the net amoune@asrcommissions. When we are the prir
party obligated in a transaction, are subject @irtory risk, have latitude in establishing prie@sl selecting suppliers or have several but not
all of these indicators, revenue is recorded gross.

Product sales and shipping revenues, net of promaltdiscounts and return allowances, are recondesh the products are shipped and
title passes to customers. Retail items sold ttoowsrs are made pursuant to terms and conditi@igptbvide for transfer of both title and risk
of loss upon our delivery to the carrier. Retulnwbnces, which reduce product revenue by ourdshate of expected product returns, are
estimated using historical experience. We generalijyire payment by credit card at the point o sAmounts received prior to when we ship
goods to customers are recorded as deferred revenue

We periodically provide incentive offers to our tarsers to encourage purchases. Such offers includent discount offers, such as
percentage discounts off of current purchases #ret similar offers. Current discount offers, whaatepted by our customers, are treated as a
reduction to the purchase price of the relatedseation. Current discount offers and inducemerdreféire classified as an offsetting amount in
net sales.

Fair Value MeasurementBuring the first quarter of 2009, the Company addpASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures
(“ASC 820") (formerly referenced as Statement afdficial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 15ajr Value Measuremenjswhich
defines fair value, provides a framework for meesyfair value, and expands the disclosures reddefair value measurements. We have
adopted the provisions of ASC 820 as of Janua®pQ@8 for financial assets. ASC 820 establishesegetlier fair value hierarchy, which
prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair valligese tiers include: Level 1-defined as obseevaiputs such as quoted prices in active
markets; Level 2-defined as inputs other than guptées in active markets that are either directlindirectly observable; and Leveld&finec
as unobservable inputs in which little or no maudkata exists, therefore requiring an entity to dgyés own assumptions. We have evaluated
both Level 2 and Level 3 evidence to measure the/édue of our $4.4 million (par value) of aucticate preferred securities (“ARPS”) as of
January 2, 2010. These investments consist sol@gliateralized debt obligations supported by neipdl and state agencies; do not include
mortgage-backed securities or student loans; hedemption features that call for redemption at 1@%ar value; and have a current credit
rating of A or AAA. For the period May 19, 2009 ¢lugh January 2, 2010, we received partial redemptid par on our investments totaling
$2.2 million. The fact that there is not an actiwarket as of January 2, 2010 to liquidate 100%he$¢ certain investments was the final
determination in classifying them as Level 3. Wedia discounted cash flow valuation model to egérttze fair value of the securities. As a
result of the temporary declines in fair value of ARPS, which we attribute to liquidity issueshetthan credit issues, we have recorded an
unrealized loss of $0.1 million to accumulated ot@mmprehensive income (loss). If our key assumgtissed to determine estimated
discounted cash flows change in the future, we beagequired to record additional losses.
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Inventory.Inventory consists of finished goods availablegate and is stated at the lower of cost or maréketey determined using the
firstin, first out (“FIFO”) method. We purchaseveamtory from suppliers both domestically and ing&tionally, primarily in Taiwan and China.
We believe that our products are generally avaléfim more than one supplier, and we maintainipialsources for many of our products,
both internationally and domestically. We offerradal line of auto parts for automobiles from mogkrs 1965 to 2009. Because of the
continued demand for our products, we primarilychase products in bulk quantities to take advantdggantity discounts and to ensure
inventory availability. Inventory is reported ndtioventory reserves for slow moving, obsolete @ap product, which are established base
specific identification of slow moving items ancetavaluation of overstock considering anticipatddslevels. If actual market conditions are
less favorable than those anticipated by manageradditional reserves may be required. Historigallyr recorded reserve for returns has t
adequate to provide for actual returns.

Website and Software Development CoAts.capitalize certain costs associated with sogvemveloped for internal use according to
ASC 350-50Intangibles — Goodwill and Other — Website DevelephCostg“ASC 350-50") (formerly referenced as EITF No. R0D*
Accounting for Website Development C’ and ASC 350-40ntangibles — Goodwill and Other —Internal-Use 8afte (“ASC 350-40")
(formerly referenced as Statement of Position $88DP 98-1"), “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Dipeasd or Obtained for
Internal Use”). Under the provisions of ASC 350-40 and ASC 3)-we capitalize costs associated with websiteldgment and software
developed for internal use when both the prelinyinapject design and testing stage are completddraamagement has authorized further
funding for the project, which it deems probableofmpletion and to be used for the function intehdgapitalized costs include amounts
directly related to website development and sofend@velopment such as payroll and payroll-relatetscfor employees who are directly
associated with, and who devote time to, the irtleuse software project. Capitalization of thesst€@eases when the project is substantially
complete and ready for its intended use.

Long-Lived Assets and Intangibl&ge acquire tangible and intangible assets in thmabcourse of business. We evaluate the
recoverability of the carrying amount of these ldivgd assets whenever events or changes in cittauross indicate that the carrying value of
an asset may not be recoverable in accordanceA8i@ 360Property, Plant, and Equipme(itASC 360") (formerly referenced as SFAS
No. 144,* Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Longdd Assets). An impairment loss is recognized when the ciagyalue
exceeds the undiscounted cash flows estimatedtdt feom the use and eventual disposition of thgefl Impairment losses are recognized in
operating earnings. We continually use judgmentmwdgplying these impairment rules to determingtitheng of the impairment tests,
undiscounted cash flows used to assess impairmamghe fair value of a potentially impaired as$ée reasonableness of our judgments
could significantly affect the carrying value ofrdang-lived assets. During the year ended Decer@beP008, we recorded a non-cash
impairment charge on lonigred assets totaling $18.4 million as further diéxed in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Steets included i
Part IV of this report. We did not recognize anypairment losses for the fifty-two weeks ended Jan2a2010 and the year ended
December 31, 2007.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible¥/e account for goodwill under the guidance setfantASC 350ntangibles — Goodwill and
Other (“ASC 350") (formerly referenced as SFAS No. 14%dodwill and Other Intangible Asséfs which specifies that goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangibles should not be amortiz&/e evaluate goodwill and indefinite-lived intéslgs for impairment on an annual basis or
more frequently if events or circumstances occat tould indicate a reduction in fair value. Ounaal impairment testing date is October 31.
In addition, we identified a single reporting ufitiie Company itself) in accordance with ASC 350e Gloodwill impairment test is a two-step
impairment test. The first step compares the faiue of each reporting unit with its carrying ambimeluding goodwill. We estimate the fair
value of the reporting unit based on an equal waigtof two market approaches and an income appraglich utilizes discounted future ce
flows. The market approaches utilized market mldtipf invested capital from 1) comparable publichded companies and 2) comparable
transactions. The market multiples from investagitehinclude revenues, total assets, book eqdity gebt and earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”). Assumpiicritical to the fair value estimates under tisealinted cash flow model include
discount rates, cash flow projections, projectemjiterm growth rates and the determination of teanvalues. Management has performed a
sensitivity analysis on its significant assumptiansl has determined that a change in its assunsptithin selected sensitivity testing levels
would not impact its conclusion. If the carrying@mt exceeds fair value, then the second stepedhtpairment test is performed to measure
the amount of any impairment loss by comparingrigied fair value of the reporting unit to its cgng value. We completed our annual
testing and passed the first step of the impairrtessit We did not recognize any impairment losgHerfifty-two weeks ended January 2, 2010.
During the year ended December 31, 2008, we redaden-cash impairment charge on goodwill tota$idgt million, due to the significant
decline in the Company’s stock price to a leveldating a market capitalization below book valueinig the fourth quarter ended
December 31, 2008. We also recorded a $0.7 milligrairment loss on indefinite-lived intangible assas further described in Note 4 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Radf this report. We did not recognize any impaémh loss for the year ended December
2007.

23



Table of Contents

Income TaxedlWe account for income taxes in accordance with A8CIncome Taxe§'ASC 740”) (formerly referenced as SFAS
No. 109, Accounting for Income Tax&s Under ASC 740, deferred tax assets and liagdiare recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to temporary differences between thernfcial statement carrying amount of existing tssaad liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are unedsising enacted tax rates expected to appbxtbte income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovaredttled. When appropriate, we establish a vanaeserve to reduce deferred tax assets,
which includes tax credits and loss carry forwatdshe amount that is more likely than not to éalized. Our ability to realize our deferred
assets depends on our ability to generate suffit@able income within the carry-back or carryvfard periods provided for in the tax law for
each applicable tax jurisdiction. We consider thliéofving possible sources of taxable income whesessing the realization of our deferred tax
assets:

. Future reversals of existing taxable temporaryedédhces

. Future taxable income exclusive of reversing terapodifferences and car-forwards;
. Taxable income in prior car-back years; an

. Tax-planning strategie:

During the assessment of realization of deferrgcdtsets, we also consider, among others, theepdtaguency and severity of recent
losses, forecasts of future profitability, the dima of statutory carrferward periods, our experience with tax attribuggpiring unused and ti
planning alternatives. In making such judgmentmificant weight is given to evidence that can bgctively verified.

The Company utilizes a rolling three years of alcaumal current year anticipated results as a primaggsure of its cumulative losses in
recent years. The Company has a cumulative priasaxof $27.3 million for the respective years 208008 and 2009. A substantial portion of
the cumulative losses relates to non-recurringenauch as the $4.5 million class action lawsfiteament and the $23.4 million write-off of
goodwill and other intangible assets resulted lgrfem the 2008-2009 stock market crash. Thesatsvare unlikely to reoccur in the future,
and the Company adjusts the cumulative resultthieffect of these items. Excluding the non-réngritems, the Company has a cumulative
income of $508,000 for the respective three years.

The Company’s significant positive evidence at qan2, 2010 is also summarized as follows:

. Based on the estimated taxable income for-two weeks ended January 2, 2010, the Company aik met operating loss ca-
back potential of $1.4 millior

. The Company has cumulative three year taxable ircof$2.5 million.

. The Company has cumulative three year taxable ierc@xclusive of 2008 net operating loss c-back) of $6.2 million. Thi
Companys 2008 net operating loss was carried back to 289@f January 2, 2010, the Company has estimaigerdl and state r
operating loss car-forwards of $0 and $1.5 million, respective

For the deferred tax asset to be realized the Coynwauld have to achieve approximately $29.4 millio taxable income in future
periods.

Based on the significant positive evidence abolated to the historical pre-tax and taxable inc@né the earnings projection, we
determined that it was more likely than not thatiiét deferred tax assets would be realized. Ngatiah allowance is necessary as of Januz
2010. The valuation of deferred tax assets reqjuigggment and our accounting for deferred tax cqusaces of events that have been
recognized in our financial statements or in ourriturns, and our future profitability represents best estimate of those future events.
Changes in our current estimates, due to unantedpavents or otherwise, could have a materiateéfe our financial condition and results of
operations.
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In 2008, the Company adopted ASC 740 (formerlyresfeed as FASB Financial Interpretation No.“4&counting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes-an Interpretation of SFAS 109Uhich prescribes a recognition threshold and a oreasent attribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of tax positions takexxpected to be taken in a tax return. For thesesfits to be recognized, a tax position
must be more-likely-than-not to be sustained up@menation by taxing authorities. The amount reéogeh is measured as the largest amount
of benefit that has greater than 50 percent likelthof being realized upon ultimate settlementakssult of the implementation of ASC 740,
we did not recognize any material adjustment inlititglity for unrecognized income tax benefitsamrresponding interest or penalties. During
2008, we were under audit by the Internal Reverergi&e for the year ended December 31, 2006 and; 2086 audit was resolved through
payment of a non-material sum of money. The taxs/2805 through 2008 remain open to examinatiothbymajor taxing jurisdictions to
which we are subject.

Share-Based Compensatidhie did not issue any stock options prior to Mar6& Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted ASC 718
Compensation — Stock Compensa({kSC 718") (formerly referenced as SFAS No. 128v{sed 2004), ‘Share-Based Paymeht ASC 718
requires that all share-based compensation to gmedo including grants of employee stock optioesidrognized in our financial statements
based on their respective grant date fair valuesiedthis standard, the fair value of each shasedb@ayment award is estimated on the date o
grant using an option pricing model that meetsatentequirements. We currently use the Black-Sahof&ion pricing model to estimate the
fair value of our sharbased payment awards, with the exception of optipasted containing market conditions, for whichegtimate the fa
value using a Monte Carlo model. The Black-Schates$ Monte Carlo valuation models require extensise of accounting judgment and
financial estimates, including estimates of theested term participants will retain their vesteac&toptions before exercising them, the
estimated volatility of our common stock price ottee expected term and the number of options tilbbe/forfeited prior to the completion of
their vesting requirements. Application of alteimatassumptions could produce significantly differestimates of the fair value of share-based
compensation and, consequently, the related anufghiare-based compensation expense recognizbd bdnsolidated Statement of
Operations could have been significantly differyan the amounts recorded. We estimate volatilitgdcordance with ASC 718 (formerly
referenced as SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No.)1§ing historical volatilities of similar publiméties. The expected life of the awards is
based on a simplified method that defines thed#ff¢he average of the contractual term of the nptamd the weighted average vesting period
for all open tranches. The risk-free interest etsumption is based on observed interest ratespge for the terms of our awards. The
dividend yield assumption is based on our histony expectation of paying no dividends.

Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grantranibed, if necessary, in subsequent periods ifsdorfeitures differ from those
estimates. Share-based compensation expense reedgmiour financial statements in 2006 and théeedd based on awards that are
ultimately expected to vest. If factors change wedemploy different assumptions, share-based cosapen expense may differ significantly
from what we have recorded in the past. If theesaary modifications or cancellations of the undadgyunvested securities, we may be reqt
to accelerate, increase or cancel any remainingraed share-based compensation expense. Futueetsdsed compensation expense and
unearned share-based compensation will increabe textent that we grant additional equity awaodsrhployees or we assume unvested
equity awards in connection with acquisitions.

Valuation at the Time of GrantVe have granted to our employees options to puecbasimon stock at exercise prices equal to the fair
market value of the underlying common stock attitme of each grant, which is the closing market@f our common stock. Prior to our
initial public offering in February 2007, the commstock price was determined by our Board of Doext

Under provisions of ASC 718, we recognized $2.2iom) $2.9 million and $3.3 million of share-bassmmpensation expense for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2008 and th-two weeks ended January 2, 2010, respectivelyaatary 2, 2010, the total
compensation cost related to unvested stock-basgartla granted to employees and monployee directors under our equity incentive plaun
not yet recognized was approximately $4.5 millioat of estimated forfeitures of approximately $3illion. This cost will be amortized ovel
weighted-average period of approximately 2.63 yaadswill be adjusted for subsequent changes imastd forfeitures.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Effective July 1, 2009, Financial Accounting Startt$aBoard (“FASB”) Accounting Standards CodificatifASC”) Topic 105Generally
Accepted Accounting Principl(“Topic 105”) establishes the FASB ASC as the srggurce of authoritative U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) used by nongovernrnatentities in the preparation of financial stagens, except for rules and interpretive
releases of the SEC under authority of federalritgesilaws, which are sources of authoritativecarting guidance for SEC registrants. The
Cadification is meant to simplify user access taathoritative accounting guidance by reorganiZB®AP pronouncements into roughly 90
accounting topics within a consistent structurepiirpose is not to create new accounting and tiagayuidance. The Codification supersedes
all existing non-SEC accounting and reporting staidsl and is effective for the Company beginning ul2009. Following Topic 105, the
FASB will not issue new standards in the form aft8tments, FASB Staff Positions, or Emerging IsJlaesk Force Abstracts; instead, it will
issue Accounting Standards Updates. The FASB willconsider Accounting Standards Updates as atditivg in their own right; these
updates will serve only to update the Codificatipmvide background information about the guidaaee] provide the bases for conclusion:
the change(s) in the Codification. As the Codifimatwas not intended to change or alter existingABAthe adoption of the Codification did
not have any impact on the Company’s consoliddtexhtial statements.

During the third quarter of 2009, the Company addASC Topic 855 (formerly referenced as StateroéRinancial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 165ubsequent Events The ASC is the single official source of authoritat nongovernmental U.S. GAAP, other
than guidance issued by the SEC. The Company’stiaopf the ASC did not have any impact on thefiicial statements included herein. In
February 2010, FASB issued Accounting Standardsatépo. 2010-09, Subsequent Events (Topic 88&lendments to Certain Recognition
and Disclosure Requirement#A\SU No. 2010-09") that removed the requirementiieclose a date through which subsequent evertstheen
evaluated in issued financial statements. ASU NA0209 is effective as of February 24, 2010 andnmasignificantly impacted the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FASB ASC 805sfiBess Combinations” (formerly referenced as SFASIM1 (revised 2007), “
Business Combinatior” ), which establishes principles and requireméatsow the acquirer of a business recognizes agasnres in its
financial statements the identifiable assets aegyithe liabilities assumed, and any non-contmliiiterest in the acquiree. ASC 805 also
provides guidance for recognizing and measuringytewill acquired in the business combination detérmines what information to discli
to enable users of the financial statements touat@lthe nature and financial effects of the bssimembination. This statement applies
prospectively to business combinations for whiahdbquisition date is on or after the beginnintheffirst annual reporting period beginning
on or after December 15, 2008. We applied ASC 8Cdltacquisitions occurring after January 1, 2009.

In January 2009, we adopted ASC &20r Value Measurements and Disclosu(&smerly referenced as Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 157, Fair Valueddurements), which defines fair value, provid&amework for measuring fair value,
and expands the disclosures required for fair valeasurements. We elected the deferral allowetidgtiidance except as related to certain
intangible assets impaired as of June 30, 200®&wémber 31, 2008 as disclosed in Note 2 to theatwlated financial statements.

In 2009, we adopted Accounting Standards Updat&(JA 2009-05, Fair Value Measurements (Topic 820)ea8uring Liabilities at
Fair Value. ASU 2009-5 amends ASC topic 820 by fatig additional guidance clarifying the measuretr@ddiabilities at fair value. When a
guoted price in an active market for the identiizdility is not available, the amendments reqtirat the fair value of a liability be measured
using one or more of the listed valuation techniiat should maximize the use of relevant obséevaputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs. The adoption did not have @ impact on the Company’s financial positiarresults from operations.

In 2009, we adopted an update to FASB ASC 320 #olyr-SP SFAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2) related to ¢lsegnition and presentation
of other-than-temporary impairments. This updapgaees the existing requirement that managemeattasfias both the intent and ability to
hold an impaired security until recovery with teguirement that management assert: (i) it doetane the intent to sell the security; and (i
is more likely than not it will not have to selktlsecurity before recovery of its cost basis. T@ate also incorporates examples of factors
existing literature that should be considered itedrining whether a debt security is other-thangerarily impaired. The adoption did not
have a material impact on the Comp’s financial position or results from operatio



In 2009, we adopted an update to FASB ASC topic(®0nerly FSP SFAS 15%) related to determining fair value when the voduamc
level of activity for the asset or liability havigsificantly decreased and identifying transactitimet are not orderly. This update affirms tha
objective of fair value, when the market for anedss not active, is the price that would be reedito sell the asset in an orderly transactior
clarifies and includes additional factors for detating whether potentially comparative transactiars orderly transactions or transactions that
are not orderly (that is, distressed or forcede &tloption did not have a material impact on then@any’s financial position or results from
operations.

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009R8yenue RecognitidhASC 605”) Multiple Deliverable Arrangementsvhich modifies
the requirements for determining whether a delivierén a multiple element arrangement can be tdeasea separate unit of accounting by
removing the criteria that objective and reliabledence of fair value exists for the undeliveregineénts. The new guidance requires
consideration be allocated to all deliverables dasetheir relative selling price using vendor sfieobjective evidence (VSOE) of selling
price, if it exists; otherwise selling price is dehined based on third-party evidence (TPE) ofreglbrice. If neither VSOE nor TPE exist,
management must use its best estimate of selling (IESP) to allocate the arrangement considerafibe Company will adopt this update
effective January 3, 2010. The Company has not tetegpthe process of evaluating the effects thitr@esult from adopting the amendments
and is therefore unable to disclose the effectsatiapting the amendments in ASU 2009-13 will haréts consolidated financial position and
the results of its operations when such amendnseadopted.
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In April 2008, the FASB issued ASC 3&ttangibles — Goodwill and Oth¢fASC350”) (formerly referenced as FASB Staff Pmsit
(“FSP™) No. 142-3, ‘Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Atssg ASC 350 amends the factors an entity shouldsicter in
developing renewal or extension assumptions usddtgrmining the useful life or recognized intamgiaissets in accordance with ASC
350. This new guidance applies prospectively tarigtble assets that are acquired individually dhwigroup of other assets in business
combinations and asset acquisitions. ASC 350 ec#ffe for financial statements issued for fisagns and interim periods beginning after
December 15, 2008. The adoption did not have anahtffect on the Company’s financial position aedults of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued ASC 8érivatives and Hedgin(fASC 815”) (formerly referenced as Statement ofdficial
Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 16Djsclosures about Derivative Instruments and Heddhativities, an amendment of FASB Statement
No. 133). ASC 815 requires entities that utilize derivatimstruments to provide qualitative disclosuresuaiheir objectives and strategies for
using such instruments, as well as any detailsegfitrisk-related contingent features containethiwiderivatives. ASC 815 also requires
entities to disclose additional information abdwe amounts and location of derivatives locatediwithe financial statements, how the
provisions of ASC 815 have been applied, and thgaththat hedges have on an entity’s financialtfposifinancial performance and cash
flows. ASC 815 is effective for fiscal years anteiim periods beginning after November 15, 2008hwarly application encouraged. The
adoption did not have a material effect on the Camyfs financial position and results of operations.
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth selected statemémperations data for the periods indicated, exg@dsas a percentage of net sales:

52 Weeks
Ended
Years Ended December 31 January 2,
2007 2008 2010
Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: 66.€ 65.7 63.€
Gross profi 33.4 34.: 36.2
Operating expense
General and administrati\ 11.5 11.¢ 11.1
Marketing 13.4 15.C 13.c
Fulfillment 4.7 5.9 6.5
Technology 1.2 24 2.5
Amortization of intangibles and impairment I 5.2 18.5 0.4
Total operating expens: 36.C 53.7 33.¢
Income (loss) from operatiol (2.6) (19.9 2.4
Other income (expense
Other income — — —
Interest income (expense), 1 0.7 0.6 0.1
Other income (expense), r 0.7 0.6 0.1
Income (loss) before income tax (1.9 (18.9) 2.5
Income tax provision (benefi 0.3 (7.9 1.8
Net income (loss (2.2% (11.0% 0.7%
Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared to the Fiftys Weeks Ended January 2, 2010
Net Sales and Gross Marg
52
Weeks Ende(
Year Ended
December 31 January 2, $ Change % Change
2008 2010
(in thousands)
Net sales $ 153,42: $ 176,28 $22,86¢ 14.%
Cost of sale: 100,86¢ 112,41! 11,54¢ 11.8%
Gross profil $ 52,55¢ $ 63,87: $11,31¢ 21.5%
Gross margit 34.2% 36.2% 1.9%

Net sales increased $22.9 million, or 14.9%, ferfifiy-two weeks ended January 2, 2010 (“fiscery2009”) compared to the year
ended December 31, 2008 (“calendar year 2008y furease was mainly attributable to an increasii online sales of $23.6 million, or
16.8%, offset in part by a decrease of $0.8 millimn5.9%, in our offline business, which constdteur KoolVue™ and wholesale operatiol
Our online business consists of our e-commercepatide marketplace sales channels and includesmalilvertising. Our eemmerce chann
includes our e-commerce websites supported by alicenter sales agents who generate cross-seliusell opportunities. Our online
marketplaces consist primarily of auction and othed-party websites. Online advertising is soldaur e-commerce websites.

E-commerce sales increased $22.9 million, or 1916%140.1 million for fiscal year 2009 comparedpid 7.2 million for calendar year
2008. The increase is primarily due to increasaffitrof 9.5 million or 9.9% to 106.1 million unigwisitors and a 10 basis point increase in
conversion rate to 1.35% for fiscal year 2009 coragao 96.6 million unique visitors and a convensiate of 1.25% for calendar year 2008.
The increase in unique visitors primarily resulbexin increased marketing spend driving higher piffic and better content on our websites
driving more organic traffic. The increase in corsien was largely due to more effective pricingitéecatalog data and a better customer
experience. Total e-commerce orders increased ByAA or 18.3% to 1.4 million orders for fiscal y@809. Our average order value declined
to $1109 for fiscal year 2009 compared with $124dalendar year 2008 which was primarily attribugatol increased pricing competition and
increased sales of lower cost direct sourced ptsduc
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Online marketplace sales decreased $0.5 millio,2%0, to $20.5 million for fiscal year 2009 comgéito $21.0 million for calendar
year 2008 due in part to a decline in marketpleaffic.

Net sales from our offline business declined bya$illion, or 5.9%, to $12.3 million for fiscal ye@009 from calendar year 2008. The
decrease in net sales was the result of reducethgses from a significant customer in fiscal yedd®

We have historically experienced seasonality inlmiginess. We expect seasonality to continue urdugears as automobile collisions
during inclement weather create increased demanbfdy parts in winter months, and consumers aftaiertake projects to maintain and
enhance the performance of their automobiles irstibemer months. We anticipate that seasonalityosiftinue to have a material impact on
our financial condition and results of operatioosthe foreseeable future.

Gross profit was $63.9 million, or 36.2% of netesalfor fiscal year 2009, compared to $52.6 milli@n34.3% of net sales, in the prior
year. The 1.9% increase in gross margin for figeak 2009 compared to the prior year was primaitlg to lower outbounfreight expense,
lower product costs, purchase discounts, and iseceeevenue from sales of advertising on our wedsit

General and Administrative Expense

Year Ended 52 Weeks
December 31 Ended January 2
2008 2010 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
General and administrative expel $ 18,23¢ $ 19,64( $1,40¢ 7.7%
Percent of net sal¢ 11.9% 11.1% (0.8%

General and administrative expense increased $illidmor 7.7% for fiscal year 2009 compared toeralar year 2008 primarily due to
an increase in bonuses and share-based compenfeataur employees, increased merchant fees daéntgher sales volume, increased legal
fees related to the litigation to protect our ilgefual property, and increased depreciation anortiration expense for internally-developed
software that was placed into production in 20G8tiplly offset by lower professional fees and labrpense.

During fiscal year 2009, share-based compensakparse increased by $0.4 million primarily due ¢ofprmance-based option awards.
Based on options outstanding as of January 2, 20&@xpect to recognize $4.5 million in additioeapense in the following periods:

(in thousands

Year ending January 1, 20 $ 2,38¢
Year ending December 31, 20 1,781
Year ending December 29, 20 301

$  4,46¢
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Marketing Expens

52 Weeks
Year Ended Ended
December 31 January 2,
2008 2010 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Marketing expens $ 22,96¢ $23,41¢ $ 454 2.0%
Percent of net sal¢ 15.(% 13.2% 1.7%

Marketing expense increased $0.5 million, or 2.@86fiscal year 2009 compared to calendar year 2888 percentage of net sales,
marketing expense decreased 1.7% to 13.3% fod fisea 2009 compared to the prior-year primarilg doi reduced personnel costs, partially
offset by higher e-commerce advertising spendinghfincreased unique visitors. Marketing spend pereentage of sales was 7.1% for fiscal
year 2009 compared to 7.3% in the prior year. Redspend in our onlinmarketplaces sales channel also contributed tg#risentage
decrease for fiscal year 2009.

Fulfillment Expens:

52 Weeks
Year Ended Ended
December 31 January 2,
2008 2010 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Fulfillment expenst $ 9,11¢ $11,437 $2,321 25.5%
Percent of net sal 5.9% 6.5% 0.6%

Fulfillment expense increased $2.3 million, or 25,50r fiscal year 2009 compared to the prior yéara percentage of net sales,
fulfilment expense increased 0.6% to 6.5% fordlgeear 2009 primarily due to expenses relatecdutonew distribution center in Virginia that
opened in 2009.

Technology Expense

52 Weeks
Year Ended Ended
December 31 January 2,
2008 2010 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Technology expens $ 3,647 $ 4,467 $ 82F 22.1%
Percent of net sal¢ 2.4% 2.5% 0.1%

Technology expense increased $0.8 million, or 22@f4iscal year 2009 compared to the prior yeas.a®percentage of sales, technology
expense increased 0.1% to 2.5% mainly due to higéesonnel related expenses and increased comrianibandwidth to support our
growing infrastructure and investments in our olleéeghnology platform.

Amortization of Intangibles and Impairment L«

52 Weeks
Year Ended Ended
December 31 January 2,
2008 2010 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Amortization of intangibles and impairment Ic $ 28,32¢ $ 661 $(27,66%) (97.7%
Percent of net sal 18.2% 0.4% (18.1)%

Amortization of intangibles and impairment losslded by $27.7 million, or 97.7%, in fiscal year®D Calendar year 2008 included
non-cash impairment of $18.3 million on intangibksets. For further discussion refer to our ASC(8&@nerly SFAS 142) and ASC 360
(formerly SFAS 144) disclosures in the Critical Aooting Policies section. We estimate aggregatetiwation expense related to these
intangibles for the years 2010, 2011, 2012, 20182014 to be approximately $323,000, $323,000, ¥8¥B $288,000 and $112,000,
respectively.
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Other Income (Expense), Net

52 Weeks
Year Ended Ended
December 31 January 2,
2008 2010 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Other income (expense), r $ 1,00C $ 191 $ (809 (80.9%
Percent of net sal 0.7% 0.1% (0.6) %

Other income, net decreased $0.8 million, or 80i@f4iscal year 2009 compared to the prior yeasuted from lower interest income
from a decline in interest rates during fiscal y2@@9 compared to calendar year 2008.

Income Tax Provision (Benef

52 Weeks
Year Ended Ended
December 31 January 2,
2008 2010 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Income tax provision (benefi $ (11,827 $ 3,12¢ $14,94¢ 126.2%
Percent of net sal¢ (7. % 1.8% 9.5%

For the fiftytwo weeks ended January 2, 2010, and the year ddgleeimber 31, 2008, the effective tax rate forGbenpany was 70.33'
and 41.36%, respectively. The Company’s effect@erate is higher than the U.S. federal statutatg primarily as a result of state income
taxes and other non-deductible permanent diffeieridee increase in income tax provision duringfitty-two weeks ended January 2, 2010
was primarily due to a $1.1 million tax effect édsk option forfeitures and other naleductible permanent differences. The decreaseoni¢
tax provision (benefit) during the year ended Delsen81, 2008 was primarily due to the tax effedhef $4.5 million and $23.4 million
impairment losses on our goodwill and intangiblgeas, respectively.
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Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2008
Net Sales and Gross Margin

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Net sales $160,95° $153,42- $(7,537) 4.7%
Cost of sale! 107,13: 100,86¢ (6,269) (5.89%
Gross profil $ 53,82t $ 52,55t $(1,270) (2.49%
Gross margit 33.2% 34.2% 0.9%

Net sales decreased $7.5 million, or 4.7%, foryésr ended December 31, 2008 compared to the pdadeDecember 31, 2007. This
decrease was primarily attributable to a decreaseii online sales of $4.4 million, or 3.1%, andearease of $3.1 million, or 19.0%, in our
offline business, which consists of our Kool-Vueftlavholesale operations. Our online business censfgwo sales channels, e-commerce
and online marketplaces. Our e-commerce channkeides a network of e-commerce websites supportezlibgall-center sales agents who
generate cross-sell and up-sell opportunities.ddline marketplaces consist primarily of auctiod ather third-party websites.

E-commerce sales decreased $4.9 million, or 4.6%119.3 million in the year ended December 31 82@impared to $122.6 million in
the year ended December 31, 2007. The total nuofbmir e-commerce orders remained relatively co@sts/ear over year but our average
order value was $128 and $124 for the years enadegmber 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively. The detliaverage order value was primarily
attributable to a reduction in the number of higheltar items ordered and a reflection of unfavégazonomic conditions in the second half of
2008, which has adversely impacted retail salegeireral. During 2009, we plan to expand our prodattgories.

Online marketplace sales increased $0.5 millior2.8%, to $21.0 million for the year ended Decen8%r2008 compared to $20.5
million for the prior year due to more efficient mbandising strategies.

Net sales from our offline business decreased B8libn, or 19.0%, to $13.1 million for the yearasad December 31, 2008, compared to
the prior year. This decrease in net sales wasgpilyrdue to reduced purchases from a significastamer in the second half of 2008. We
anticipate that sales from our wholesale operatigitiontinue to decline as a percentage of nitssim the future.

We have historically experienced seasonality inlmiginess. We expect seasonality to continue urdutears as automobile collisions
during inclement weather create increased demantbiy parts in winter months, and consumers aftetrertake projects to maintain and
enhance the performance of their automobiles irstibemer months. We anticipate that seasonalityowititinue to have a material impact on
our financial condition and results of operatioosthe foreseeable future.

Gross profit was $52.6 million or 34.3% of net sdier the year ended December 31, 2008, compar®83® million or 33.4% of net
sales in the prior year. The 0.9% increase in gmegin for the year ended December 31, 2008 cosdp@arthe prior year was primarily due
lower product costs, and a change in product mhigber margin products, which was partially offsgthigher freight costs. During 2008, we
successfully negotiated improved pricing with oupliers which resulted in lower inventory costartthe previous year. Freight expense as a
percentage of sales increased due to higher fuethatges in the first half of 2008. In 2008, we ex@nced an increase in price competition,
which resulted in increased pressure on our gr@sgins.
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General and Administrative Expense

Year Ended December 31

2007 2008 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
General and administrative expel $18,58: $18,23¢ $ (359 (1.9%
Percent of net sal¢ 11.5% 11.% 0.4%

General and administrative expense decreased $858r0L.9%, for the year ended December 31, 206%eced to the year ended
December 31, 2007 primarily due to the $4.5 milliocurred in settlement and legal fees associaféhdtive securities class action lawsuit in
2007 which was partially offset by a) an increac$108 million in personnel costs related to theng of additional personnel to support our
growth as well as severance expense related togearent changes, $500,000 of which was derived floane-based compensation expense;
b) an increase of $900,000 in accounting, legalathdr professional fees primarily due to costsiired for compliance related matters for
operating as a public company; and c) a $1.1 miliwrease in depreciation and amortization feerimally-developed software that was placed
into production in 2008.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, sharedlzasepensation expense increased by $0.7 milliomguily due to stock options
granted to newly hired personnel. Based on optianstanding as of December 31, 2008, we expeetdognize $6.5 million in additional
expense in the following periods:

Year ending December 31, 20 $2,73¢
Year ending December 31, 20 1,87
Year ending December 31, 20 1,21¢
Year ending December 31, 20 704

$6,53(

Marketing Expense

Year Ended December 31

2007 2008 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Marketing expens $21,55! $22,96¢ $1,41¢ 6.6%
Percent of net sal¢ 13.%% 15.(% 1.6%

Marketing expense increased $1.4 million, or 6.6%%the year ended December 31, 2008 comparecdetgethr ended December 31,
2007. As a percentage of net sales, marketing egpecreased 1.6% to 15.0% for the year ended Dieee8i, 2008 compared to the prior-
year primarily due to $1.7 million of increased gmminel costs in our offshore operations; $600,d00gher depreciation expense; partie
offset by a decrease of $1.1 million in advertisiogts due to our implementation of a more focus®tlefficient paid search strategy.

Fulfillment Expense

Year Ended December 31

2007 2008 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Fulfillment expenst $ 7,551 $ 9,11¢ $ 1,55¢ 20.€%
Percent of net sale 4.7% 5.9% 1.2%

Fulfilment expense increased $1.6 million, or 20,6or the year ended December 31, 2008 compartktprior year. As a percentage
of net sales, fulfillment expense increased 1.2%.88¢6 for the year ended December 31, 2008 prigndtié to a $800,000 increase in
additional payroll related costs, which included@®00 in severance; a $200,000 increase in ospauted fulfillment center costs; and
$500,000 higher depreciation expense.
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Technology Expense

Year Ended December 31

2007 2008 $ Change % Change
‘ (in thousands)
Technology expens $ 1,987 $ 3,647 $1,65¢ 83.2%
Percent of net sal¢ 1.2% 2.4% 1.2%

Technology expense increased $1.7 million, or 83f8%the year ended December 31, 2008 comparttktprior year. The increase in
both periods was due to increased investmentsritegtinology platform with increased headcountaumdourced IT consultants. During 20
we hired additional IT personnel and increasedstment in our overall technology platform to impeasur internal processes, increase
visibility of operating trends, and improve ourgdnig process and warehouse management systems.

Amortization of Intangibles

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 $Change % Change
(in thousands)
Amortization of intangible: $ 8,35( $ 28,32¢ $19,97¢ 239.2%
Percent of net sal¢ 5.2% 18.5% 13.2%

Amortization of intangibles and impairment lossrgmsed $20.0 million, or 239.2%, primarily due tocem-cash impairment charge
during 2008 totaling $4.4 million on goodwill and$%0 million on intangible assets primarily asstaiawith the Partsbin business, which we
acquired in May 2006. For further discussion réfeour ASC 350 (formerly SFAS 142) and ASC 360rtferly SFAS 144) disclosures in the
Critical Accounting Policies section. We estimadgr@egate amortization expense related to thesegilties for the years ending December 31,
2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012 and thereafter to beajppately $600,000, $200,000, $200,000, $200,01D%200,000, respectively.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Year Ended December 31

2007 2008 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Other income (expense), r $ 1,14¢ $ 1,00C $ (14¥¢) (12.9%
Percent of net sale 0.7% 0.7% 0.C%

Other income (expense), net decreased $148,002.9% for the year ended December 31, 2008 comparie prior year primarily di
to $700,000 lower interest income from decreaséstérest rates, which was partially offset by 8&BH00 reduction of interest expense due to
the repayment of approximately $28.0 million of damg-term indebtedness upon completion of ourahgublic offering in February 2007.

Income Tax Provision (Benefit)

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2008 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Income tax provision (benefi $ 53¢ $ (11,82) $(12,36()  (2,297.9%
Percent of net sal¢ 0.2% (7.7% (8.0%

The decrease in income tax provision (benefit)rdythe year ended December 31, 2008 was primariytd the tax effect of the $4.4
million and $19.0 million impairment losses on gaodwill and intangible assets, respectively. Thia temporary timing difference as we
expect to reduce our cash paid for taxes overahmaming asset life of twelve years for tax purgose
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources of Liquidity

We have historically funded our operations fromhcgsnerated from operations, credit facilities,kand stockholder loans, an equity
financing and capital lease financings. We hadalarice outstanding under our bank line of crediindu2008. In connection with the
transition of our commercial banking relationstopatnew bank in the fourth quarter of 2008, we e#ied our line of credit effective
December 31, 2008. No new line of credit was eighétl in 2009.

Cash Flows

We had cash and cash equivalents of $26.3 milkoof danuary 2, 2010, representing a $6.2 milliecrelase from $32.5 million of liquid
assets as of December 31, 2008. The decrease @asluiand cash equivalents as of January 2, 204 @rvaarily due to the purchases of $7.0
million in short-term marketable securities.

Operating Activities

We generated $11.6 million of net cash from opegaéictivities for the fifty-two weeks ended Janu2r2010. The significant
components of cash flows from operating activitiese an increase of $7.6 million in accounts pay&bhccrued expenses; and an increase of
$7.7 million in inventory.

Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities during the fifitye weeks ended January 2, 2010 totaled $18.1amiind was primarily attributable to
purchases of $8.4 million in property and equipmantl the purchases of $11.1 million in short temarketable securities.

Financing Activities

Cash provided in financing activities during thigyfitwo weeks ended January 2, 2010 totaled $0lomiand was attributable to stock
option exercises.

Funding Requirements

We had working capital of $42.0 million as of Jaryu2, 2010, which was primarily due to cash geregtdtom our initial public offering.
The historical seasonality in our business durirgfourth and first calendar quarters of each gaase cash and cash equivalents, inventory
and accounts payable to be generally higher irethearters, resulting in fluctuations in our workirapital. We anticipate that funds generated
from operations and our existing cash balance 6f3million and our $11.1 million in short term rkatable securities will be sufficient to
meet our working capital needs and expected cagigaénditures for at least the next twelve morths. future capital requirements may,
however, vary materially from those now planneaimticipated. Changes in our operating plans, ldh&n anticipated net sales, increased
expenses or other events, including those deschibéisk Factors,” may cause us to seek additiateddt or equity financings in the future.
Financing may not be available on acceptable teoms, timely basis, or at all, and our failuredse adequate capital when needed could
negatively impact our growth plans and our finahe@mdition and results of operations. In additioar $4.3 million (fair value) of ARPS
investments as of January 2, 2010 were classiBddray-term investments as a result of failed anstiand liquidity issues and we may not
have immediate access to those funds.
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We are consolidating our offices in the Philippimg® one office for operational efficiency in tfiest half of 2010. We expect to spend
$1.5 million in capital improvements to build obetnew facility. We will also continue our techngyainvestments in an effort to improve our
websites, operating systems, and backend platfddimsever the level of investment is expected tdidedo $5.0-$6.0 million annually.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no off-balance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations
The following table sets forth our contractual cabligations and commercial commitments as of Jan2a2010.

Payment Due By Period (in thousands

Less thar More than
Contractual Obligations: Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating lease obligatiol 3,94 74k 2,764 297 13¢

Operating Lease ObligationsCommitments under operating leases relate priyn@ariour lease on our principal facility in Carson
California, our distribution center in Chesapeakieginia, and our call center in the Philippines.

Seasonality

We believe our business is subject to seasonalfitions. We have historically experienced higlaes of body parts in winter months
when inclement weather and hazardous road conditigrically result in more automobile collisionsdean increased demand for body parts.
Partsbin, with its focus on engine parts, perforoegparts and accessories, has historically expagriehigher sales in the summer vacation
months when consumers have more time to undertakéve projects to maintain and enhance the peréoice of their automobiles and the
warmer weather during that time is conducive fatsprojects. We expect the historical seasonaliyds to continue to have a material img
on our financial condition and results of operasion

Inflation

Inflation has not had a material impact upon owraping results, and we do not expect it to hawh sun impact in the near future. We
cannot assure you that our business will not beffeated by inflation in the future.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Market risk represents the risk of loss that magdnt our financial position, results of operationgash flows due to adverse changes in
financial commodity market prices and rates. Weexigosed to market risk primarily in the area adrafpes in United States interest rates and
conditions in the credit markets. We also have serposure related to foreign currency fluctuatioffe. do not have other derivative financial
instruments. Under our current policies, we dousa interest rate derivative instruments to maexgesure to interest rate changes. We
attempt to increase the safety and preservati@uoinvested principal funds by limiting defaulskj market risk and reinvestment risk. We
mitigate default risk by investing in investmenade securities.

Interest Rate Rislll of our investments are classified as availafolesale and therefore reported on the balancet shiewarket value.
Our investment securities consist of high-grade 8RR&s of January 2, 2010, our long-term investmamtiided $4.3 million (fair value) of
investments in ARPS, which consist of high-gradeo(AAA rated) collateralized debt obligations isduby municipal and state agencies. Our
ARPS have an interest rate that is reset in shtetials through auctions. The recent conditiorthénglobal credit markets have prevented
some investors from liquidating their holdings dRRS because the amount of securities submitteshferhas exceeded the amount of purc
orders for these securities. If there is insuffitidgemand for the securities at the time of aniangcthe auction may not be completed and the
interest rates may be reset to predetermined higites. When auctions for these securities fadl itlvestments may not be readily convertible
to cash until a future auction of these investmenssiccessful or they are redeemed or maturkel€tedit ratings of the security issuers
deteriorate and any decline in market value isrd@teed to be other-than-temporary, we would be ireguto adjust the carrying value of the
investment through an impairment charge.

On February 13, 2008, we were informed that theas insufficient demand at auctions for four of bigh-grade ARPS, representing
approximately $7.8 million. As a result, these etfiéel securities are currently not liquid and thenest rates have been reset to the
predetermined higher rates. For the fifty-two weekded January 2, 2010 we have received partiahmptions at par on three of our four
ARPS totaling $2.2 million with a remaining prinelbalance on our ARPS of $4.4 million.

In the event we need to access the funds thahame illiquid state, we will not be able to do sithout the possible loss of principal, until
a future auction for these investments is successtiney are redeemed by the issuer. At this tima@nagement has not obtained sufficient
evidence to conclude that these investments areifegpor that they will not be settled in the shert, although the market for these
investments is presently uncertain. If we are unébisell these securities in the market or theynat redeemed, then we may be required to
hold them indefinitely. We do not have a need tweas these funds for operational purposes forateséeable future. We will continue to
monitor and evaluate these investments on an ogdusis for impairment or for a short-term to Idegm reclassification. Based on our abi
to access our cash and other short-term investimamt&xpected cash flows, and our other sourceagif, we do not anticipate that the
potential illiquidity of these investments will afft our ability to execute our current business pttowever, due to the illiquidity of the mark
we have recorded $86,000 of unrealized losses bpmwestment portfolio as of January 2, 2010.

Foreign Currency RislkOur purchases of auto parts from our Asian supphee denominated in U.S. Dollars and a chandeeifidreign
currency exchange rates could impact our prodwstsaaver time. Our financial reporting currencyhis U.S. Dollar and changes in exchange
rates significantly affect our reported results andsolidated trends. For example, if the U.S. &oNeakens year-over-year relative to
currencies in our international locations, our adidated net sales, gross profit, and operatingrgps will be higher than if currencies had
remained constant. Likewise, if the U.S. Dollaestithens year-over-year relative to currenciesiimirernational locations, our consolidated
net sales, gross profit, and operating expenseédgibwer than if currencies had remained constaat operating expenses in the Philippines
are generally paid in Philippine Pesos and asxbbange rate fluctuates, it adversely or favoralyacts our operating results. In light of the
above, we believe that a fluctuation of 10% inBeso/U.S. Dollar exchange rate would have appraeima $0.2 million impact on our
operating expenses for the fifty-two weeks endedidey 2, 2010. Our Canadian website sales are deated in Canadian Dollars; however,
fluctuations in exchange rates from these operatioould have only a nominal impact on our operatesplts. We also believe it is important
to evaluate our operating results and growth ragésre and after the effect of currency changes.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements required by this lteme3sat forth in Part IV, Item 15 of this report earé hereby incorporated into this Item 8
by reference. The quarterly financial informati@guired by this Item 8 is set forth in Item 7 abtheport and is hereby incorporated into this
Item 8 by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresydesi to provide reasonable assurance that infoomagiquired to be disclosed in
reports filed with the SEC under the Securitieshgxge Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Aisttgcorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the specified time periods, #rad such information is accumulated and commuedtto management, including its Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, gspeopriate, to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure. Our management, with
the participation of our Chief Executive Officerda@hief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiges of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of January 2, 2010 pursuant to Ralelh and 15d-15 of the Exchange Act. Based oretfatiation, the CEO and CFO have
concluded that, as of such date, our disclosur&agrand procedures were effective to meet theativies for which they were designed and
generate at the reasonable assurance level.

Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934raended). We assessed the effectiveness of eun@htcontrol over financial reporting as
of January 2, 2010, based on the “Internal Contrdhtegrated Framework” issued by the Committe8pdnsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (the “COSO framework”). Thisessment was conducted utilizing our documentatigrolicies and procedures, risk
control matrices, gap analysis, key process walktthhs and management’s knowledge of and interaetith its controls and testing of our
key controls.

However, management does not expect that our disidacontrols and procedures or our internal cootrer financial reporting will
prevent or detect all error and fraud. Any congydtem, no matter how well designed and operagduhsed upon certain assumptions and can
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assuraratétthobjectives will be met. Further, no evaloatof controls can provide absolute assurance
that misstatements due to error or fraud will ntwr or that all control issues and instancesaidy if any, within the Company have been
detected.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combinatibdeficiencies, in internal control over finarlaieporting, such that there is
reasonable possibility that a material misstatero&éptr annual or interim financial statements wit be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Based on such assessment and criteria, Brapaghas concluded that the internal controls imancial reporting were effective, and
were operating at the reasonable assurance leeélJasuary 2, 2010.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not includeatiastation report of our registered public actimgnfirm regarding internal control
over financial reporting. Managemesteport was not subject to attestation by oursteged public accounting firm pursuant to temporaigs
of the SEC that permit us to provide only managetaeaport in this Annual Report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company monitors and evaluates on an ongoisig fia internal control over financial reportimgdrder to improve its overall
effectiveness. In the course of these evaluatitvesCompany modifies and refines its internal psses as conditions warrant. As required by
Rule 13a-15(d), the Company’s management, incluttiegChief Executive Officer and the Chief Finah€#ficer, also conducted an
evaluation of the Company’s internal control oMeafhcial reporting to determine whether any chamgesirred during the quarter ended
January 2, 2010 that have materially affected rer@asonably likely to materially affect, the Camp’s internal control over financial
reporting. Based on that evaluation, there has heesuch change during the period covered by dpert.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

(a) Identification of DirectorsThe information under the caption “Election of [iters,” appearing in the Proxy Statement (“Proxy
Statement”), is hereby incorporated by referente Froxy Statement will be filed with the SEC withi20 days from the end of fiscal year
20009.

(b) Identification of Executive Officers and Certaig@ficant Employeed he information under the caption “Executive Conmgaion
and Other Information—Executive Officers,” appegrin the Proxy Statement, is hereby incorporatedefigrence.

(c) Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Put. information under the caption “Section 16(ah&f&ial Ownership Reporting
Compliance,” appearing in the Proxy Statementgeigby incorporated by reference.

(d) Code of Ethics The information under the caption “Corporate Goaace — Code of Ethics and Business Conduct,”appgin the
Proxy Statement, is hereby incorporated by referenc

(e) Board CommitteesThe information under the caption “Corporate Gaaeice — Board Committees and Meetings,” appeainitige
Proxy Statement, is hereby incorporated by refexrenc

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information under the caption “Executive Comgaion and Other Information”, appearing in thexyrStatement, is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information under the captions “Equity CompéiosaPlans” and “Ownership of Securities by Cert@eneficial Owners and
Management,” appearing in the Proxy Statementdsrporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information under the captions “Corporate Goaece — Director Independence” and “Certain Retetigps and Related
Transactions,” appearing in the Proxy Statemeritgcisrporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information under the caption “Fees Paid tepehdent Registered Public Accounting Firm,” apipgan the Proxy Statement, is
incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statementg he following financial statements of U.S. Auto BaXetwork, Inc. are included in a separate sedaifahis
Annual Report on Form 10-K commencing on the pagisenced below:

Page
Report of Ernst & Young LLP, independent registegpedlic accounting firn F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 2, 2td®acember 31, 20( F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for eacheoftiree years in the period ended January 2, F-3
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for each of the three years in the periodeehJanuary 2, 201 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheofttree years in the period ended January 2, F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-6

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because they daneqoired or the required information is includeaur consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits.
The following exhibits are filed herewith or incomated by reference to the location indicated below

Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Acquisition Agreement dated May 19, 2006 by and @gnd.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Partsbin,,lon.the one
hand, and The Partsbin.com, Inc., All OEM Parts,,IRower Host, Inc., Auto Parts Web Solutions,,Iké¢eb Chat
Solutions, Inc., Everything Internet, LLC, Richd&dPine, Lowell E. Mann, Brian Tinari and Todd Daegy, on the other
hand

3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incatjmor of U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. as filedlwihe Delawar:
Secretary of State on February 14, 2007 (incorpdrby reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Annual Reporform 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission onl&p12007)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of U.S. Auto Parts Newnc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit &2he Annual
Report on Form 1-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgiampril 2, 2007,
4.1* Specimen common stock certifici
10.1+* U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. 2006 Equity IncentRian
10.2+* Form of Stock Option Agreement under the U.S. ARaots Network, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Pl
10.3+* Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option under th&SUAuto Parts Network, Inc. 2006 Equity IncentRlan.
10.4+* Form of Acceleration Addendum to Stock Option Agneait under the U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. 2006igy Incentive
Plan.
10.5+* U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. 2007 Omnibus Plan famohs of agreemen
10.8+* Offer Letter of Employment dated May 19, 2006 bd &etween U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Richrirng
10.9+* Non-Competition Agreement dated May 19, 2006 by andrajiid.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Richard Pirayell
Mann, Brian Tinari and Todd Daughe
10.10* Shareholde' s Release dated May 19, 2006 by and between U 18.Parts Network, Inc. and Richard P
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Exhibit No

10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

10.26*
10.27t*

10.291*
10.32+*
10.33+
10.35*
10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39+

10.40+

10.41+

10.42+

10.43

Description
Commercial Lease Agreement dated January 1, 20@hthpetween U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and@Chie
Enterprises, LLC, amended effective February 10z

Standard Industrial/lCommercial Mi-Tenant Leas— Gross dated October 1, 2006 by and between U.S Paitts
Network, Inc. and Margay 2003, LLC, amended effectebruary 1, 201

Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Leasesress dated July 12, 2004 by and between U.S. Ratts Network,
Inc. and Isadore Socransky, amended effective epry 201(

Lease dated November 30, 2004 by and between Wi8. Parts Network, Inc. and William Co:

Catalog License and Parts Purchase Agreement Natesinber 20, 2006 by and between U.S. Auto Parte/dtg, Inc. and
WORLDPAC, Inc.

Services Agreement dated October 3, 2006 by avadest U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Efficienpriier, Inc.
Offer Letter of Employment dated January 1, 200@&bg between U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Haoudkhavar
Form of Indemnification Agreement for Officers aDdectors

Deeds of Assignment and Declarations of Trust eteeL8eptember 2006 regarding MBS Tek Corporatiockstransfel

Purchase Agreement, dated April 20, 2007, by anohgntd.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc., Access Worldw
Communications, Inc. and their respective Philippaffiliates (incorporated by reference to Exhitfitl to the Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiotMay 15, 2007

Lease Agreements, dated August 8, 2007, by and g@i@8 Tek Corporation and Roshan Commercial Cango¢porated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Reépor Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exaj@Commission on
August 2, 2007

Form of Supplier Agreement entered into between U.S. Auto Parts Bidtwnc. and certain of its U.S. based supplie
primary drop-ship vendors (incorporated by refeeeticExhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on For@rQ filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 27%

Employment Agreement dated October 12, 2007 betwe8nAuto Parts Network, Inc. and Shane Evangélisorporated
by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Current Reporform 8-K filed with the Securities and Excha@m@mmission on
October 17, 2007

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated October2l)7 between U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. anch8Hhzavangelist
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to therént Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securiteesd Exchange
Commission on October 17, 20C

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated October2l®)7 (performance grant) between U.S. Auto Parts/di&, Inc.
and Shane Evangelist (incorporated by referen&xiabit 99.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-Kdilith the Securities
and Exchange Commission on October 17, 2

2007 New Employee Incentive Plan (incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 99.5 to the Current Report om#8-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Octobe2d07)

Lease Agreement, dated October 11, 2007, by aneketMBS Tek Corporation and Averon Holding Corpiora
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to theaferly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Sedestand Exchange
Commission on November 14, 20(
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Exhibit No

Description

10.44+

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48+

10.49

10.50+

10.51

10.52+

10.53+

10.54+

10.55

10.56

10.63+

211
23.1
311

31.2

Employment Agreement, dated April 3, 2008, betwi#senCompany and Aaron Coleman (incorporated byeafs to Exhibi
10.1 to the Current Report on Fori-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarmApril 3, 2008}

Support Continuity Agreement, dated April 28, 2008tween the Company and Alexander Adegan (incatpdrby referenc
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on For-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommisgiarApril 28, 2008’

Consulting Agreement, dated April 28, 2008, amdrgg@ompany, uParts.com, Inc. and Alexander Adegaorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current ReporfForm 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange @ussion on April 28,
2008)

Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement, dated April 2808, between the Company and Alexander Adeganrfiocated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current ReporfFomm 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange @assion on April 28,
2008)

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated May 19)&y and between the Company and Shane Evangelist
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ther€nt Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securiteesd Exchange
Commission on May 15, 200

Stipulation of settlement in the matter entitledré U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. Securities Latign, Case No. CV (-203(-
GW (JC) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 11@.the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with ®ecurities and
Exchange Commission on November 6, 2C

Separation Agreement and Release of Claims, datedbber 9, 2008, between the Company and MichddGlane
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ther€nt Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securitéesd Exchange
Commission on December 9, 20(

Consulting Agreement, dated December 9, 2008, katwlee Company and Michael J. McClane (incorporbteceference t
Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on For-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarDecember 9, 200

Employment Agreement, dated February 16, 2009 mitlee Company and Theodore Sanders (incorporgtegfdérence to
Exhibit 10.62 to the Current Report on For-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commis&arFebruary 17, 200!

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated Februa@y2D09, between the Company and Theodore Sarideosgorated
by reference to Exhibit 10.63 to the Current ReparfForm 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchaf@®mmission on
February 17, 200¢

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (performance gratted February 16, 2009, between the Companyrhaddore
Sanders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@a#e Current Report on Form 8-K filed with thecBrities and Exchange
Commission on February 17, 20(

Commercial Lease Agreement dated December 16, 2p@8d between U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. andlésindian
River, LLC

Commercial lease dated January 7, 2010 by and batWeS. Autoparts Network Philippines Corporation &obinsons Lan
Corporation

2010 Base Salaries and Target Bonuses of certh@eisf (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@ e Current Report ¢
Form &K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommisgsiarDecember 29, 200

Subsidiaries of U.S. Auto Parts Network, |
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking

Certification of the principal executive officerqired by Rule 13-14(a) or 15-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1€
as amende

Certification of the principal financial officergeired by Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the S¢i@srExchange Act of 1934,
as amende
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Exhibit No. Description

32.1

32.2

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer reqgedt by 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursa&édedtion 906 of th
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer reged by 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursaéedtion 906 of th
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of the sammber from the registration statement on Fo-1 of U.S. Auto Parts Network, In
(File No. 33:-138379) initially filed with the Securities and Evange Commission on November 2, 2006, as amel!

Indicates a management contract or compensatonyqslarrangemer

U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. has been grantedidenfial treatment with respect to certain portiohthis exhibit (indicated b
asterisks), which have been separately filed withSecurities and Exchange Commiss
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report on
Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undgrsd, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 12, 201 U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC.

By: /s/ Shane Evangel
Shane Evangelis
Chief Executive Office

POWER OF ATTORNEY

We, the undersigned officers and directors of W80 Parts Network, Inc., do hereby constitute apdoint Shane Evangelist and
Theodore Sanders, and each of them, our true aridllattorneys-in-fact and agents, each with fuiimer of substitution and resubstitution, for
him and in his name, place and stead, in any drdphcities, to sign any and all amendments ®réport, and to file the same, with exhibits
thereto, and other documents in connection thehewiith the Securities and Exchange Commissiomtgrg unto said attorneys-in-fact and
agents, and each of them, full power and authteiyo and perform each and every act and thingisigwr necessary to be done in and about
the premises, as fully to all intents and purpaseke might or could do in person, hereby, ratffyand confirming all that each of said
attorneys-in-fact and agents, or his substitutsubistitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be dongitiye hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report on Form 10-K has bsgned below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant in the capecdind on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date
/s/ Shane Evangeli Chief Executive Officer and Director March 12, 201(
Shane Evangeli: (principal executive officer
/s/ Theodore Sanders Chief Financial Officer March 12, 2010
Theodore Sande (principal financial and accounting office
/s/ Robert J. Majtele
Robert J. Majtele Chairman of the Boar March 12, 201(
/s/ Joshua L. Berman
Joshua L. Berma Director March 12, 201(
/sl Fredric W. Harma
Fredric W. Harmai Director March 12, 201(
/s/ Sol Khazan
Sol Khazan Director March 12, 201(
/s/ Warren B. Phelps Il
Warren B. Phelps Il Director March 12, 201(
/s/ Jeffrey A. Schwart
Jeffrey A. Schwart. Director March 12, 201(
/s/ Ellen F. Siminoff
Ellen F. Siminoft Director March 12, 201(
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineet of U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and sliadges (the Company) as of
December 31, 2008 and January 2, 2010, and thedetansolidated statements of operations, stodkhslequity and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended January 2,. Z0#ke financial statements are the responsilifithe Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamlogUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform aih @futhe Company’s internal control over finanaiaporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financigbogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasare appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company’s internal contrarofinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesréxiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusms and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarsg significant estimates made by managementeaaidating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referr@adlbove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of U.S.
Auto Parts Network, Inc. and subsidiaries at Decem®i, 2008 and January 2, 2010, and the consetidasults of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the plegimded January 2, 2010, in conformity with U.Segally accepted accounting principles.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Los Angeles, California
March 12, 2010
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U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data and per share)data

December 31
January 2,
2008 2010
Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 32,47 $ 26,25:
Shor-term Investment — 11,07:
Accounts receivable, n 1,35 3,38t
Inventory, ne 10,91( 18,61(
Deferred income taxe 2,09t 1,51
Other current asse 2,09( 3,14¢
Total current asse 48,92! 63,97¢
Property and equipment, r 8,20: 12,40¢
Intangible assets, n 3,02¢ 3,11«
Goodwill 9,77: 9,77:
Deferred income taxe 14,06! 10,98¢
Investment: 6,351 4,26¢
Other noncurrent asse 94 98
Total asset $ 90,43( $104,61:
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 5,702 $ 11,37:
Accrued expense 5,66: 8,03¢
Capital leases payak 47 —
Other current liabilitie: 1,49¢ 2,51¢
Total current liabilities 12,90¢ 21,927
Total liabilities 12,90¢ 21,927
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder equity:
Common stock, par value $0.001; 100,000,000 sleart®rized at December 31, 2008 and Janug
2010; 29,846,757 and 29,893,631 shares issuedwsthioding as of December 31, 2008 and
January 2, 2010, respective 30 30
Additional paic-in capital 146,40¢ 150,08
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) inc¢ (88) 84
Accumulated defici (68,829 (67,51)
Total stockholder equity 77,52: 82,68}
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 90,43( $104,61:

See accompanying notes.
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U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Net sales
Cost of sale!
Gross profil
Operating expense
General and administrative(
Marketing(1)
Fulfillment(1)
Technology(1
Amortization of intangibles and impairment Ic
Total operating expens
(Loss) income from operatiol
Other income (expense
Other income
Interest income, ne
Total other income, n¢
Income (loss) before income tax
Income tax provision (benefi
Net (loss) incomi

Basic net (loss) income per shi
Diluted net (loss) income per sh

Shares used in computation of basic net (lossnigcper shar
Shares used in computation of diluted net (loss)rime per shar

(1) Includes sha-based compensation expense related to option gemtsllows:

General and administrative expel
Marketing expens

Fulfillment expenst

Technology expens

Total shar-based compensation expel

See accompanying notes.
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52 Weeks Ende

Years Ended December 31, January 2,
2007 2008 2010

$ 160,95 $ 153,42 $ 176,28t
107,13: 100,86 112,41}
53,82¢ 52,55¢ 63,87:
18,58 18,23¢ 19,64(
21,55 22,96¢ 23,41¢
7,557 9,11¢ 11,43°
1,987 3,64% 4,467
8,35( 28,32¢ 661
58,03 82,28: 59,62«
(4,207) (29,729 4,24¢
11 38 2
1,137 962 18¢
1,14¢ 1,00( 191
(3,059 (28,729 4,44(
53¢ (11,82) 3,12:
$  (3,59)) $ (16,906 $ 1,317
$ (0.19) $ (0.57) $ 0.0Z
$ (0.1 $ (0.57) $ 0.0Z
28,274,02 29,846,75 29,851,87
28,274,02 29,846,75 30,809,11
52 Weeks Ende

Years Ended December 31, January 2,

2007 2008 2010

$ 1,64¢ $ 2,181 $ 2,27¢
35¢ 344 43¢
103 14¢ 215
67 227 34E
$ 2,174 $ 2,901 $ 3,27(
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U.S AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated Retained Comprehensive
Other Earnings Total
Preferred Stock Common Stock Additional Comprehensive  (Accumulated  Stockholders’  Income (Loss)
Paid-in- for the
Shares Amount Shares Amount  Capital Income (Loss) Deficit) Equity Period
Balance, December 31, 20C 11,055,42 11 15,199,67 15 68,90¢ 5 (48,325 20,61:
Net loss — — — — — — (3,597 (3,597 $ (3,597)
Issuance of shares in
connection with IPO, net
of fees — — 8,000,00! 8 71,537 — — 71,54¢
Conversion of preferred stor (11,055,42) (1) 6,633,25! 7 4 — — —
Issuance of shares
connection with exercise
of stock option: — — 13,83(C — 94 — — 94
Shar-based compensatic — — — — 2,682 — — 2,682
Effect of changes in foreign
currencies — — — — — 307 — 307 307
Total comprehensive lo $ (3,290
Balance, December 31, 20C — —  29,846,75 30 143,22! 312 (51,927 91,64
Net loss — — — — — — (16,90¢) (16,90 $ (16,900
Shar-based compensatic — — — — 3,18¢ — — 3,18¢
Unrealized loss on
investments, net of
tax of $59 — — — — — (90) — (90 (90
Effect of changes in foreign
currencies — — — — — (310 — (310 (310
Total comprehensive lo: $ (17,300
Balance, December 31, 20C — $ — 29,846,75 $ 30 $146,40¢ $ (88) $ (68,82 $ 77,52:
Net Income — — — — — — $ 1317 $ 1317 % 1,317
Issuance of shares
connection with stock
option exercist 46,87 162 162
Shar-based compensatic — — — — 3,51/ — — 3,51«
Unrealized gain on
investments, net of
tax of $24 19 19 19
Effect of changes in foreign
currencies 1532 152 152
Total comprehensive incon $ 1,48¢
Balance, January 2, 201( — $ — 29,89363 $ 30 $150,08: $ 84 $ (67,51) $ 82,68

F-4



Table of Contents

U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

52 Weeks Ende

Years Ended December 31, January 2,
2007 2008 2010
Operating activities
Net (loss) incomt $ (3,597) $ (16,90¢) $ 1,311
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to rehcprovided by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,46¢ 3,674 4,91(
Amortization of intangible: 8,35( 4,95¢ 661
Impairment loss on goodwill and intangib — 23,36¢ —
Non-cash interest expen 273 — —
Loss from disposition of asse — 26 —
Shar-based compensatic 2,17¢ 2,901 3,27(
Deferred income taxe (1,756 (11,709 3,634
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivable, n (11¢) 1,55: (2,030
Inventory, ne: (2,399 28C (7,700
Prepaid expense and other current as (641) (300) (1,055
Other noncurrent asse 1,79( 15 (©)]
Accounts payable and accrued expet 5,061 (5,000 7,56(
Other current liabilitie: (1,025) 13C 1,028
Net cash provided by operating activit 9,58¢ 2,99¢ 11,587
Investing activities
Additions to property and equipme (5,02%) (4,33)) (8,400
Acquisition of assembled workforce and other intbles (1,29¢) (641) (739
Proceeds from sale of marketable secur 74,44 21,65( 2,15C
Purchases of marketable securi (97,09) (5,500 (11,090
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi (28,97)) 11,17¢ (18,079
Financing activities
Payments on credit line, net of proce (2,000 — —
Payments made on notes payz (32,000 (2,000 —
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of ofiieg costs 71,53 — —
Payments of shc-term financing (56) (75) 47
Proceeds from sale of common stock and exercis®ok option: 94 — 162
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 37,57¢ (1,075 11F
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 27 (25) 15¢&
Net change in cash and cash equival 18,21¢ 13,07« (6,2272)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 1,18: 19,39¢ 32,47:
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $ 19,39¢ $ 32,471 $ 26,25
Supplemental disclosure of r-cash financing activities
Accrued asset purchas — 527 451
Unrealized (loss) gain on investme — (149 19
Cash paid during the period fc
Interest $  25: $ 10z $ 2
Income taxe: 3,44¢ 87 58¢

See accompanying notes.
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U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policieand Nature of Operations

U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. (including its subaites, the “Company”s a distributor of aftermarket auto parts and asodes and we
established in 1995. The Company entered the e-evoensector by launching its first website in 2@0@ currently derives the majority of its
revenues from online sales channels. The Compdlsyitseproducts to individual consumers througheawork of websites and online
marketplaces. The Company’s flagship websitesaratéd atvww.autopartswarehouse.candwww.partstrain.com and the corporate
website is located atww.usautoparts.net

The Company’s products consist of body parts, enpgarts, performance parts and accessories. Thedaots category is primarily
comprised of parts for the exterior of an autommb®ur parts in this category are typically reptaeat parts for original body parts that have
been damaged as a result of a collision or thr@egteral wear and tear. The majority of these prsdaie sold through our websites. In
addition, we sell an extensive line of mirror protiy including our own private-label brand calledakVVue™, which are marketed and sold as
aftermarket replacement parts and as upgradessingxparts. The engine parts category is comg@rigeengine components and other
mechanical and electrical parts, which are oftéarred to as hard parts. These parts serve aegpént parts for existing engine parts and are
generally used by professionals and dypeitiselfers for engine and mechanical maintenanderepair. We offer performance versions of v
parts sold in each of the above categories. Pedoce parts and accessories generally consist tf that enhance the performance of the
automobile, upgrade existing functionality of adfie part or improve the physical appearance onfwot of the automobile.

The Company is a Delaware C corporation and isdugatered in Carson, California. The Company alodmployees located in
Nashville, Tennessee, Lenexa, Kansas, and Chesgpéiatinia, as well as in the Philippine

Change in Fiscal Year

The Company changed its fiscal year from a calepdar ending on December 31 to a 52/53 week figeal ending on the first Saturday
following December 31. The change in the Compafigtsal year took effect on January 1, 2009; thersfthere was no transition period in
connection with this change in the Company'’s figeslr end. As a result, the first, second, third fourth quarters of 2009 consisted of the
thirteen weeks ended April 4, 2009, July 4, Octdhe2009, and January 2, 2010 respectively. Tisg econd, third, and fourth quarters of
2008 consisted of the three months ended MarcB@18, June 30, September 30 and December 31, 2008.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting prirespl“US GAAP”) requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfeetttae reported amounts of assets and liakslisied disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeamsl the reported amounts of revenues and expdunsag the reporting period. Significant
estimates made by management include, but arénmiteedi to, the valuation of investments, valuatafrinventory, valuation of deferred tax
assets and liabilities, estimated useful livesropprty, equipment and software, valuation of igthle assets, including goodwill,
recoverability of software development costs, vaumof sales returns and allowances, and the atgnoollection of accounts receivables.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all money market funds and-¢&rm marketable securities purchased with pabmaturities of ninety days or
less to be cash equivalents.
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U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of financial instruments, whicblude cash and cash equivalents, marketableifesuaccounts receivable, accounts
payable and borrowings, approximates fair valueestember 31, 2008 and January 2, 2010 due togheit-term maturities and the relatively
stable interest rate environment.

Accounts Receivable and Concentration of Credit Ris

Accounts receivable are stated net of allowanceldobtful accounts. The allowance for doubtful asds is determined primarily on the
basis of past collection experience and general@o@ conditions. The Company determines termscanditions for its customers primarily
based on the volume purchased by the customenroastcreditworthiness and past transaction histing. allowance for doubtful accounts
totaled $115,000 and $135,000 at December 31, a68&8anuary 2, 2010, respectively.

Concentrations of credit risk are limited to thetomer base to which the Company’s products ack $ble Company does not believe
significant concentrations of credit risk exist.

Marketable Securities and Investments

Marketable securities and investments are compaéetbsed-end funds primarily invested in AuctiRate Preferred Securities
(“ARPS"), Certificates of Deposit, Municipal Bondmd US Treasuries. The underlying investmentsRP& are tax-exempt municipal bonds
with maturities of thirty or more years, for whitthe interest rates are reset through a “Dutch anitgvery seven days. In accordance with
ASC 320Investments — Debt and Equity Securiffesmerly referenced as Statement of Financial Antimg Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115, “
Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Bg8iecurities”) and based on the Company’s ability to market seltithese instruments,
the Company classifies ARPS as available-for-satecarries them at fair value. US Treasuries assified as short-term investments with
maturities of less than 12 months and it is therition of management to hold these securities toinitya

During the twelve months ended December 31, 20@7¢carrying amount of the investment in ARPS apipnaked fair value due to the
rapid turnover of the portfolio and the highly-ligunature of these investments which are classditharketable securities. Therefore, there
were no significant realized or unrealized holdiains or losses. However, in 2008, the Companyodisted the fair value of the investment
for illiquidity in the market as further describ&dNote 2, under the captionFinancial Assets Valued on a Recurring Bdsig 2009 there we
a substantial increase in liquidity which was ewiced by redemptions of $2.2 million (33% of thergeag amount at December 31, 2008
balance).

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment

All of the Company’s marketable securities and gtaeents are subject to a periodic impairment revidve Company recognizes an
impairment charge when a decline in the fair valfigs investments below the cost basis is judgelket other-than-temporary. The Company
considers various factors in determining whetheetmgnize an impairment charge, including the tlerng time and extent to which the fair
value has been less than the Company’s cost Itlasipancial condition and near-term prospecthefinvestee, and the Compasintent ant
ability to hold the investment for a period of timefficient to allow for any anticipated recovenythe market value. No other-than-temporary
impairment charges were recorded on any investnumisg the years ended December 31, 2008 and 3aBu2010. In February 2008,
certain ARPS held by the Company failed at auctiasslescribed more fully in Note 2, under the ioat Financial Assets Valued on a
Recurring Basi¢'.

Inventory

Inventories consist of finished goods availabledale and are stated at the lower of cost or masdet, determined using the first in,
first out (“FIFO”) method. The Company purchaseseimory from suppliers both domestically and in&ionally, and routinely enters into
supply agreements with U.S. based suppliers argdiitgary drop-ship vendors. The Company believesits products are generally available
from more than one supplier and seeks to maintaitiipie sources for its products, both internatibnand domestically.
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U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

The Company primarily purchases products in bulkngities to take advantage of quantity discountstarassure inventory availability.
Inventory is reported net of inventory reservessiomww moving, obsolete or scrap product, whichestablished based on specific identification
of slow moving items and the evaluation of overktoonsidering anticipated sales levels. Gross itorgninventory reserves and net inventory
at December 31, 2008 and January 2, 2010 arelaw/fol

December 31 January 2,
2008 2010
Gross inventon $ 12,20¢ $19,877
Inventory reserve (1,299 (1,269
Total net inventor $ 10,9U $18,61(
The following table reconciles the inventory reserv
Balance a
Charged tc Balance a
Beginning
Cost or End of
of Period Expenses Deductions Period
(In thousands)
Year Ended December 31, 2C
Inventory reservi $ 60: 64E 47 $ 1,29t
Fifty-two weeks ended January 2, 2(
Inventory reserv $ 1,29t 104 (132) $ 1,267

Website and Software Development Costs

The Company capitalizes certain costs associatddwébsite and software developed for internalasmrding to ASC 350-50
Intangibles— Goodwill and Other — Website Development CH#SC 350-507) (formerly referenced as “Emerginguss Task Force (“EITF”)
No. 0(-2, “ Accounting for Website Development Cdsiad FASB ASC 350-5Inhtangibles — Goodwill and Other —Internal-Use 3@ite
(“ASC 350-40") (formerly referenced as Statement of Position 98Agcounting for the Costs of Computer Software Dipedl or Obtained
for Internal Use”), when both the preliminary project design and tgssitage are completed and management has authtuitieer funding fo
the project, which it deems probable of completiod to be used for the function intended. Cap#dlieosts include amounts directly relate
website and software development such as payrdlpagrollrelated costs for employees who are directly assediwith, and who devote tir
to, the internal-use software project. Capital@atdf such costs ceases when the project is suladhacomplete and ready for its intended use.
The Company capitalized $2.8 million and $5.7 miilduring the year ended December 31, 2008 andtfift weeks ended January 2, 2010,
respectively. These amounts are amortized on @hktrne basis over two to five years once thewafe is placed into use.

Long-Lived Assets and Intangibles

The Company accounts for the impairment and digiposdf long-lived assets, including intangible®@et to amortization, in
accordance with ASC 360 (formerly SFAS No. 144)nislgement assesses potential impairments whenesetsewr changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset mayraecoverable. Impairment losses will be recogphin operating results to the extent that
the carrying value exceeds the discounted futush Baws estimated to result from the use and exsmlisposition of the asset. During 2008,
the Company recorded a non-cash impairment chardengived assets totaling $18.2 million as further dézax in Note 4, under the capt
“ Goodwill and Intangibles. The Company did not recognize any impairmenséssfor the fifty-two weeks ended January 2, 2010.
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U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangibles

The Company accounts for goodwill and indefiniteetl intangible assets in accordance with ASC 380r&rly SFAS No. 142). Under
ASC 350, goodwill and intangible assets with indigdi lives are not amortized but are tested foradimpent annually or more frequently if
events or circumstances occur that would indicatglaction in fair value. In addition, the Compadgntified a single reporting unit (the
Company itself) in accordance with ASC 280.

The goodwill impairment test is a two-step impainthiest. The first step compares the fair valueawfh reporting unit with its carrying
amount including goodwill. The Company estimatesftiir value of the reporting unit based on an eggghting of two market approaches
and an income approach, which utilizes discountéuré cash flows. The market approaches utilizertketanultiples of invested capital from
1) comparable publicly traded companies and 2) @aige transactions. The market multiples from éteeé capital include revenues, total
assets, book equity plus debt and earnings befiteesist, taxes, depreciation and amortization (THBA”). Assumptions critical to the fair
value estimates under the discounted cash flow hiodede discount rates, cash flow projectiongj@cted long-term growth rates and the
determination of terminal values. Management hafopeed a sensitivity analysis on its significaesamptions and has determined that a
change in its assumptions within selected sensittesting levels would not impact its conclusitfrthe carrying amount exceeds fair value,
then the second step of the impairment test iopadd to measure the amount of any impairment loss.

Impairment losses will be recognized in operatiesuits. The Company did not recognize any impaitrtesses for the fifty-two weeks
ended January 2, 2010. During the year ended DeseBilh 2008, the Company recorded a non-cash impaircharge on goodwill and
intangible assets totaling $5.1 million, as furtdescribed in Note 4, under the captioBdodwill and Intangibles. The Company did not
recognize any impairment losses for the year e mber 31, 2007.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from product sabeswhe following four revenue recognition criteasii@ met: persuasive evidence of
an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred @a@ttmmon carrier), the selling price is fixed otedminable, and collectability is reasonably
assured. These criteria follow the Company’s germaticy to recognize revenue according to its phig terms, which are F.O.B. shipping
point. Under this policy, title and risk of losedransferred to the customer upon delivery tactramon carrier, at which time, revenue
is recognized.

The Company evaluates the criteria of FASB ASC 88Revenue Recognition Principal Agent Consideratiémsnerly EITF No. 99-
19, “Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus BlanaAgent), in determining whether it is appropriate to oedt the gross amount of
product sales and related costs or the net amaunéd as commissions. Generally, when the Compatheiprimary party obligated in a
transaction, is subject to inventory risk, haglake in establishing prices and selecting suppl@rbas several but not all of these indicators,
revenue is recorded gross.

Product sales and shipping revenues, net of promaitidiscounts and return allowances, are recondesh the products are shipped and
title passes to customers. Retail items sold ttoonsrs are made pursuant to terms and conditi@iptbvide for transfer of both title and risk
of loss upon delivery to the carrier. Return alloe@s, which reduce product revenue by the Compédigssestimate of expected product
returns, are estimated using historical experiefbe.Company generally requires payment by credd at the point of sale. Amounts recei
prior to when the Company ships goods to customersecorded as deferred revenue.

The Company periodically provides incentive offersts customers to encourage purchases. Suctsaffelude current discount offers,
such as percentage discounts off current purcteasksther similar offers. Current discount offevben accepted by the Compasigustomer:
are treated as a reduction to the purchase pritteeatlated transaction. Current discount offexsiaducement offers are classified as an
offsetting amount in net sales.

Sales discounts are recorded in the period in wiietrelated sale is recognized. Sales returnsilmaiances are estimated based on
historical amounts. Credits are issued to custorfieeneturned products. Credits amounted to $18ltlom, $19.5 million, and $19.0 million fc
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and Jaau2@l0, respectively. The Company’s sales retanmusallowances reserves totaled
$710,000, $662,000, and $957,000 at December 3T, 2D08 and January 2, 2010, respectively.

No customer accounted for more than 10% of the Gyl net sales in the past three years.
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The following table provides an analysis of theerge for sales returns and the reserve for doubtfocbunts:

Balance a Charged tc
Balance a
Beginning Revenue,
Cost or End of
(In thousands) of Period Expenses Deductions Period
Year Ended December 31, 2C
Reserve for sales retur $ 1,40¢ (69€) — $ 71C
Reserve for doubtful accour 24 5) @) 12
Year Ended December 31, 2C
Reserve for sales retur $ 7AC (48) — $ 662
Reserve for doubtful accour 12 11¢ (16) 11F
Fifty-Two Weeks Ended January 2, 2(
Reserve for sales retur $ 662 29t — $ 957
Reserve for doubtful accour 11F 27 @) 13t

Other Income

Other income (expense), net consists primarilyntérest income from investments and interest ex@ensutstanding loan balances and
capital leases.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold consists of the direct costs@ated with procuring parts from suppliers andwging products to customers. These
costs include direct product costs, purchase distspoutbound freight and, warehouse supplies.ddrapany includes freight and shipping
costs in cost of goods sold. Total freight and gimg expense included in cost of goods sold foryters ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and
January 2, 2010 was $19.5 million, $19.3 milliord &19.2 million, respectively.

Marketing

Marketing costs, including advertising, are expensgincurred. The majority of marketing expenggaisl to Internet search engine
service providers and Internet commerce facilimtéor the years ended December 31, 2007, 2008aamdhry 2, 2010, the Company
recognized advertising costs of $11.2 million, $1@illion and $11.4 million, respectively.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expense consist prignafiadministrative payroll and related expensesraimant processing fees, legal and
professional fees, and other administrative costs.

Fulfillment
Fulfillment costs consist primarily of payroll anelated costs associated with warehouse emplofgkity rent, building maintenance,

and other costs associated with inventory manageamehwholesale operations.

Technology

Technology expenses consist primarily of payrotl eglated expenses, and costs associated with dengupport, information
technology, software development and connectivity.
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Comprehensive Income

The Company reports comprehensive income in acoosdaith ASC 22@omprehensive Inconfeormerly SFAS No. 130, Reporting
Comprehensive Inconie Accumulated other comprehensive income inclugetsincome, foreign currency translation adjustraeelated to
the Company’s foreign operations and unrealizedsgand losses from equity investments and invessriemutual funds that hold both debt
and equity securities in various publicly tradedhpanies.

Leases

The Company analyzes lease agreements for opekedisgs capital lease treatment in accordanceA8i@ 840Leasegformerly SFAS
No. 13, Accounting for Lease§. Rent expense for leases designated as opetiat@xgpensed on a straight-line basis over the térine
lease.

Foreign Currency Translation

For each of the Compars/foreign subsidiaries, the functional currencigsgocal currency. Assets and liabilities of faeioperations ai
translated into U.S. Dollars using the current exaje rates, and revenues and expenses are trdristaté).S. Dollars using average exchange
rates. The effects of the foreign currency traimfeadjustments are included as a component ofnagiated other comprehensive income (li
in stockholders’ equity.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC 740Income Taxefformerly SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes’). Under ASC 740, deferred tax assets and liagditire recognized for the future tax consequeattgButable to temporary differences
between the financial statement carrying amouixadting assets and liabilities and their respectax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabi
are measured using enacted tax rates expecteglotagaxable income in the years in which thasaporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. When appropriate, a valuadearve is established to reduce deferred taxsasseich include tax credits and loss carry
forwards, to the amount that is more likely thaih todoe realized.

In 2008 the Company adopted ASC 146ome Taxefformerly referenced as FASB Interpretation No.“4&counting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes—an Interpretation of FASB StateflentL09”). ASC 740 prescribes a recognition threshold angeasurement attribute for
the financial statement recognition and measuremietaix positions taken or expected to be takemtiax return. For those benefits to be
recognized, a tax position must be more-likely-thahto be sustained upon examination by taxingaittes. The amount recognized is
measured as the largest amount of benefit thagteager than 50 percent likelihood of beneglized upon ultimate settlement. As a resulhe
adoption of ASC 740 the Company did not recogningagerial adjustment in the liability for unrecopmil income tax benefits nor
corresponding interest or penalties, however the@2my’s policy is to record interest and penaligsncome tax expense. During 2008, the
Company was under audit by the Internal Revenuei&efor the year ended December 31, 2006 and 28@7qudit was resolved through
payment of a non-material sum of money. The taxg/2805 through 2008 remain open to examinatiothbymajor taxing jurisdictions to
which the Company is subject.
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Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share-based compensatarcordance with ASC 7XBompensation — Stock Compensaffmmmerly SFAS
No. 123" Share-Based Paymef)t which was adopted on January 1, 2006. All stoptions issued to employees are recognized as-bhae
compensation expense in the financial statemesisdoan their respective grant date fair values,amadecognized within the statement of
operations as general and administrative, markefiriijlment or technology, based on employee dépantal classifications.

Under this standard, the fair value of each shaset payment award is estimated on the date of gsarg an option pricing model that
meets certain requirements. The Company currestg the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estinthe fair value of share-based
payment awards, with the exception of options graitbntaining market conditions, which the Compestymates the fair value using a Monte
Carlo model. The determination of the fair valueslbére-based payment awards utilizing the Blaclkelgshand Monte Carlo models is affected
by the Company’s stock price and a number of asiong including expected volatility, expected Jifesk-free interest rate and expected
dividends. As of January 2, 2010, the Company dichave an adequate history of market prices afdtamon stock as the Company only
recently became a public company, and as suchdhg@ny estimates volatility in accordance with ABIB (formerly Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 107) using historical volatilities efmilar public entities. The expected life of theaads is based on a simplified method which
defines the life as the average of the contrad¢aral of the options and the weighted average vggtamiod for all open tranches. The risk-free
interest rate assumption is based on observecsitates appropriate for the terms of awards.diVidend yield assumption is based on the
Company’s expectation of paying no dividends. Ftufes are estimated at the time of grant and eelig necessary, in subsequent periods if
actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

For non-employees, the Company accounts for sheseebcompensation in accordance with ASCEB@aity (formerly EITF No. 96-18, “
Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issue®ther Than Employees for Acquiring or in Conjimeciwith Selling, Goods or Servic”).
Equity instruments awarded to non-employees aregieally reimeasured as the underlying awards vest unlesastr@iinents are fully veste
immediately exercisable and non-forfeitable ondhte of grant.

Segment Data

The Company manages its operations on a consdalil@ss for purposes of assessing performance akiohgioperating decisions.
Accordingly, the Company operates in one reportabgment and reporting revenues by product lirgeographic location is impracticable.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

During the third quarter of 2009, the Company addgtinancial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB&counting Standards
Coadification (“ASC”) Topic 105Generally Accepted Accounting PrinciplgadSC 105”), which identifies the FASB ASC as thagle official
source of authoritative, nongovernmental U.S. GA8tRer than guidance issued by the SEC. The Compampption of the ASC did not he
any impact on the financial statements includeeiner

During the third quarter of 2009, the Company addASC Topic 855 (formerly referenced as StateroéRinancial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 1655ubsequent Events The ASC is the single official source of authoiitat nongovernmental U.S. GAAP, other
than guidance issued by the SEC. The Company’stiatiopf the ASC did not have any impact on theriicial statements included herein. In
February 2010, FASB issued Accounting Standardsatépo. 2010-09, Subsequent Events (Topic 888lendments to Certain Recognition
and Disclosure RequiremertASU No. 2010-09") that removed the requirementlisclose a date through which subsequent evertsiieen
evaluated in issued financial statements. ASU NA0209 is effective as of February 24, 2010 andnmasignificantly impacted the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FASB ASC 805sfBess Combinations” (formerly referenced as SFASIM1 (revised 2007), “
Business Combinatior”), which establishes principles and requiremeatshbw the acquirer of a business recognizes araumnes in its
financial statements the identifiable assets aequithe liabilities assumed, and any non-contmgliiterest in the acquiree. ASC 805 also
provides guidance for recognizing and measuringydawill acquired in the business combination detérmines what information to discl
to enable users of the financial statements touat@lthe nature and financial effects of the bssirm®mbination. This statement applies
prospectively to business combinations for whiahdhbquisition date is on or after the beginnintheffirst annual reporting period beginning
on or after December 15, 2008. We applied ASC 8Cdltacquisitions occurring after January 1, 2009.
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In January 2009, we adopted ASC &20r Value Measurements and Disclosu(Esmerly referenced as Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 157, Fair Valueddurements), which defines fair value, providgamework for measuring fair value,
and expands the disclosures required for fair valeasurements. We elected the deferral allowetidrguidance except as related to certain
intangible assets impaired as of June 30, 200D&tember 31, 2008 as disclosed in Note 2 to theatwolated financial statements.

In 2009, we adopted Accounting Standards Updat&JA 2009-05, Fair Value Measurements (Topic 820)eauring Liabilities at
Fair Value. ASU 2009-5 amends ASC topic 820 by jatiog additional guidance clarifying the measuretradiabilities at fair value. When a
guoted price in an active market for the identiizdility is not available, the amendments reqtirat the fair value of a liability be measured
using one or more of the listed valuation technggiiat should maximize the use of relevant obségviaputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs. The adoption did not have &miahimpact on the Company'’s financial positiorresults from operations.

In 2009, we adopted an update to FASB ASC 320 (#olyn=SP SFAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2) related to ¢segnition and presentation
of other-than-temporary impairments. This updajgaees the existing requirement that managemeattasfas both the intent and ability to
hold an impaired security until recovery with teguirement that management assert: (i) it doetane the intent to sell the security; and (i
is more likely than not it will not have to selktisecurity before recovery of its cost basis. Tiaate also incorporates examples of factors
existing literature that should be considered itredeining whether a debt security is other-thangerarily impaired. The adoption did not
have a material impact on the Company’s finanaiition or results from operations.

In 2009, we adopted an update to FASB ASC topic(@®0nerly FSP SFAS 15%) related to determining fair value when the voduamc
level of activity for the asset or liability havigsificantly decreased and identifying transactitmes are not orderly. This update affirms tha
objective of fair value, when the market for aneas$s not active, is the price that would be reedito sell the asset in an orderly transactior
clarifies and includes additional factors for detaring whether potentially comparative transactiares orderly transactions or transactions that
are not orderly (that is, distressed or forcedl @toption did not have a material impact on then@any'’s financial position or results from
operations.

In April 2008, the FASB issued ASC 3&ttangibles — Goodwill and OthgfASC350”) (formerly referenced as FASB Staff Pmsit
(“FSP”) No. 142-3, ‘Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Aissg ASC 350 amends the factors an entity shouldsizter in
developing renewal or extension assumptions usddtermining the useful life or recognized intamgiassets in accordance with ASC 350.
This new guidance applies prospectively to intalegitssets that are acquired individually or witiraup of other assets in business
combinations and asset acquisitions. ASC 350 ec#ffe for financial statements issued for fisagdns and interim periods beginning after
December 15, 2008. The adoption did not have anahtffect on the Company’s financial position aedults of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued ASC 3bérivatives and HedginfASC 815”) (formerly referenced as Statement ofdficial
Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 16Djsclosures about Derivative Instruments and Heddhativities, an amendment of FASB Statement
No. 133). ASC 815 requires entities that utilize derivatimstruments to provide qualitative disclosuresuaiheir objectives and strategies for
using such instruments, as well as any detailsaxfitrisk-related contingent features containethiwiderivatives. ASC 815 also requires
entities to disclose additional information abdwe amounts and location of derivatives located iwithe financial statements, how the
provisions of ASC 815 have been applied, and thgaththat hedges have on an entity’s financialtfposifinancial performance and cash
flows. ASC 815 is effective for fiscal years anteim periods beginning after November 15, 2008hwarly application encouraged. The
adoption did not have a material effect on the Camyfs financial position and results of operations.

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009R8yenue RecognitidhASC 605”) Multiple Deliverable Arrangementsvhich modifies
the requirements for determining whether a delivierén a multiple element arrangement can be tdeasea separate unit of accounting by
removing the criteria that objective and reliabledence of fair value exists for the undeliveregineénts. The new guidance requires
consideration be allocated to all deliverables dasetheir relative selling price using vendor sfieobjective evidence (VSOE) of selling
price, if it exists; otherwise selling price is dehined based on third-party evidence (TPE) ofreglbrice. If neither VSOE nor TPE exist,
management must use its best estimate of selling (IESP) to allocate the arrangement considerafibe Company will adopt this update
effective January 3, 2010. The Company has not tetegbthe process of evaluating the effects thitr@sult from adopting the amendments
and is therefore unable to disclose the effectsatiapting the amendments in ASU 2009-13 will haréts consolidated financial position and
the results of its operations when such amendnseadaopted.
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Note 2—Investments and Fair Value Measurements
As of January 2, 2010, the Company held the folhgnsecurities and investments, recorded at eitliewélue or cost (in thousands).

Fair Value /
Amortized

Carrying

Cost Gains Losses Value
US Treasury Bills $ 4106 $ 5 $— $ 4,117
Auction Rate Preferred Securities in Municipal &tdte Agencie 4,35( — (86) 4,264
Certificates of Deposit and Municipal Bon 6,98¢ — (24) 6,96(
Total $1544C $ 5 $(110 $ 15,33t

US Treasury Bills are classified as Short-term gtreents with maturities of less than 12 monthsitaistthe intention of Management to
hold these securities to maturity.

In April 2009, the FASB released ASC 8Hair Value Measurements and Disclosurgermerly SFAS No. 157, Fair Value
Measurement”) that defines fair value, establishes a framewforkmeasuring fair value in accordance with U.3A®R, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. Asrafalg 1, 2009, the Company has adopted the prossar all non-financial assets and non-
financial liabilities.

ASC 820 establishes a three-tier fair value hiéngravhich prioritizes the inputs used in measufaigvalue. These tiers include:
. Level 1- defined as observable inputs such as quoted priGedive markets
. Level z- defined as inputs other than quoted prices in actiarkets that are either directly or indirectlgetvable; an

. Level - defined as unobservable inputs in which little ommarket data exists, therefore requiring an emityevelop its ow!
assumptions
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Financial Assets Valued on a Recurring Basis

As of January 2, 2010, the Company held certaiataghat are required to be measured at fair \@iug recurring basis. These assets
included the Company’s financial instruments, idlahg investments associated with auction rate predesecurities (“ARPS”). The Company
measures the following financial assets at faineain a recurring basis. The fair value of thesarfcial assets was determined using the
following inputs at January 2, 2010:

Quoted Prices
in

Active Markets Significant
Other Significant
Total for Observable Unobservable
as of Identical Asset:
January 2, Inputs Inputs
2010 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in thousands
Cash and cash equivale(® $ 26,25 $  26,25! $ — $ =
Shor-term investmen® 6,96¢ 6,96¢ — —
Non-current investments availal-for-sale®) 4,264 — — 4,264
Total $ 37,48( $ 33,21¢ $ — $ 4,26¢

@ cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of monarket funds with original maturity dates of tammonths or less, for which tl

Company determines fair value through quoted markees.
@ Short term investments consist of municipal bormas eertificates of deposit. Sh-term investments are recorded at fair market vi
based on quoted prices of identical assets thdtading in active markets as of the end of théggefior which the values are determin
®  Investments availat-for-sale consists of ARPS. ARPS are-exempt, lon-term variable rate securities tied to s-term interest rate
that are reset through a “Dutch Auction” process ttcurs every seven days. The Company has tlendptparticipate in the auction
and sell ARPS to prospective buyers through a lirdkaler, but does not have the right to put tloeisey back to the issuer. The
investments in ARPS all had AAA credit ratingsta time of purchase and continue to maintain A A®Kredit ratings representing
interests in collateralized debt obligations isshgdnunicipal and state agencies. In the pastatintion process has allowed investors to
obtain immediate liquidity if so desired by sellitige securities at their face amounts. The cudintiptions in the credit markets have
continued to adversely affect the auction marketHese types of securities. ARPS auctions “faitiew there are not enough buyers to
absorb the amount of securities available for &al¢hat particular auction period. HistoricallyR®S auctions have rarely failed since
investment banks and broker dealers have beemgyiiti purchase the securities when investor demasdveak. However, beginning in
mid-February 2008, due to uncertainty in the glalvatlit and capital markets and other factors,stment banks and broker dealers have
been less willing to support ARPS and many ARPSiang have failed. The Company will not be ablatoess non-current investments
until future auctions for these ARPS are succesefulintil the Company sells the securities in@sdary market, which currently is not
active, although there have been certain instaocesdiemptions at par by municipalities throughdénancing of new instrument

As of January 2, 2010, the Company had investedl ipdlion (par value) in ARPS, which are classif@slavailable for sale non-current
investments and reflected at $4.3 million (fairug)l, which includes an unrealized loss of $0.1iamll For the period May 19, 2009 through
January 2, 2010, $2.2 million of investments in ARfad been redeemed. The Company has includewéstments related to ARPS in the
Level 3 category.

Before utilizing Level 3 inputs in its fair valuegasurement, the Company considered significantIl2ebservable inputs of similar
assets in active and inactive markets. The Comgdmygker dealer received estimated market values &n independent pricing service as of
the balance sheet date, which carry these invessna¢ipar value due to the overall quality of theerlying investments and the anticipated
future market for such investments. Further evidancludes the fact that these investments cossisty of collateralized debt obligations
supported by municipal and state agencies; donohtde mortgage-backed securities or student Idems redemption features that call for
redemption at 100% of par value; and have a cuowelit rating of A or AAA.
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However, the fact that there is not an active maikéiquidate these investments was consideredbissifying them as Level 3. Due to the
uncertainty with regard to the shaetrm liquidity of these securities, the Companyed®ined that it could not rely on par value to esent fai
value. Therefore, the Company estimated the fdiregaof these securities utilizing a discountecdhdbsv valuation model as of January 2,
2010. This analysis considered the collateraliratioderlying the security investments, the credithioess of the counterparty, the timing of
expected future cash flows, and the expectatioselearity will have a successful auction or matkgtidity. These securities were also
compared, when possible, to other observable mdetatwith similar characteristics to the secwsitield by the Company.

As a result of the temporary declines in fair vaioiethe Company’s ARPS, which the Company attelub liquidity issues rather than
credit issues, it has recorded an unrealized [6$8.4 million to accumulated other comprehensn@me (loss) in 2009. Due to the
Company'’s belief that the market for these colkteed instruments may take in excess of twelvethoto fully recover, the Company has
classified these investments as non-current anthbagled them in investments on the consolidatddrire sheet at January 2, 2010. As of
January 2, 2010, the Company continues to earrestten all of its ARPS instruments. Any futurectuation in fair value related to these
instruments that the Company deems to be tempdraniyding any recoveries of previous write-downwsuld be recorded to accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss). If the Compagtgrthines that any future valuation adjustment ethsr-thantemporary, it would record
charge to earnings as appropriate. The Compamgytisantain how long it may be required to hold eseburity. However, given the Compasy’
current cash position, liquid cash equivalents exypected cash flow from operations, it believdsag the ability to hold, and intends to
continue to hold the failed ARPS as long-term itmests until the market stabilizes.

The following table presents the Company’s LongrT émvestments measured at fair value on a recub@sis using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) as defined in ASC 820anuary 2, 2010:

Long-Term
Investments

(in thousands

Balance at December 31, 2C $ 6,351
Transfers to Level —

Redemptior (2,150
Recovery of previous wri-downs to other comprehensive inco 63
Balance at January 2, 20 $ 4,26/

Non-Financial Assets Valued on a Non-Recurring Basi

The Company’s long-lived or indefinite-lived intdblg assets are measured at fair value on a nanfieg basis. These assets are
measured at cost but are written down to fair vafugecessary, as a result of impairment.

As of January 2, 2010, the Company’s long-lived euulgfinite-lived intangible assets did not indiat potential impairment under the
provisions of ASC 350 (formerly SFAS 142) and ASED formerly SFAS 144) and, as such, they weremedsured at fair value.

The Company’s long-lived assets and indefinitediiitangible assets were determined to be impaiseof June 30, 2008 and
December 31, 2008, as described in Note 4, unéecdption “Goodwill and Intangible Assets
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Note 3 - Property and Equipment, Net

The Companyg fixed assets consisted of computer softwarer(iatly developed and purchased), machinery andpewgit, furniture an
fixtures, and vehicles, and are stated at costdesgsmulated depreciation and amortization. Deptigei and amortization are provided for in
amounts sufficient to relate the cost of depreei@sd amortizable assets to operations over thmated service lives. Depreciation expense
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2008 anchda@, 2010 was $940,000, $2.0 million and $2.Miani respectively. Software
amortization expense for the years ended Decenthe?0®7, 2008 and January 2, 2010 was $529,000,8illion and $2.9 million,
respectively. The cost and related accumulatededeiion of assets retired or otherwise disposeat®femoved from the accounts and the
resultant gain or loss is reflected in earnings.

Property and equipment consisted of the followihBecember 31, 2008 and January 2, 2010:

December 31 January 2,

2008 2010

(in thousands)

Machinery and equipme| $ 517 $ 6,93¢
Computer software and equipm 8,35¢ 14,23¢
Vehicles 181 20¢
Leasehold improvemen 1,052 1,157
Furniture and fixture 465 52¢
Construction in proces 2,68¢ 4,004
17,91: 27,06¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (9,709 (14,659
Property and equipment, r $ 8,20t $ 12,40¢
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At December 31, 2008 and January 2, 2010, $1.2omiind $858,000, respectively, of the Companytspneperty and equipment were
located in the Philippines. Depreciation of propemd equipment is provided using the straight-tirethod for financial reporting purposes, at
rates based on the following estimated useful lives

<
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Machinery and equipmel

Computer software (purchased and develo

Computer equipmet

Vehicles

Leasehold improvement:

Furniture and fixture

*the estimated useful life is the lesser -5 years or the lease ter
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Note 4 - Goodwill and Intangibles

Goodwill is tested for impairment at a level belthe business segments (referred to as a repontiitl)g There were no changes in the
organizational structure in 2009, and the Compasiyigle reporting segment remained consistent fteprevious years. The Company
performed its annual goodwill impairment testingl @assed the first step of the impairment testtf@wraluation under the income approach,
the Company used a discount rate, which it beliegfiscts the risk and uncertainty related to thejgrted cash flows. Resulting from the
positive operating results and the continuous emean the Company’s stock price in 2009, the Camsanarket capitalization significantly
exceeded the book value of the reporting segmertoilingly, the second step of the impairmentwes not performed. No goodwill was
written off due to impairment as of January 2, 2010

During 2008, the share prices of financial stocksewery volatile and under considerable pressuseistained turbulent markets.
Following the deterioration in economic conditiottee Company’s stock price declined to a leveldathg a market capitalization below book
value during the fourth quarter ended DecembelBQ8. The Company performed the first step of thgairment test and noted that the
carrying value of the single reporting segment egleel its fair value. As such, the Company perforthedsecond step of the impairment test
and recorded an impairment loss of $4.4 milliom&Becember 31, 2008.

Intangibles subject to amortization are expensed simaight-line basis. Amortization expense raato intangibles totaled $8.4 million,
$5.0 million, and $0.7 million for the years end2elcember 31, 2007, 2008 and fifty-two weeks endedidry 2, 2010. Assembled workforce
included in the intangible assets decreased by,$088&nd increased by $10,000 due to foreign cayréioctuations as of December 31, 2008
and January 2, 2010, respectively.

During 2009, the Company acquired certain websitesdomain names for a purchase price of $739d@f0@hich $625,000 was
allocated to amortizable intangibles. The intargy#dsets were valued using a discounted cash flmehand the estimated useful life of the
amortizable assets was determined to be five ygaexzcordance with the guidance provided by ASC @drmerly SFAS 142) and ASC 360
(formerly SFAS 144), the Company did not note esemtchanges in circumstances indicate that thgingrvalue of the intangible assets may
not be recoverable in 2009. Therefore, no impaitness was recognized for intangible assets aamidiary 2, 2010.

During 2008, the Company recorded a non-cash imeait charge totaling $18.4 million related to thengibles associated with the
Partsbin business, which the Company acquired in R0®6. The impairment was comprised of $16.7 onilffor its websites; $0.1 million for
software; $0.9 million for vendor agreements; a@d’$nillion for domain names. The interim impairrheharge was primarily the result of: (i)
the recent deterioration in the economic envirorirae the Company’s stock price, (ii) lower saled profitability which generated losses
from certain Partshin websites, (iii) deficiencieshe software platform also acquired from Partsbind (iv) the termination of volume
discounts and marketing co-ops from certain vergpeements. Given the indicators of impairmenttaedexcess of carrying value over the
undiscounted cash flows associated with thesegittées, the Company utilized a discounted cash #igproach in determining fair value for
both the websites and vendor agreement intanggisets. The decrease in future cash flows fromiceatajuired websites and vendor
agreements resulted in the loliged assets being impaired, as the carrying vafube website assets and vendor agreement assetsded th
fair value of those assets. Fair value is deterchagethe net present value of future projected flagls. The software and domain name assets’
fair value was determined using a relief from réyalpproach which also resulted in a lower faitueathan the carrying value.

During 2008, the Company also recorded a non-gaphirment charge totaling $0.5 million relatedtie assembled workforce, which
the Company acquired in April 2007. The impairmeimrge was primarily the result of a reduction Kigi2008 of the workforce originally
acquired in the Philippines. The Company utilizegalacement cost approach in determining faireahich resulted in a lower fair value
than the carrying value of the asset. The intaegiskets listed below as of December 31, 2008gept¢he adjusted basis after the impairment
loss.
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Intangibles, excluding goodwill, consisted of tkéldwing for the years ended:

December 31, 2008 January 2, 2010
Net Gross Net
Gross Accum. Carrying  Carrying Carrying
Useful Carrying Accum.
Life Amount Amort. Amount Amount Amort. Amount

(in thousands’
Intangible assets subject to amortizati

Websites S5year $ 56€ $ (35 $ 531 $1,191 $ (190 $1,001
Software 2-5year 1,04C (629 41€  1,04C (1,040 —
Vendor agreemen 3 year — — — — — —
Assembled workforc 7 year: 44% — 44% 45E (87) 36¢€
Purchased domain nam 3 year: 178 (170 5 17¢% (175) —

2,22¢ (829 1,397 2,861 (1,497 1,36¢
Intangible assets not subject to amortizat

Domain name indefinite life 1,631 — 1,631 1,74¢ — 1,74¢F
Total $ 3,857 $(82% $3,02¢ $4,60€¢ $(1,497) $3,11¢

The following table summarizes the future estimatedual amortization expense for these assetstiowerext five years:

Years Ending

December 31 (in thousands’
2010 $ 32:
2011 32:
2012 32:
2013 28¢
2014 112
Thereaftel —

Total $ 1,36¢

Note 5 - Line of Credit

At December 31, 2007, the Company had a $7.0 mitimmmitted line of credit agreement with a bantvimterest at 0.25% above the
lender’s reference rate maturing on October 319206ere were no compensating balance requirenaadtsubstantially all the assets of the
Company served as collateral on the line of cré&tbtamounts were outstanding on this line of cratiDecember 31, 2007 and 2008. The
credit agreement contained customary covenantsahming other things, requires compliance withaterfinancial ratios and targets and
restricts the incurrence of additional indebtedn&sg Company was compliant with all loan covenastef December 31, 2007 and 2008. In
connection with the transition of the Company’s ceancial banking relationship to a new bank in twerth quarter of 2008, the line of credit
was cancelled effective December 31, 2008.

Note 6 - Notes Payable

As a component of the purchase price for the aitgqprisof Partsbin, the Company entered into proongsiotes (“Notes”) in the
aggregate principal amount of $5.0 million with 8teckholders of Partsbin. The Notes bore inteaaektBOR and were interest only until
June 2007. Beginning in the quarter ending Jun@07, the Notes were payable in equal quartegtallments until March 31, 2008. The
Notes became due and payable upon the completithredompan’s initial public offering, as defined. The Notegme secured by
substantially all the assets of the Company. Dutfiregyear ended December 31, 2007 and 2008, $4liomand $1.0 million was paid on the
Notes, respectively, with the proceeds from theahpublic offering which occurred on February2®07. There was no outstanding amour
of January, 2, 2010.
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Note 7 — Share-Based Compensation and StockholdeEsquity

The Company adopted the 2007 Omnibus Incentive (@hen‘2007 Omnibus Plan”) in January 2007, whielsdme effective on the
effective date (February 8, 2007) of the registrastatement filed in connection with the Compaiiyisal public offering. Under the 2007
Omnibus Plan, the Company is authorized to isstienllion shares of common stock under variousrimsents plus an automatic annual
increase on the first day of each of the Compafigtal years beginning on January 1, 2008 anthgrah January 1, 2017 equal to (i) the le
of (A) 1,500,000 shares of common stock or (B) fdeecent (5%) of the number of shares of commockstaitstanding on the last day of the
immediately preceding fiscal year or (ii) such E&ssumber of shares of common stock as determipédebCompany’s Board of Directors.
Options granted under the 2007 Omnibus Plan gdpergbire no later than ten years from the datgraht and generally vest over a period of
four years. The exercise price of all option grantsst be equal to 100% of the fair market valu¢hendate of grant. The 2007 Omnibus Plan
provides for automatic grant of options to purche@@mon stock to non-employee directors.

At January 2, 2010, 546,433 shares were availalifure grants under the 2007 Omnibus Plan.

The following table summarizes the Company'’s stogton activity under the 2007 Omnibus Plan:

Weighted Average

Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Shares Exercise Price Term (in years) Intrinsic Value

Options outstanding, December 31, 2| 3,691,65 $ 4.2z 8.67
Granted 1,560,00! $ 2.7z
Exercisec (46,87* $ 3.1¢
Expired (184,18: $ 5.7¢
Forfeited (229,23: $ 4.0z
Options outstanding, January 2, 2( 4,791,36! $ 3.6¢ 8.5¢ $ 8,733,23
Vested and expected to vest at January 2, 3,578,43. $ 3.77 8.5C $ 7,513,41.
Options exercisable, January 2, 2( 1,549,65 $ 4.64 8.0z $1,982,21!
Options exercisable, December 31, 2 794,65: $ 5.62 7.2 $ —
Options exercisable, December 31, 2 — $ — — $ —

The weighted-average fair value of options grauli@dng the years ended December 31, 2007 and 20@Bthe fifty-two weeks ended
January 2, 2010 was $6.66, $1.20 and $1.18, regphrct

The intrinsic value of stock options at the datexdrcise is the difference between the fair valuthe stock at the date of exercise and
the exercise price. During the fifty-two weeks ethdanuary 2, 2010, 46,875 shares were exercisest thnel 2007 Omnibus Plan. Aggregate
intrinsic value is calculated as the differencensetn the exercise price of the underlying awardstha fair value price of the Company’s
common stock for options that were in-the-monegfakanuary 2, 2010.
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Additional information with respect to outstandiogtions under the 2007 Omnibus Plan as of Jany&910 is as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average
Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining

Contractual Term Average Average
Exercise Exercise

Range of Exercise Price Options Outstanding (in years) Price Options Exercisable Price
$1.15-$1.31 110,00( 9.17 $ 1.31 0 $ 0.0C
$1.5¢-$1.59 725,00( 9.01 $ 1.5¢ 0 $ 0.0C
$1.74$2.14 863,43 9.0¢ $ 1.8¢ 145,10¢ $ 1.7¢
$3.0¢-$3.24 982,66¢ 8.41 $ 3.12 483,58: $ 3.12
$3.64-$4.91 794,50( 8.2¢ $ 4.21 235,93¢ $ 4.12
$5.3¢-$5.81 964,66: 8.37 $ 5.5¢ 451,32¢ $ 5.7:
$6.0¢-$8.60 251,10( 7.6¢ $ 8.2¢ 159,13. $ 8.2¢
$8.64-$8.64 15,00( 7.9% $ 8.6 7,50( $ 8.6
$8.7(-$11.68 85,00( 7.6 $ 9.0¢ 67,07 $ 9.0t
Totals 4,791,36! 8.5t $ 3.6¢ 1,549,65 $ 4.6/

The Company adopted the 2007 New Employee InceRfiae (the “2007 New Employee Plan”) in October 200nder the 2007 New
Employee Plan, the Company is authorized to isstienllion shares of common stock under variousrimaents solely to new employees.
Options granted under the 2007 New Employee Plaergdly expire no later than ten years from the aditgrant and generally vest over a
period of four years. The exercise price of ali@pgrants must not be less than 100% of the fairket value on the date of grant.

At January 2, 2010, 750,000 shares were availablifure grants under the 2007 New Employee Plan.
The following table summarizes the Company’s stoygkon activity under the 2007 New Employee Plan:

Weighted Average

Remaining
Weighted Contractual Term
Average Aggregate
Shares Exercise Pric¢ (in years) Intrinsic Value

Options outstanding, December 31, 2! 1,000,001 $ 8.6¢ 8.7¢
Granted 500,00( $ 1.1t
Exercisec — —
Expired (165,139 $ 8.6t
Forfeited (84,867) $ 8.6%
Options outstanding, January 2, 2( 1,250,00! $ 5.6t 8.3¢ $ 2,025,001
Vested and expected to vest at January 2, 416,16« $ 5.8¢ 8.2¢ $ 1,685,46:
Options exercisable, January 2, 2( 25,00( $ 8.22 7.81 $ 101,25(
Options exercisable, December 31, 2! 218,75( $ 8.65 8.7¢ $ —
Options exercisable, December 31, 2 — $ — — $ —

The weighted-average fair value of options gramtedng the year ended December 31, 2007 and tyetfio weeks ended January 2,
2010 was $8.65 and $1.18, respectively. There wemptions granted in 2008.

The intrinsic value of stock options at the datexdrcise is the difference between the fair valuthe stock at the date of exercise and
the exercise price. During the fifty-two weeks eshdanuary 2, 2010, there were no exercises und&f7 New Employee Plan. Aggregate
intrinsic value is calculated as the differencensetn the exercise price of the underlying awardstha fair value price of the Company’s
common stock for options that were in-the-monegfatanuary 2, 2010.
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Additional information with respect to outstandiogtions under the 2007 New Employee Plan as ofalgrty 2010 is as follows:

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted Average

Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining

Contractual Term Average Average
Exercise Exercise

Range of Exercise Price Options Outstanding (in years) Price Options Exercisable Price
$1.15-$1.31 500,00( 9.1z $ 1.1t 25,00( $ 1.1f
$8.65 750,00( 7.7¢€ $ 8.6t — $ 8.6t
Totals 1,250,001 8.3¢ 5.6t 25,00( 8.2

The Company adopted the U.S. Auto Parts Netwoik,2006 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2006 Plaim’March 2006. All stock options
purchase common stock granted to employees in @06 granted under the 2006 Plan and had exendtssspequal to the fair value of the
underlying stock, as determined by the Company’arB@f Directors on the applicable option granedahe Board of Directors determined
the value of the underlying stock by consideringuenber of factors, including historical and progetfinancial results, the risks the Company
faced at the time, the preferences of the Compdrrgferred Stock holders and the lack of liquidityhe Company’s common stock. No stock
options were granted by the Company prior to theptidn of the 2006 Plan. At January 2, 2010, tlvezee no shares available for future grants

under the 2006 Plan.

Weighted Average

Remaining
Weighted Contractual Term
Average Aggregate
Shares Exercise Price¢ (in years) Intrinsic Value

Options outstanding, December 31, 2I 978,00¢ $ 7.91 5.92 $ —
Granted — $ —
Exercisec — $ —
Expired (227,477 $ 6.8¢
Forfeited (14,404 $ 7.72
Options outstanding, January 2, 2( 736,12¢ $ 8.2¢ 6.4¢€ $ —
Vested and expected to vest at January 2, 734,49 $ 8.2¢ 6.4¢€ $ —
Options exercisable, January 2, 2( 689,19: $ 8.21 6.4¢€ $ —
Options exercisable, December 31, 2! 735,89¢ $ 7.87 5.42 $ —
Options exercisable, December 31, 2 2,008,33: $ 8.51 2.3 $ 1,263,80:

The weighted-average fair value of options grami@dng the year ended December 31, 2007 was $11.68.

The intrinsic value of stock options at the datexdrcise is the difference between the fair valuhe stock at the date of exercise and
the exercise price. During the year ended Dece@be?007, the intrinsic value of options exerciaexd $18,524. During the year ended
December 31, 2008 and the fifty-two weeks endedagn2, 2010, there were no exercises under thé PGh. Aggregate intrinsic value is
calculated as the difference between the exercise pf the underlying awards and the fair valuegof the Company’s common stock for
options that were in-the-money as of January 20208b options outstanding under the 2006 Planratag 2, 2010 were in-the-money.
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Additional information with respect to outstandiogtions under the 2006 Plan as of January 2, 20486 follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average
Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining
Contractual Term Average Average
Options Exercise Exercise
Range of Exercise Price Outstanding (in years) Price Options Exercisable Price
$6.0¢-$8.60 501,88t 6.24 $ 6.7¢ 469,66¢ $ 6.7¢
$8.7(-$11.68 234,24( 6.94 $ 11.4¢ 219,52° $ 11.4¢
Total 736,12¢ 6.4€ $ 8.2¢ 689,19: $ 8.2i
Warrants
The following table summarizes the outstanding a@ts at January, 2, 2010:
Shares Exercise Price
Warrants outstanding, December 31, 2 84,33: $ 7.2¢
Granted 30,00( $ 2.1¢
Exercisec — $ —
Expired (84,33) $ 6.7¢
Warrants outstanding, January 2, 2| 30,00( $ 2.14
Vested and expected to vest at January 2, 6,66¢ $ 2.1

On May 5, 2009, the Company issued warrants tohfase up to 30,000 shares of common stock, whichawgrterminate seven years
after their grant date. The warrants were issuembimection with the financial advisory servicesyided by a consultant to the Company. The
warrants vest in thirty-six equal monthly increnseat 833 shares each on the last calendar daycbfe@dendar month commencing May 5,
2009. The Company determined the fair value ofttherants at the date of grant using the Black-Sehoption pricing model based on the

estimated fair value of the underlying common stackolatility rate of 51.62%, zero dividends, skrfree interest rate of 5.99%, and an
expected life of 5.99 years.

The warrants outstanding as of December 31, 2008 nat exercised in 2009, and therefore had exiseaf January 2, 2010.

Note 8 - Accounting for Share-Based Compensation

All stock options issued to employees are recoghémeshare-based compensation expense in theiihatatements based on their
respective grant date fair values, on a straigtg-tiasis and are recognized within the statemémsame as general and administrative,
marketing, fulfilment or technology expense, basacemployee departmental classifications.
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Under this standard, the fair value of each shaset payment award is estimated on the date of gsarg an option pricing model that
meets certain requirements. The Company uses tekEcholes option pricing model to estimate thevaue of share-based payment
awards. The determination of the fair value of sHaased payment awards utilizing the Black-Schaledel is affected by the Company’s
stock price and a number of assumptions, includipgected volatility, expected life, risk-free irgst rate and expected dividends. The
Company estimates volatility using historical viités of similar public entities. The expectetelof an award is based on a simplified method
which defines the life as the average of the cohied term of the option and the weighted averaggting period for all open tranches. The
risk-free interest rate assumption is based onrgbdenterest rates appropriate for the expecfedfi the awards. The dividend yield
assumption is based on the Company’s expectatipayihg no dividends. Forfeitures are estimatatietime of grant and revised, if
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual fodféféer from those estimates.

The fair value of each option grant was estimatethe date of grant using the Black-Scholes opgigcing model with the following
assumptions for the each of the periods ended:

52 Weeks Ended

Years Ended December 31, January 2,
2007 2008 2010
Expected life 1-4years 1-6.24 year 5.99-6.25 year
Risk-free interest rat 3% - 5% 1%-3% 2% - 3%
Expected volatility 32%-39% 40%-50% 50%- 52%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%

Using the Black-Scholes optiguricing model for the estimated weighted averagrevislue of an option to purchase one share of con
stock granted during the fiftywo weeks ended January 2, 2010, the resulting/&ire was $1.18 per share of common stock sutmemptions,

In October 2007, May 2008 and February 2009, raspdyg, the Board approved option grants, whichtagred market condition
requirements. These options will vest based oratiéevement of specified stock price appreciatidiestones, which represents a market
condition, over a five-year period commencing oridder 15, 2007, May 15, 2008 and February 16, 2008.0ctober 2007 and May 2008
option grants were for 250,000 shares each. Theugph2009 option grants were for 100,000 sharks.fair value of the option was estima
on the date of grant using the Monte Carlo optinaipg model with the following average assumptions

December 31 January 2,
2007 2008 2010
Expected life 2.4 year 2 year: 3.3 year
Risk-free interest rat 4.20% 3.01% 1.87%
Expected volatility 39% 41% 50%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%
Initial stock price $ 8.6t $ 3.72 $ 11t

Share-Based Compensation Expense

The Company recognized shdrased compensation expense of $2.2 million, $2liiomiand $3.3 million, net of $508,000, $287,00@
$245,000 of expense capitalized as internally-dgped software, for each of the years ended DeceBihet007, 2008 and the fifty-two weeks
ended January 2, 2010, respectively. This sharedbeampensation expense caused the Company’sresitcome (loss) per share for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2008 and th-two weeks ended January 2, 2010 to be reduce®p8330.10 and $0.11, respectively.
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Under ASC 718 (formerly SFAS 123R), forfeitures astimated at the time of grant and revised, iessary, in subsequent periods if
actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. @stimated forfeiture rate was calculated basedatunal historical forfeitures experienced
under our equity plans. In the fourth quarter &f fifty-two weeks ended January 2, 2010, the Compenformed its periodic review of the
estimated forfeiture rate and based on turnovanduhe last fifty-two weeks, adjusted the weighteerage forfeiture rate from 10% to 18%.
This change in estimated forfeiture rate was ndenl to the fourth quarter of fifty-two weeks ettiJanuary 2, 2010 but did result in a
decrease of approximately $1.0 million in sharesbasompensation expense for the remaining weighvedage period.

There was $4.5 million of unrecognized compensagiguense related to stock options as of Januaé9In, which expense is expecte:
be recognized over a weighted-average period & ye@rs. The table below sets forth the expecteattaation of share-based compensation
expense for the next four years for all optionsitgd as of January 2, 2010, assuming all employeain employed by the Company for their
remaining vesting periods:

Fifty -Two Weeks Ending

Dec. 29
Jan. 1, Dec. 31
2011 2011 2012
Amortization of shar-based compensatic $2,38¢ $1,781 $ 301
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Note 9 - Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Net income (loss) per share has been computeccordance with ASC 26Barnings per Shar@ormerly referenced as FASB Statement
No. 128 “Earnings per Share”).The following table sets forth the computation abic and diluted net income (loss) per share:

52 Weeks Ende

Years Ended December 31, January 2,
2007 2008 2010

(in thousands, except share and per share dat
Net (Loss) Income Per She

Numerator:

Net (loss) incomi $ (3,597) $ (16,90 $ 1,317
Denominator

Weighte-average common shares outstanding (b 28,274,02 29,846,75 29,851,87
Common equivalent shares from common stock optoigswarrant: — — 957,23t
Weightec-average common shares outstanding (dilu 28,274,02 29,846,75 30,809,11
Basic net (loss) income per shi $ (0.19%) $ (0.57) $ 0.0
Diluted net income (loss) per sh $ (0.1%) $ (0.57) $ 0.04

Potentially dilutive securities not included in tbedculation of diluted net income per share beedasio so would be anti-dilutive are as
follows (in common equivalent share

52 Weeks Ende

Years Ended December 31, January 2,
2007 2008 2010
Common stock warran 84,33: 84,33: —
Options to purchase common st 4,899,401 5,669,66. 6,777,49
Total 4,983,73: 5,753,99. 6,777,49.

Note 10 - Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognimethe tax consequences attributable to differermdween the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilitiad their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assd liabilities are measured using enacte
rates expected to apply to taxable income in tlaesym which those temporary differences are exguetd be recovered or settled. A deferred
tax asset valuation allowance will be recorded i imore likely than not that all or a portiontb& recorded deferred tax assets will not be
realized.

As discussed in Note 1, “Summary of Significant &aoting Policies” the Company adopted new accogritnciples on accounting for
uncertain tax positions in 2008. The new princidesscribe a recognition threshold and a measureatiibute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of tax positions takexxpected to be taken in a tax return. For thesesfits to be recognized, a tax position
must be more-likely-than-not to be sustained up@menation by taxing authorities. The amount reéogeh is measured as the largest amount
of benefit that has greater than 50 percent likkelthof being realized upon ultimate settlementoAdanuary 2, 2010, as a result of updating its
current year analysis, the Company did not recagh&@material adjustment in the liability for urbgnized income tax benefits and or the
corresponding interest or penalties; however the@my’s policy is to record interest and penaliissncome tax expense. During 2008, the
Company was under audit by the Internal Revenuei@efor the years ended December 31, 2006 and;208Audit was resolved through
payment of a non-material sum. The tax years 2@IB 2emain open to examination by the major tajimigdictions to which the Company is
subject.
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Income tax expense as it relates to the Compamyisalidated entity for the years ended Decembe@Q7, 2008 and the fifty-two
weeks ended January 2, 2010 consists of the fallgwi

52 Weeks
Ended
Years Ended December 31 January 2,
2007 2008 2010
(in thousands)
Current:
Federal tay $ 1,63¢ $ (50) $ (779
State ta» 57C (223) 19z
Foreign tax 90 52 56
Total current taxe 2,29¢ (119) (52E)
Deferred:
Federal ta (1,409 (9,097 2,56¢
State ta» (347) (2,60¢) 1,08(
Foreign tax — — —
Total deferred taxe (1,756 (11,709 3,64¢
Income tax expense (benefit), consolide $ 53¢ $ (11,827 $ 3,12¢
Income tax expense (benefit) differs from the amalbat would result from applying the federal staty rate as follows:
52 Weeks
Ended
Years Ended December 31 January 2,
2007 2008 2010
(in thousands)
Income tax at U.S. federal statutory r $ (1,119 $ (9,769 $ 1,511
Shar-based compensatic 161 (1,880 1,08¢
State income tax, net of federal tax efi (292 161 72¢
Tax exempt intere: (210 (220 (16)
Legal settlemer 1,78¢ — —
Foreign tax 90 60 (163)
Other 14 (175) (249
Effective tax provision (benefi $ 53¢ $ (11,827 $ 3,128

The Companys effective tax rate was also impacted by incomedancurred in foreign and state jurisdictionstiWWespect to the incon
of its foreign subsidiaries, the Company takespb&ition that the earnings of the foreign subsidgare permanently invested in that
jurisdiction. As a result, no additional incomedayhave been provided on the possible repatriafitimese earnings to the parent company.
Company has not calculated the amount of deferabdity that would result from such repatriatios such determination is not practicable.

For the fifty-two weeks ended January 2, 2010 difiective tax rate for the Company was 70.33%.tReryears ended December 31,
2007 and 2008, the effective tax rate for the Camgpaas 39.75% and 41.36%, respectively. The Comnipagffective tax rate is higher than
the U.S. federal statutory rate primarily as a ltesfustate income taxes and other non-deductiblenanent differences. The increase in income
tax provision during the fifty-two weeks ended Jary2, 2010 was primarily due to a $1.1 million &ffect of stock option forfeitures (current
and prior years), and other non-deductible permiadifierences.
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During the review of the Company’s income tax psaw for the thirteen weeks ended April 4, 2009,nweed that deferred tax assets for
permanent differences created by vested non-geglifiock option forfeitures had not been propestiuced in accordance with ASC 740. We
have evaluated the effects of this misstatememtriom period’s consolidated financial statementadeordance with the guidance provided by
ASC 250-10Accounting Changes and Error Correctiofisrmerly SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) Nd.08, codified as SAB Topic
1.M, “ Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemétiteen Qualifying Misstatements in Current Year Rizial Statement$ and
concluded that no prior period financial statememésmaterially misstated. We also evaluated tfezedf correcting this misstatement on our
interim and annual results of operations for ttepeetive quarters ended September 30, 2007 thitheghirteen weeks ended April 4, 2009.

The total impact of the quarterly adjustments egldb the balance sheet is summarized as follows:

Thirteen
Weeks
Three Months Ended, Ended
Sept. 30, Dec. 31, Mar. 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31 April 4,
(in thousands) 2007 2007 2008 2008 2008 2008 2009
Deferred Tax Asse $ (93 $ (181 $ (@B $ (B $ (14H) $ (4O % (579
Total Assets as Report $109,60t $110,05t¢ $109,77¢ $98,63¢ $94,51¢ $90,43( $93,54¢
Adjusted Total Asset $109,51: $109,87! $109,69¢ $98,59¢ $94,36¢ $90,39( $92,96¢
Effect on Total Asset (0.1%) (0.2%) (0.1%) (0.C%) (0.2%) (0.C%) (0.€%)
The total impact of the quarterly adjustments ®itittome statement is summarized as follows:
Thirteen
Weeks
Three Months Ended, Ended
Sept. 30 Dec. 31, Mar. 31, June 30, Sept. 30 Dec. 31 April 4,
(in thousands) 2007 2007 2008 2008 2008 2008 2009
Tax Provisior $ 93 $ 181 $ 80 ¢ 38 $ 147 $ 4C $ 57¢
Net Income (loss) as Report $ 89: $(5,49¢) $(875) $(12,069) $(491) $(3,477) $ (100
Effect on Net Income (los! (10.4%) 3.2% 9.1% 0.2% 29.9% 1.2% 57<%
Effect on EP< $ 0.0C $ 0.00¢ $ 0.0C $ 0.0C $0.00¢ $ 0.0C $0.01¢

Considering both quantitative and qualitative measuwve determined that the judgment of a reasenadison relying upon the financial
statements would not have been changed or inflaebgehe inclusion or correction of these itemshia respective quarters or in the thirteen
weeks ended April 4, 2009. We determined that thestatements are immaterial to the financial statémas of December 31, 2007 and 2008
and for each of the respective quarters of thoaesyélowever, we concluded that the impact of riogrthe cumulative effect of these periods
may be material. As permitted by ASC 250-10, wedube iron curtain approach to quantify the migstegnt. The iron curtain approach
assumes that because the prior year financialhseattes were not materially misstated, correctingiemyaterial errors that existed in those
statements in the current year is the correct adouy Therefore, we recorded the cumulative adjestt during the thirteen weeks ended
April 4, 2009 by decreasing deferred tax assetsimeréasing current income tax expense.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitidedember 31, 2007 and 2008 and January 2, 20Xisted of the following:

December 31 December 31 January 2,
2007 2008 2010
(in thousands)
Deferred tax asset
Inventory reservi 241 $ 517 $ 48t
Shar-based compensatic 933 1,941 2,10¢
Amortization 3,57¢ 12,53¢ 10,85¢
Sales reserv 284 264 37C
Deferred state tax deducti 11t — 64
Other comprehensive incor — 60 33
Net operating loss car-forwards — 1,361 88
Other 182 24C 59:
Total deferred tax asse 5,33( 16,91¢ 14,59¢
Deferred tax liability:
Tax over book depreciatic 37C 762 2,10(
Tax over book goodwill amortizatic 567 — —
Total deferred tax liability 937 762 2,10¢
Net consolidated deferred tax ass 4,39: $ 16,15¢ $12,49¢

As of January 2, 2010, the Company determinedrtbataluation allowance is necessary. In assesbmgealization of the deferred tax

assets, the Company considered both positive agatime evidence existed, which can be objectivelyfied, as explained below.

The Company'’s three year pre-tax income was asvist|

Pre-Tax Non-Recurring
Income Events Total
(in thousands)
December 31, 200 $ (3,059 $ 4,48 $ 1,42¢
December 31, 200 (28,729 23,36¢ (5,360)
January 2, 201 4,44( — 4,44(
Total $(27,34) $ 27,858 $ 50¢
The Company’s three year federal taxable incomeasgdsllows:
Taxable Less: NOL
Income Carry- back Total
(in thousands)
December 31, 200 $ 4,80( $ — $4,80(
December 31, 200 (3,629 3,62
January 2, 201 1,35¢ — 1,35¢
Total $2,63¢ $ 3,62 $6,15¢
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The Company utilizes a rolling three years of alcamnal current year anticipated results as a primagsure of its cumulative losses in
recent years. The Company has a cumulative 10$278 million for the respective years 2007, 2008 2009. A substantial portion of the
cumulative losses relates to non-recurring mattech as the $4.5 million class action lawsuit egtént and the $23.4 million write-off of
goodwill and other intangible assets related toettguisition of Partsbin. These events are unlikelyeoccur in the future, and the Company
adjusts the cumulative results for the effect efsthitems. Excluding the non-recurring items, tbenany has a cumulative income of
$508,000 for the respective years.

The Company'’s existing positive evidence as of dan@, 2010 is summarized as follows:

. Based on the estimated taxable income for fifty-iweeks ended January 2, 2010, the Company will haveperating loss carry-
back potential of $1.4 millior

. The Company has cumulative three year taxable ircof$2.5 million.

. The Company has cumulative three year taxable ieo@xclusive of 2008 net operating loss carry-ba¢k)6.2 million. The
Companys 2008 net operating loss was carried back to 288@f January 2, 2010, the Company has estimaigerél and state r
operating loss car-forwards of $0 and $1.5 million, respective

For the deferred tax asset to be realized the Coynpauld have to achieve approximately $29.4 millio taxable income in future
periods.

Based on the significant positive evidence abolated to the historical pre-tax and taxable incané the earnings projection, we
determined that it was more likely than not thainiet deferred tax assets would be realized aanofady 2, 2010.

Included in accrued expenses are income taxes [gagh#$1.3 million, $32,000 and $218,000 for thasgeended December 31, 2007,
2008 and the fifty-two weeks ended January 2, 2d€pectively. Income taxes consist primarily ofméstic taxes.

Note 11 - Related-Party Transactions

Beginning in November 2003, the Company leasecdoitporate headquarters and primary warehouse frianCNloe, LLC (“Nia Chloe),
a member of which is one of our board members. BeroNia Chloe member was also one of our board reesnimtil his resignation in
December 2009. Lease payments and expenses asdagitit this related party arrangement totaled $&27, $548,000, and $535,000,
respectively, for the years ended December 31, 28008, and January 2, 2010. The Company has dedlita relationship with Nia Chloe
with regard to ASC 81Consolidation(*ASC 810") (formerly referenced as FIN 46RCbnsolidation of Variable Interest Entiti€s The
Company has determined that Nia Chloe does not thealriteria for consolidation under ASC 810 ameréfore this entity is not consolidated
in the Company'’s financial statements.
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From time to time, the Company has purchased ivgtitom an entity partially owned by a memberiwé Company’s Board of
Directors. During the years ended December 31, 20@72008 and January 2, 2010, the Company purdlasentory totaling $394,000 and
$242,000, $330,000 respectively, from the entitiyicly the Company believes to be at fair marketealu

Since October 2006, the Company has purchasedpaidh engine marketing services from an entitylo€h a member of the
Company’s Board of Directors is the chairman. Dgiine years ended December 31, 2007 and 2008 andrya2, 2010, the Company
purchased paid search engine marketing servicaling$344,000, $281,000, and $225,000, respegtifreim the entity, which the Company
believes to be at fair market value.

In September 2008, the Company entered into a vagraement with a member of the Company’s Boarfiodctors to provide
consulting services. The arrangement could be textad by either party at anytime, and the direstas paid $10,000 per month. For the fifty-
two weeks ended January 2, 2010, the total conguiéies paid were $120,000. The arrangement wesnated as of January 2, 2010.

The Company has entered into indemnification agezesnwith the Company’s directors and executiveeef§. These agreements require
the Company to indemnify these individuals to thikekt extent permitted under law against lialgBtthat may arise by reason of their service
to the Company, and to advance expenses incurradeslt of any proceeding against them as tolwfiey could be indemnified. The
Company also intends to enter into indemnificaagneements with the Company’s future directorsexetutive officers.

Note 12 - Commitments and Contingencies

The Company’s primary warehouse facilities are urdease which commenced in November 2003, exjpir&@kcember 2008, and was
month-to-month until February 1, 2010 when an esiteamof the lease incorporating a reduction in tardugh January 31, 2011 was signed.

In September 2004, the Company entered into a ledseuse the Company’s corporate headquarterfoandarehouse space adjacent to
its primary facility in Carson, California from alated party under an agreement that expired AWBLIS2006. This lease was renewed through
February 28, 2009 and is currently month-to-mo@th.October 1, 2006, the Company entered into d thase agreement for additional
warehouse space adjacent to its primary facilitigSarson, CA. This lease expired May 31, 2009wad month-to-month until February 1,
2010 when an extension of the lease incorporatirgglaction in rent through January 31, 2011 wasesig
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In August 2007, the Company’s Philippines subsideartered into lease agreements to expand itsrdwperations. Under the terms of
the lease agreements, the Company added an addliti®)345 square feet of space for a period ofwevelonths, effective August 31, 2007,
monthly rent of approximately $11,000. In Octob@02, the Company’s Philippines subsidiary enten¢dl & new lease agreement for
additional space to expand its current operatidmsler the terms of the lease, the Company addembsipgately 11,000 square feet of space
a period of three years, effective September 17 2fad monthly rent of approximately $9,000. Additally, as of January 7, 2010, the
Company entered into a new lease agreement intitipgnes, which consolidates our office space iohe building.

In December 2008, the Company entered into a faer-pperating lease for warehouse space in Chdggpéiaginia, which commenced
in January 2009 and expires in December 2013. Utheeterms of the lease, the Company added appabdeiyn72,500 square feet of space for
initial monthly rent of approximately $15,000 withhnual rent escalations. Additionally, the Comphag one option to extend the terms for an
additional five years on or before June 30, 2018a@me option to terminate the lease effective Ddeam31, 2011 with six months prior written
notice.

Facility rent expense, inclusive of amounts paitllia Chloe, for the years ended December 31, 20008 and January 2, 2010, was $1.4
million, $1.6 million, and 1.9 million, respectivel

Future minimum facility lease payments requiredarrttie above operating leases as of January 2, &@1%744,888, $900,405,
$919,153, $944,255 and $297,650 for 2010 to 204shectively.

Legal Matters

The Company is subject to legal proceedings arithslavhich arise in the ordinary course of its bass Although occasional adverse
decisions or settlements may occur, the poterdsas,lif any, cannot be reasonably estimated. Homvéwe Company believes that the final
disposition of such matters will not have a mataattverse effect on the financial position, resafteperations or cash flow of the Company
with the exception of the items noted below. Thenpany maintains liability insurance coverage tagebthe Company’s assets from losses
arising out of or involving activities associatedtwongoing and normal business operations.
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Parts Geek Litigation

On June 25, 2009, the Company filed suit in thetdéthBStates District Court for the Central Disto€California against Parts Geek LLC,
certain of its members and employees for misapatipn of trade secrets, breach of contract andiuobmpetition and requesting monetary
damages and injunctive relief, and Parts Geek filednswer on August 12, 2009. On January 27, 2B&@;omplaint was amended to include
claims for copyright infringement and to add anitddal party. Parts Geek filed an answer and cenafims to the amended complaint on
February 22, 2010 and the parties are currentleriaking discovery. A mediation between the pamias held on January 27, 2010; certain
preliminary settlement discussions occurred, baitGbmpany cannot assure that a satisfactory settiewill be reached on a timely basis or at
all, and is unable to assess the probability ofranyetary cost or liability in this regard otheathlegal fees that have been accrued or paid anc
reflected in the Company’s financial statements.

On November 4, 2009, a complaint was filed by P@esk LLC against the Company and Google in theddrfstates District Court for
the District of New Jersey for, among other thirtggdemark infringement and related unfair advergipractices, as well as web crawling. -
Company has been served, and has filed a motidistoiss the claim or to move the action to the Nem District of California but cannot
assure the outcome of such motions. The Compaigveslthat the suit is substantially without méFlie Company is unable to assess the
probability of any monetary cost or liability inishregard, other than legal fees that may be iecuim defending or dismissing the law suit and
reflected in the Company’s financial statements.

Ford Global Technologies, LLC

On December 2, 2005, Ford Global Technologies, (IKord”) filed a complaint, subsequently amendedhwhe United States
International Trade Commission (“USITC") against thompany and five other named Respondents, imgudur Taiwan-based
manufacturers, contending that the Company andttier Respondents infringed 14 design patent$Rat alleged cover eight parts on the
2004-2005 Ford F-150 truck (the “Ford Design PatgnFord asked the USITC to issue a permanentrgéagclusion order excluding from
entry into the United States all automotive pédrts infringe the Ford Design Patents and thatrapoited into the United States, sold for
importation in the United States, or sold withie thinited States after importation. Ford also soaghtrmanent order directing the Company
and the other Respondents to cease and desistdroong other things, selling, marketing, advertjsor distributing, or offering for sale
imported automotive parts that infringe the ForagiDe Patents.

On June 6, 2007, the USITC issued its Notice ofHIetermination. The Notice of Final Determinatitenied Respondent’s petition for
reconsideration and their motion for leave to sapm@nt their petition. In addition, the USITC issw@edeneral exclusion order prohibiting the
importation of certain automotive parts found tfrillge the seven Ford design patents found valie USITC'’s decision became final on
August 6, 2007. On May 18, 2007, Ford filed a Netit Appeal with the United States Federal Cir@gatirt of Appeals with regard to the th
patents declared invalid in the AlsJnitial Determination. On August 23, 2007, thespandents filed a Notice of Appeal with the Unittdte:
Federal Court of Appeals for the federal circuheTappeals were consolidated. On October 17, 2088%arties finished briefing the
appeal. The federal circuit heard oral argumemts fthe parties during the first quarter of 2009.

At the time the exclusion order was issued, théspghat are subject to the order comprised onlyrdamal amount of the Company’s
sales. However, as such parts become incorpornatedniore vehicles over time; it is likely that thmount of the Company’sales of such pa
could have increased substantially. If the tengtepatents in question are ultimately found on apfiebe valid and infringed, it is not
anticipated that the loss of sales of these pattbeymaterially adverse to the Company'’s finahciandition, cash flows or results of
operations. However, depending upon the natureeateht of any adverse ruling, other auto manufacsumay attempt to assert similar
allegations based upon design patents on a signtfitumber of parts for several of their modelsiclwtover time could have a material adve
impact on the entire aftermarket parts industry.

On May 2, 2008, Ford filed with the USITC anothemplaint under Section 337 of the Tariff Act of D93 he complaint alleges that the
Company and seven other domestic and foreign esiitiport and sell certain automotive parts regatonthe 2005 Ford Mustang that infringes
eight Ford design patents. The USITC voted totngian investigation, notice of which was publiretheFederal Registeon June 5, 2008.

Settlement of both Ford Motor Company complaints:

On April 16, 2009, the Company finalized its settent with regard to the two legal actions: 1) inviad) replacement collision parts for
Ford’s F-150 pickup truck, which had advanced wHFederal Circuit Court of Appeals; and 2) invotyimeplacement collision parts for the
Ford Mustang, which was before the US Internatidmatle Commission (ITC).
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Under the settlement and consent, the Company é¢pa®t challenge the validity of the patents endarts; it will be allowed to sell
aftermarket parts that correspond to patented Fegldicement parts through a distribution agreeraetgred into with LKQ Corporation. The
details of the distribution agreement are configent

Note 13 - Employee Retirement Plan

Effective February 17, 2006, the Company adopté@lgk) defined contribution retirement plan covgrall full time employees who
have completed one month of service. The Compary atats sole discretion, match fifty cents pelatoup to 6% of each participating
employee’s salary. The Compasycontributions vest in annual installments oveedhyears. Discretionary contributions made byGbmpany
totaled $145,000, $147,000, and $154,000 for tleesyended December 31, 2007, 2008, and Janua®lQ, @spectively.

Effective January 1, 2010, the Company adoptedermel compensation plan covering employees defasethighly compensated
employees” under the IRS rules. The Company maijs able discretion, match fifty cents per dolligrto 2% of each participating employee’s
salary. The plan is funded through the purchasmpfpany-owned life insurance, which is owned bglabr trust. Contributions by the
Company totaled $0 for the fiscal year ended Jan2a2010.
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Note 14 — Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

The following quarterly information includes alljadtments which management considers necessagyf&ir presentation of such
information. For interim quarterly financial statents, the provision for income taxes is estimat#dgithe best available information for
projected results for the entire year. The sunheffour quarters will not agree to the year totsd tb rounding within a quarter.

Three Months Ended Thirteen Weeks Ended
March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31, April 4, July 4, Oct. 3, Jan 2,
2008 2008 2008 2008 2009 2009 2009 2010

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
Consolidated Statement of Income Data:

Net sales $ 40,006 $ 43,108 $ 3655« $ 33,75¢ $ 3966 $ 4380f $ 47,041 $§  4577¢
Gross profif 13,75( 14,58 12,06¢ 12,14¢ 14,64( 15,86¢ 16,89¢ 16,46
Income (loss) from operatiol (1,717 (20,34) (1,069 (6,607) 592 1,07z 1,32¢ 1,25¢
Income (loss) before income taxes as repc (1,439 (20,109 (859) (6,337) 684 1,09¢ 1,38t 1,27:
Adjustments

Stock compensation expense — — — — 4 90 167 (261)
Adjusted income (loss) before income taxes (1,439 (20,105 (859) (6,337) 68¢ 1,18¢ 1,55z 1,012
Net income (loss) as report $ 878 $ (12,069 $ (491) $ (3,477 $ 679) $ 62¢ $ 781 $ 58¢
Adjustments

Tax (provision) benefit (1), (2 (80) (38) (147 (40) 8 38 72 (117)
Adjusted net income (loss) (1), ( $ (955 $ (12,10) $ 636 $ (351) $ 67) $ 667 $ 85¢ $ 46¢
Basic net income (loss) per share as reported djndtad

1) () $ 0.09) $ 041 $ 0.0 $ 0.12) $ 0.029) $ 0.0z $ 0.0 $ 0.0z
Diluted net income (loss) per share as reportechaljdsted

1) (2) $ 0.09 $ 041 $ 0.02 $ 0.12) $ 0.0 $ 0.0z $ 0.0 $ 0.0z
Shares used in computation of basic net incoms)(osr

share as reported and adjus 29,846,75 29,846,75 29,846,75 29,846,75 29,846,75 29,846,75 29,848,69  29,865,45
Shares used in computation of diluted net incomssjl per

share as reported and adjus 29,846,75 29,846,75 29,846,75 29,846,75 29,846,75 30,395,18 31,004,03 31,147,86

(1) Includes immaterial adjustments recorded in theebi-weeks ended January 2, 2010 for offi’ stock compensation recognized for all quartersoffl2
(2) Includes immaterial adjustments recorded for adirtgrs of 2008 during the thirte-weeks ended April 4, 2009. See Note- Income Taxes for further informatio
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Note 15 — Subsequent Events (Unaudited)

On January 7, 2010, U.S. Auto Parts Network (Ppiilips) Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary @& @ompany, entered into a lease
agreement with Robinsons Land Corporation (“Rohmsspfor the leasing of approximately 39,668 squaet of commercial office space
located at Robinsons Cybergate Plaza, EDSA, Magdaty City, Philippines.

The lease will enable us tonsolidate our office space in the Philippinesrfraix floors in two buildings into one space ineawnbuilding.

The term of the lease is 63 months, with certaimalencentives provided to us by Robinsons. Thasdeshall commence upon our receipt
of PEZA (Philippine Economic Zone Authority) appedwr 60 days after execution, whichever is eadiad, after 39 months, we can terminate
the lease in exchange for payment of a pre-paypréritege that declines as the term of the leaggsnexpiration and does not exceed four
months’ rent. We additionally have the option toee the lease at the end of the initial 63 montimtior an additional 60 months. Rent shall
be approximately $24,000 per month for the first rears of the lease, with a 5% annual escalatigears three through five. Under the new
lease, total occupancy cost is estimated to deerdasecurity deposit of approximately $76,000 nalsb be paid to Robinsons. There is no
relationship between us and Robinsons.

Under the terms of the lease, we are required fataia insurance and to indemnify the Landlordlémses incurred that are related to
use or occupancy of the property. With certain piioas, we are also required to maintain at out gusproperty, utility installations used by
us, such as the HVAC system, and alterations weernafixtures we add to the property.
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Exhibit No. Description
2.1* Acquisition Agreement dated May 19, 2006 by and fagnid.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Partsbin,,Ion.the one hand, and
The Partsbin.com, Inc., All OEM Parts, Inc., Powest, Inc., Auto Parts Web Solutions, Inc., Web Chalutions, Inc.,
Everything Internet, LLC, Richard E. Pine, Lowellann, Brian Tinari and Todd Daugherty, on theeothanc
3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incatjmor of U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. as filedwihe Delaware Secreta
of State on February 14, 2007 (incorporated byregsiee to Exhibit 3.1 to the Annual Report on FoirKlfiled with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 2, 2!
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of U.S. Auto Parts Netwnc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 8&2he Annual Report
on Form 1K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgiampril 2, 2007,
4.1* Specimen common stock certifice
10.1+* U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. 2006 Equity IncentRian
10.2+* Form of Stock Option Agreement under the U.S. ARdots Network, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive PI
10.3+* Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option under th&SUAuto Parts Network, Inc. 2006 Equity Incenti®lan.
10.4+* Form of Acceleration Addendum to Stock Option Agneat under the U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. 206i& Incentive Plar
10.5+* U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. 2007 Omnibus Plan famohs of agreemen
10.8+* Offer Letter of Employment dated May 19, 2006 bd &etween U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Richiire:
10.9+* Non-Competition Agreement dated May 19, 2006 by andragynid.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Richard Plrmyell Mann,
Brian Tinari and Todd Daugher
10.10* Shareholde' s Release dated May 19, 2006 by and between U 18.Parts Network, Inc. and Richard P
10.23* Commercial Lease Agreement dated January 1, 20@hdpetween U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and@héoe Enterprise
LLC, amended effective February 1, 2(
10.24* Standard Industrial/Commercial Mi-Tenant Leas— Gross dated October 1, 2006 by and between U.%. Raitts Network
Inc. and Margay 2003, LLC, amended effective Fetyda2010
10.25* Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Leaseésress dated July 12, 2004 by and between U.S. Ratts Network, Inc.
and Isadore Socransky, amended effective Febry&91D
10.26* Lease dated November 30, 2004 by and between Wi8. Parts Network, Inc. and William Co:
10.27t* Catalog License and Parts Purchase Agreement Natesinber 20, 2006 by and between U.S. Auto Partwdi, Inc. and
WORLDPAC, Inc.
10.29t* Services Agreement dated October 3, 2006 by avedest U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Efficientifitier, Inc.
10.32+* Offer Letter of Employment dated January 1, 200&bg between U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Houdkhavar
10.33+ Form of Indemnification Agreement for Officers aDatectors
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10.35*
10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39+

10.40+

10.41+

10.42+

10.43

10.44+

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48+

Deeds of Assignment and Declarations of Trust ebeeL8eptember 2006 regarding MBS Tek Corporatiockstransfe!

Purchase Agreement, dated April 20, 2007, by anohgnt.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc., Access Worldwi@@ammunications,
Inc. and their respective Philippine affiliatesc@nporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the @rbr Report on Form 10-Q
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMay 15, 2007

Lease Agreements, dated August 8, 2007, by and @@® Tek Corporation and Roshan Commercial Congofporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Reporform 10-Q filed with the Securities and Excha@genmission on August 2,
2007)

Form of Supplier Agreement entered into between U.S. Auto Parts bidtwnc. and certain of its U.S. based supplieis
primary drop-ship vendors (incorporated by refeestacExhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on For@aQ filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 27k

Employment Agreement dated October 12, 2007 betweSnAuto Parts Network, Inc. and Shane Evangg@flisorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Current ReporfFomm 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange @dssion on October 17,
2007)

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated October2l®)7 between U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and 8larangelis
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to therént Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission
on October 17, 200

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated October2l®)7 (performance grant) between U.S. Auto Pagtsvbrk, Inc. and
Shane Evangelist (incorporated by reference tolkx®9.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filediwihe Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 17, 2C

2007 New Employee Incentive Plan (incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 99.5 to the Current Report omi¢-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Octoberdadr).

Lease Agreement, dated October 11, 2007, by angeket MBS Tek Corporation and Averon Holding Corpiora(incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Reéjpor Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exaj@@ommission on
November 14, 2007

Employment Agreement, dated April 3, 2008, betwihenCompany and Aaron Coleman (incorporated byeafse to Exhibi
10.1 to the Current Report on Fori-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiampril 3, 2008

Support Continuity Agreement, dated April 28, 2008tween the Company and Alexander Adegan (incatpdrby reference
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on For-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarApril 28, 2008

Consulting Agreement, dated April 28, 2008, amdrgCompany, uParts.com, Inc. and Alexander Adeigaorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current ReporForm 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange @ussion on April 28,
2008)

Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement, dated April 2808, between the Company and Alexander Adeganr{iocated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current ReporForm 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange @ussion on April 28,
2008)

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated May 19)&My and between the Company and Shane Evan(@etistporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current RepoarForm 8-K filed with the Securities and Excha@enmission on May 15,
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Exhibit 10.33
INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

This Director or Officer Indemnification Agreemd(this “Agreement”) is entered into as of by and between U.S. Auto Parts
Network, Inc., a Delaware corporation (*Company”), and the director or officer of the Coamy identified on the signature page hereto (the
“Director or Officer”) and collectively with suchiictor or Officers’ affiliated persons, the “Indaitees”).

RECITALS

A. The Company and Director or Officer recognize tontinued difficulty in obtaining liability insance for its directors and officers, the
significant increases in the cost of such insurarmkthe general reductions in the coverage of msthance.

B. The Company and Director or Officer further rgoize the substantial increase in corporate litigain general, subjecting directors to
expensive litigation risks at the same time asatf@lability and coverage of liability insurancesHzeen severely limited.

C. The current protection available to directoryymat be adequate under the present circumstaacds]irectors, including the Director or
Officer, may not be willing to continue to servebar associated with the Company in such capaeitite®ut additional protection for
themselves and their Affiliated Persons.

D. The Company (i) desires to attract and retagnitirolvement of highly qualified persons, suctba®ctor or Officer, to serve and be
associated with the Company, and (ii) accordingfghes to provide for the indemnification and acdy&ment of expenses to the Director or
Officer and the Director or Officer’'s Affiliated Psons as provided herein.

E. This Agreement is a supplement to and in fugthee of the Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaawsl any resolutions adopted pursuant
thereto and shall not be deemed a substitute thereoto diminish or abrogate any rights of Indéteas thereunder.

F. The Company and Indemnitees recognize thattleeprretation of ambiguous statutes, regulationkscaurt opinions, and of the Certificate
of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Company, anduhgaries of public policy, are too uncertain toyide the Directors and Officers of the
Company with adequate or reliable advance knowledggiidance with respect to the legal risks anémttal liabilities to which they may
become personally exposed as a result of perforithigig duties in good faith for the Company.
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G. It is reasonable, prudent and necessary foEtmpany contractually to obligate itself to indefynand to advance expenses on behalf of,
such Directors and Officers to the fullest extemtnpitted by applicable law so that they will seorecontinue to serve the Company free from
undue concern that they will not be so indemnified.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premised i@ covenants contained herein and Inden’s agreement to continue to serve the
Company after the date hereof, the sufficiency bicl is hereby acknowledged, the Company and Initemdo hereby covenant and agree as
follows:

1. Indemnification

(a) The right to be indemnified or to receive acd&ment of Expenses under this Agreement (i) isndract right based upon good and valuable
consideration, pursuant to which Indemnitee may @)és and is intended to be retroactive andldtmavailable as to events occurring pric
the date of this Agreement and (iii) shall contiradieer any rescission or restrictive modificatidrthds Agreement as to events occurring prior
thereto.

(b) The Company shall indemnify and hold harmléssihdemnitees to the fullest extent permittedavy if any such Indemnitee was or is or
becomes a party to or witness or other participarur is threatened to be made a party to or wira other participant in, any threatened,
pending or completed, formal or informal actionit,soroceeding or alternative dispute resolutiorchanism, or any formal or informal
hearing, inquiry or investigation that such Indetaaiin good faith believes might lead to the instin of any such formal or informal action,
suit, proceeding or alternative dispute resolutimchanism, whether civil, criminal, administratiireyestigative or other, by a government
agency or a third party (hereinafter an “IndemiifgaClaim”) by reason of (or arising in part ouj ahy event or occurrence related to the fact
that Director or Officer or an Affiliated Persondswas (or is alleged to be or to have been)ectbr, officer, employee, controlling person,
fiduciary or other agent or affiliate of the Comganr any subsidiary of the Company, or is or wasig alleged to be or to have been) serving
at the request of the Company as a director, affe@ployee, fiduciary or other agent or affiliafeanother corporation, partnership, joint
venture, trust or other enterprise, or by reasaangfaction or inaction on the part of such DirectoOfficer or an Affiliated Person while
serving or acting (or allegedly serving or actimg¥uch



capacity, including, without limitation, any suatdiemnifiable Claim under the Securities Act of 1988amended (the “Securities Act”), the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tlel{&nge Act”), or any other federal or state stautaw or regulation, or any such
Indemnifiable Claim, at common law or otherwisgttrelates directly or indirectly (i) to the regéion, purchase, sale or ownership of any
securities of the Company or (ii) to any fiduciafyligation owed with respect to the Company angtisekholders (hereinafter an
“Indemnification Event”), against any and all losselaims, damages, expenses and liabilities, @iseveral, incurred in connection with such
Indemnifiable Claim (including any formal or infoahinvestigation), legal and other expenses inclimeconnection with, and any amount
paid in settlement of (if such settlement is appbin advance by the Company, which approval stwlbe unreasonably withheld) any such
Indemnifiable Claim and against any and all expsifseluding reasonable attorneys’ fees as detethity the Company and all other costs,
expenses and obligations incurred in connectioh imitestigating, defending a witness in or partipg in (including on appeal), or preparing
to defend, be a witness in or participate in, aynial or informal action, suit, proceeding, altgiveadispute resolution mechanism, hearing,
inquiry or investigation related to such IndemrifeaClaim), judgments, fines, penalties and amopaid in settlement (if such settlement is
approved in advance by the Company, which apprhval not be unreasonably withheld) of such Indéiaibie Claim and any federal, state,
local or foreign taxes imposed on Indemnitee assalt of the actual or deemed receipt of any paysnemder this Agreement (collectively,
hereinafter “Expenses”), including all interestsessments and other charges paid or payable irection with or in respect of such Expenses.
The Company shall make such payment of Expensgesasas practicable.

(c) Reviewing Party. Notwithstanding the foregoiythe obligations of the Company under Secti¢ay) Shall be subject to the condition that
the Reviewing Party (as defined in Section 9(feloér shall not have determined (in a written opinim any case in which the Independent
Legal Counsel referred to in Section 9(e) hereafvslved) that Indemnitee would not be permittedée indemnified under applicable law, i
(i) the obligation of the Company to make an adapayment of Expenses to Indemnitee pursuantdticBe?(a) (an “Expense Advance”)
shall be subject to the condition that, if, whed &mthe extent that the Reviewing Party determthasIndemnitee would not be permitted tc
so indemnified under applicable law, the Comparglld¥e entitled to be reimbursed by Indemnitee (Wwkceby agrees to reimburse the
Company) for all such amounts theretofore paidyioled, however, that if Indemnitee has commencetieneafter commences legal
proceedings in a court of competent jurisdictiolséoure a determination that Indemnitee shoulshtéennnified under applicable law or
hereunder, any determination made by



the Reviewing Party that Indemnitee would not bemiéed to be indemnified under applicable law erdunder shall not be binding and
Indemnitee shall not be required to reimburse tom@any for any Expense Advance until a final jualidetermination is made with respect
thereto (as to which all rights of appeal therefituewe been exhausted or lapsed). Indemnitees’aildigto reimburse the Company for any
Expense Advance shall be unsecured and no intgtaitbe charged thereon. If there has not beemaage in Control (as defined in Section 9
(d) hereof), the Reviewing Party shall be seletigthe Board of Directors with the approval of thdemnitee (which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld), and if there has been au€hange in Control (other than a Change in Cofijrethich has been approved by a
majority of the Company Board of Directors prior to such Change in Cdrard(ii) following which a majority of the Boardf @irectors of the
Company (or the ultimate parent entity thereofjdmprised of directors who were directors of thenpany immediately prior to the Change
Control), the Reviewing Party shall be the Indemerid.egal Counsel referred to in Section 9(e) hesabject to the approval of the Indemn
(which approval shall not be unreasonably withhe®illjch counsel, among other things, shall rendewritten opinion to the Company and
Indemnitees as to whether and to what extent Initeesywould be permitted to be indemnified underiapble law. The Company agrees to
pay the reasonable fees of the Independent Legaisgbreferred to above and to fully indemnify saolnsel against any and all expenses
(including reasonable attorneys’ fees), claimdilides and damages arising out of or relatinghie Agreement or its engagement pursuant
hereto. If there has been no determination by #hédving Party or if the Reviewing Party determittest Indemnitee substantively would not
be permitted to be indemnified in whole or in pamtler applicable law, Indemnitee shall have thietrig commence litigation seeking an inii
determination by the court or challenging any sdetermination by the Reviewing Party or any asfiemteof, including the legal or factual
bases therefor, and the Company hereby conses&\tiwe of process and to appear in any such pdouge

(d) Contribution. If the indemnification providedrfin Section 1(a) above for any reason is held bypurt of competent jurisdiction to be
unavailable to an Indemnitee in respect of any imuiéable Claims referred to therein, then the Camy in lieu of indemnifying such
Indemnitee thereunder, shall contribute to the arhpaid or payable by such Indemnitee as a re$slich losses, claims, damages, expenses
or liabilities (i) in such proportion as is apprizte to reflect the relative benefits received ey Company and the Indemnitees, or (ii) if the
allocation provided by clause (i) above is not péted by applicable law, in such proportion aspprapriate to reflect not only the relative
benefits referred to in clause (i) above but asorelative fault of the Company and the Indemnitemonnection with the action or inaction
which resulted in such losses, claims, damagegresgs or liabilities, as well as any other releeantitable considerations.
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The Company hereby agrees to fully indemnify anid lharmless Indemnitee from any claims for conttidouwhich may be brought by
Officers, Directors or employees of the Companhéothan Indemnitee) who may be jointly liable witdemnitee.

Whether or not the indemnification provided in tAigreement is available, in respect of any threadepending or completed action, suit or
proceeding in which Company is jointly liable wittdemnitee (or would be if joined in such actionit ®r proceeding), Company shall pay, in
the first instance, the entire amount of any judghoe settlement of such action, suit or proceediitfout requiring Indemnitee to contribute
to such payment and Company hereby waives andjtadihes any right of contribution it may have againdemnitee. Company shall not
enter into any settlement of any action, suit acpeding in which Company is jointly liable withdiemnitee (or would be if joined in such
action, suit or proceeding) unless such settlerpentides for a full and final release of all claiasserted against Indemnitee.

In connection with the registration of the Compansecurities, the relative benefits received byGbmpany and any Indemnitee shall be
deemed to be in the same respective proportionghtbgroceeds from the offering (before deducérgenses) received by the Company and
the Indemnitee, in each case as set forth in thle tan the cover page of the applicable prospebtss; to the aggregate public offering price of
the securities so offered. The relative fault & @ompany and any Indemnitee shall be determineéfeyence to, among other things, whe
the untrue or alleged untrue statement of a matadaor the omission or alleged omission to stateaterial fact relates to information
supplied by the Company or the Indemnitee and #nggs’ relative intent, knowledge, access to infation and opportunity to correct or
prevent such statement or omission.

The Company and each Indemnitee agree that it wantlthe just and equitable if contribution pursuanthis Section 1(d) were determined by
pro rata or per capita allocation or by any othethud of allocation which does not take accournthefequitable considerations referred to in
the immediately preceding paragraph. In connedtiibth the registration of the Company’s securitiaspo event shall an Indemnitee be
required to contribute any amount under this Sacti@) in excess of the lesser of (i) that proporif the total of such losses, claims, dam:

or liabilities indemnified against equal to the poction of the total securities sold under suchstegtion statement which is being sold by such
Indemnitee or (ii)



the net proceeds received by such Indemnitee ftesale of securities under such registration stateg. No person found guilty of fraudulent
misrepresentation (within the meaning of Sectio(f)ldf the Securities Act) shall be entitled to tilsution from any person who was not
found guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation.

(e) Survival Regardless of Investigation. The inddimation and contribution provided for in this@en 1 will remain in full force and effect
regardless of any investigation made by or on hetidhe Indemnitees or any officer, director, eoyge, agent or controlling person of the
Indemnitees.

(H Mandatory Payment of Expenses. Notwithstanding other provision of this Agreement, to the ekteat an Indemnitee has been
successful on the merits or otherwise, includinghewut limitation, the dismissal of an action witligrejudice, in the defense of any action,
suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation refertedn Section 1(a) hereof or in the defense of @aim, issue or matter therein, such
Indemnitee shall be indemnified against all Expenseurred by such Indemnitee in connection thetfevidor the purposes of this section,
Indemnitee will be deemed to have been “successfihe merits” upon termination of any Proceedingfaany claim, issue or matter therein,
by the winning of a motion to dismiss, motion fonemary judgment, settlement (with or without capproval), or upon a plea of nolo
contendere or its equivalent.

(g) The Company and Indemnitee agree that a mgnetaredy for breach of this Agreement may be inadég] impracticable and difficult of
proof, and further agree that such breach may dawdesnnitee irreparable harm. Accordingly, the igarhereto agree that Indemnitee may
enforce this Agreement by seeking injunctive rediefl/or specific performance hereof, without angessity of showing actual damage or
irreparable harm and that by seeking injunctiveefelind/or specific performance, Indemnitee shatlbe precluded from seeking or obtaining
any other relief to which he may be entitled. Tlerpany and Indemnitee further agree that Indemsitedl be entitled to such specific
performance and injunctive relief, including temgigrrestraining orders, preliminary injunctions gremanent injunctions, without the
necessity of posting bonds or other undertakingpimection therewith. The Company acknowledgesithidite absence of a waiver, a bond or
undertaking may be required of Indemnitee by thar€Cand the Company hereby waives any such remeiné of a bond or undertaking.

(h) Security. To the extent requested by the Inderarand approved by the Board of Directors, thm@any may at any time and from time to
time provide security to the Indemnitee for the @amy’s obligations hereunder
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through an irrevocable bank line of credit, fundecst or other collateral. Any such security, opcevided to the Indemnitee, may not be
revoked or released without the prior written conis# the Indemnitee.

2. Expenses; Indemnification Procedure

(a) Advancement of Expenses. The Company shallredvall Expenses, which shall include but not betéid to any expense, liability or loss,
including reasonable attorney’s fees as determilyedompany, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxespmmnalties, and amounts paid or to be
paid in settlement incurred by any Indemnitee. @tieances to be made hereunder shall be paid lydhmpany to the Indemnitee within ten
(10) days after the receipt by the Company of &estant or statements requesting such advancesh(whall include invoices received by
Indemnitee in connection with such Expenses buténcase of invoices in connection with legal E&y, any references to legal work
performed or to expenditures made that would céndemnitee to waive any privilege accorded by agtiie law shall not be included with
statement) from time to time, whether prior to fieafinal disposition of any Proceeding. Indemaithall have the right to advancement by
Company prior to the final adjudication of any Intt@fiable Claim of any and all Expenses relatingaigsing out of or resulting from any
Indemnifiable Claim paid or incurred by Indemnitgewhich Indemnitee determines are reasonablyylit@be paid or incurred by Indemnitee.

Indemnitee’s right to such advancement is not suifethe satisfaction of any standard of conduct.

Advances shall be made without regard to Indemisitagility to repay and without regard to Indemaiteultimate entitlement to be
indemnified, held harmless or exonerated undeother provisions of this Agreement.

Advances shall include any and all reasonable Esgeincurred pursuing a Proceeding to enforceittis of advancement, including
Expenses incurred preparing and forwarding statésiterthe Company to support the advances claimed.

Without limiting the generality or effect of therémoing, within thirty days after any request bgémnitee, the Company shall, in accordance
with such request (but without duplication of adsesmade as described above), (a) pay such Expemsehalf of Indemnitee, (b) advance to
Indemnitee funds in an amount sufficient to payhsbgpenses, or (c) reimburse Indemnitee for sugiekses.

7



The right to advances under this section shallliavents continue until final disposition of anyoBeeding, including any appeal thereof.

(b) Notice/Cooperation by Indemnitees. Each Indéeenshall give the Company notice in writing asrsas practicable of any Indemnifiable
Claim made against Indemnitee for which indemnifaawill or could be sought under this Agreeméntaddition, each Indemnitee shall give
the Company such information and cooperation amit reasonably require and as shall be within Imd@’'s power. The failure by
Indemnitee to timely notify the Company of any Imdefiable Claim shall not relieve the Company frany liability hereunder unless, and
only to the extent that, the Company did not otligeviearn of such Indemnifiable Claim and suchufailresults in forfeiture by the Company
of substantial defenses, rights or insurance cgesra

(c) No Presumptions; Burden of Proof. For purpagfdbkis Agreement, the termination of any Inderabfe Claim by judgment, order,
settlement (whether with or without court approwalonviction, or upon a plea of nolo contenderdts equivalent, shall not create a
presumption that any Indemnitee did not meet amiiquéar standard of conduct or have any particbklref or that a court has determined that
indemnification is not permitted by applicable ldw.addition, neither the failure of the ReviewiRgrty to have made a determination as to
whether an Indemnitee has met any particular stadmafaconduct or had any particular belief, noraatual determination by the Reviewing
Party that the Indemnitee has not met such starafaronduct or did not have such belief, priorhie tommencement of legal proceedings by
Indemnitee to secure a judicial determination thatindemnitee should be indemnified under appletw, shall be a defense to the
Indemnitee’s claim or create a presumption thattdemnitee has not met any particular standaabnéluct or did not have any particular
belief. Additionally, the Company acknowledges thatettlement or other disposition short of finmlgment may be successful if it permits a
party to avoid expense, delay, distraction, disampand uncertainty. In the event that any actadaim or proceeding to which Indemnitee is a
party is resolved in any manner other than by ad/grdgment against Indemnitee (including, witHouitation, settlement of such action,
claim or proceeding with or without payment of mgprme other consideration) it shall be presumed bhdémnitee has been successful on the
merits or otherwise in such action, suit or progegdAnyone seeking to overcome this presumptiahamyone seeking to determine that the
Indemnitee is not entitled to Indemnification herder, shall have the burden of proof and the buadgrersuasion, by clear and convincing
evidence.



(d) Failure to Act. If the person or persons so ewgred to make a determination pursuant to Se&ffyrhereof shall have failed to make the
requested determination within ninety (90) daysradiny judgment, order, settlement, dismissaltraton award, conviction, acceptance of a
plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, or otlisposition or partial disposition of any Procegdor any other event that could enable the
Corporation to determine Indemnitee’s entitlementhtemnification, the requisite determination thretemnitee is entitled to indemnification
shall be deemed to have been made; except thadtamunation as to entitlement to indemnificatiorder this Agreement shall be required to
be made prior to the final disposition of the Pextiag.

(e) Notice to Insurers. If, at the time of the liptéy the Company of a notice of a Indemnifiablai@ pursuant to Section 2(b) hereof, the
Company has liability insurance in effect which ntayer such Indemnifiable Claim, the Company shiaké prompt notice of the
commencement of such Indemnifiable Claim to theriess in accordance with the procedures set farthé respective policies. The Company
shall thereafter take all necessary or desiralilerato cause such insurers to pay, on behalf cf égademnitee, all amounts payable as a result
of such action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or invgation in accordance with the terms of such peéci

(f) Selection of Counsel. In the event the Compsimgll be obligated hereunder to pay the Expensasyfndemnifiable Claim, the Company
shall be entitled to assume the defense of suadmninifiable Claim, with counsel approved by the &atlle Indemnitee, which approval shall
not be unreasonably withheld, upon the deliverguch Indemnitee of written notice of its electiordb so. After delivery of such notice,
approval of such counsel by the Indemnitee andetention of such counsel by the Company, the Compall not be liable to such
Indemnitee under this Agreement for any fees ohselisubsequently incurred by such Indemnitee reipect to the same Indemnifiable
Claim; provided that, (i) the Indemnitee shall héve right to employ such Indemnitee’s counselny such Indemnifiable Claim at the
Indemnitee’s expense and (ii) if (A) the employmehtounsel by the Indemnitee has been previouslyaized by the Company, (B) such
Indemnitee shall have reasonably concluded that tisean actual conflict of interest, or a potdrtianflict of interest that is material and
reasonably likely, between the Company and sucerimitee in the conduct of any such defense, otH€Company shall not continue to
retain such counsel to defend such Indemnifiab#nglthen the fees and expenses of the Indemniteeissel shall be at the expense of the
Company. As long as the Company has otherwise dechplith the terms hereof, the Company shall haeeright to conduct such defense |
sees fit in its sole discretion, including the tigth settle any claim, action or
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proceeding against any Indemnitee without the autnsesuch Indemnitee, provided such settlemenudes a full release of the Indemnitee
the claimant from all liabilities or potential lidikies under such claim and does not impose amalbg or limitation on the Indemnitee.

(9) Indemnitee shall be entitled access to suadrimbtion in the possession of the Company as magdsonably necessary to enforce
Indemnitee’s rights under this Agreement. Additignaf the Indemnitee is the subject of or is ingalted in any way during an investigation,
whether formal or informal, the Company shall shaith Indemnitee any information it has turned oteeany third parties concerning the
investigation.

3. Additional Indemnification Rights: Nonexclusiyit

(a) Scope. The Company hereby agrees to indemadiy lndemnitee to the fullest extent permitteddwy &nd in accordance with the terms
hereof, notwithstanding that such indemnificatioaymmot be specifically authorized by the Compamrisended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation, the Company’s Bylaws or by statltethe event of any change after the date of tlyjge@ment in any applicable law, statute or
rule which expands the right of a Delaware corporato indemnify a member of its Board of Directorsan officer, employee, agent or
fiduciary, it is the intent of the parties herétatteach Indemnitee shall enjoy by this Agreemeaigreater benefits afforded by such change. Ir
the event of any change in any applicable lawystadr rule which narrows the right of a Delawaseporation to indemnify a member of its
Board of Directors or an officer, employee, agarfiduciary, such change, to the extent not otheewequired by such law, statute or rule t
applied to this Agreement, shall have no effectiosi Agreement or the parties’ rights and obligasillereunder except as set forth in Section 8
(a) hereof.

(b) Nonexclusivity. The indemnification provided this Agreement shall be in addition to any rigiatsvhich any Indemnitee may be entitled
under the Company’s Amended and Restated Certfig@lncorporation, its Bylaws, any agreement, aoig of stockholders or disinterested
directors, the Delaware General Corporation Lawgtberwise. The indemnification provided under thigeement shall continue as to each
Indemnitee for any action that Director or Offit¢eok or did not take while serving in an indemrdfieapacity even though the Director or
Officer may have ceased to serve in such capacity.

4. Order of Payments; No Duplication of Payments;Qffset. The Company hereby acknowledges thatnhmitee may have certain rights to
indemnification, advancement of expenses and/arame provided by a
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third party. The Company hereby agrees (i) thettihe indemnitor of first resort with respect taims made against Indemnitee arising out of
Indemnitee’s capacity as a Director or Officer @n@pany (i.e., its obligations to Indemnitee arenaniy), (ii) that it shall be required to
advance the full amount of Expenses (subject tgtheisions concerning the advancement of lega gt forth elsewhere in this agreement)
incurred by Indemnitee and shall be liable forfileamount of all Expenses, judgments, penalfiegs and amounts paid in settlement as
required by the terms of this Agreement, withoufarel to any rights Indemnitee may have againsthing party, and, (iii) that with respect to
its obligations to advance legal fees and indemimifiemnitee for activities undertaken in Indemrigempacity as a Director or Officer of the
Company, it irrevocably waives, relinquishes andases any third party indemnitor from any andlkaims for contribution, subrogation or
any other recovery of any kind in respect ther&ébe Company further agrees that no advancemerdyongnt by a third party indemnitor on
behalf of Indemnitee with respect to any claimdrich Indemnitee has sought indemnification from @ompany shall affect the foregoing;
however, the Company shall not be liable underAlgigeement to make any payment in connection withlademnifiable Claim made against
any Indemnitee to the extent such Indemnitee Haerwise actually received payment (under any inmegolicy, Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation, the Bylaws or otheseji of the amounts otherwise Indemnifiable Claimeheder. Notwithstanding any other
provision of this Agreement to the contrary, (ifiémnitee shall have no obligation to reduce, offsétcate, pursue or apportion any
indemnification, hold harmless, exoneration, adeament, contribution or insurance coverage amongipieibarties possessing such duties to
Indemnitee prior to the Company'’s satisfaction padormance of all its obligations under this Agrest, and (ii) the Company shall perform
fully its obligations under this Agreement withaegard to whether Indemnitee holds, may pursuasmprsued any indemnification,
advancement, hold harmless, exoneration, contdbuwdr insurance coverage rights against any persentity other than the Company.

5. Partial Indemnification. If any Indemnitee idi#ded under any provision of this Agreement toénthification by the Company for any
portion of Expenses incurred in connection with &mdemnifiable Claim, but not, however, for alltbe total amount thereof, the Company
shall nevertheless indemnify Indemnitee for thetiparof such Expenses to which such Indemniteafigied.
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6. Liability Insurance.

(a) Commitment to Maintain Insurance. For the darabf Indemnitee’s service as a director and/éicef of the Company, and thereafter for
so long as Indemnitee shall be subject to any penali possible Indemnifiable Claim, the Companyllaise commercially reasonable efforts
(taking into account the scope and amount of cayeeevailable relative to the cost thereof) to caadee maintained in effect policies of
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance pround coverage for directors and/or officers of trenpany that is at least substantially
comparable in scope and amount to that providethéyompany’s current policies of directors’ anflogfrs’ liability insurance.

(b) Parity of Coverage. To the extent the Compaajntains liability insurance applicable to diregtoofficers, employees, control persons,
fiduciaries or other agents and affiliates, suatemnitee shall be covered by such policies in suctanner as to provide to such Indemnite:
same rights and benefits as are accorded to the@uyis directors, if such Indemnitee is a directorof the Company’s officers, if such
Indemnitee is not a director of the Company banifficer; or of the Company’s controlling perspfiduciaries or other agents or affiliates, if
such Indemnitee is not an officer or director lsu&icontrol person, fiduciary, agent or affiliad&cept that the Company shall retain the right to
purchase higher, separate limits as it may deenmopppte.

(c) Change of Control. In the event of a Chang€admtrol or the Company’s becoming insolvent—inchglbeing placed into receivership or
entering the federal bankruptcy process and tlee-ithe Company shall maintain in force any andralirance policies then maintained by the
Company in providing insurance—directors’ and d@fie liability, fiduciary, employment practices otherwise—in respect of Indemnitee, for
a period of six years thereafter, and the polistes! continue to be placed by the Company’s broker

7. Exceptions. Any other provision herein to thatcary notwithstanding, the Company shall not bkgalted pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement:

(a) Excluded Action or Omissions. To indemnify dngemnitee for any intentional malfeasance by tideinitee or any act undertaken by
Indemnitee where the Indemnitee did not in goothfaelieve the Indemnitee was acting in the basrésts of the Company, or for any other
acts, omissions or transactions from which the nimgieee may not be relieved of liability under apphble law as determined in a final
adjudication not subject to any further rights ppeal,;
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(b) Indemnifiable Claims Initiated by Indemniteea ihdemnify or advance Expenses to any Indemnitdenespect to Indemnifiable Claims
initiated or brought voluntarily by such Indemniied not by way of defense, except (i) with respeeictions or proceedings to establish or
enforce a right to indemnity under this Agreemardrmy other agreement or insurance policy or utfteiCompany’s Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws now or hefteain effect relating to Indemnifiable Claims flmdemnification Events, (ii) in specific
cases if the Board of Directors has approved tiiation or bringing of such Indemnifiable Clainm, @ii) as otherwise required under the
Delaware General Corporation Law, regardless oftidresuch Indemnitee ultimately is determined t@bttled to such indemnification,
advance expense payment or insurance recovergeasse may be;

(c) Lack of Good Faith. To indemnify any Indemnifeeany Expenses incurred by such Indemnitee wegipect to any proceeding institutec
Indemnitee to enforce or interpret this Agreeméra,court of competent jurisdiction determinesaifinal adjudication not subject to any
further rights of appeal, that each of the matexsalertions made by the Indemnitee in such prosgedas not made in good faith or was
frivolous; or

(d) Indemnifiable Claims Under Section 16(b). Tdeémnify any Indemnitee for Expenses and the paywigntofits arising from the purchase
and sale by such Indemnitee of securities in \imfadf Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act or anyikinsuccessor statute if the Company
reasonably determines that Indemnitee clearly tédi&ection 16(b) and must disgorge the profithéoCompany.

8. No Imputation; Good Faith. The knowledge anaftions, or failure to act, of any director, officagent or employee of the Company or the
Company itself shall not be imputed to Indemniteepurposes of determining any rights under thise&gent. For purposes of any
determination of good faith, Indemnitee shall berded to have acted in good faith if Indemniteettoads based on the records or books of
account of the Company, including financial statetegor on information supplied to Indemnitee byo#ficer of the Company in the course of
his duties, or on the advice of legal counsel ier Company or the Board or counsel selected bycamymittee of the Board or on information
or records given or reports made to the Compangrbyndependent certified public accountant or bggpraiser, investment banker,
compensation consultant, or other expert selectéddreasonable care by the Company or the Boasthprcommittee of the Board. The
provisions of this Section 8 shall not be deemedet@xclusive or to limit in any way the other dintstances in
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which the Indemnitee may be deemed to have metghkcable standard of conduct. Whether or nofdhegoing provisions of this Section .
satisfied, it shall in any event be presumed thdemnitee has at all times acted in good faithiaredmanner he or she reasonably believed to
be in or not opposed to the best interests of thagany.

9. Construction of Certain Phrases.

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, referencesed@ompany” shall include, in addition to the réisig corporation, any constituent
corporation (including any constituent of a consitt) absorbed in a consolidation or merger wtifdts separate existence had continued,
would have had power and authority to indemnifyditectors, officers, employees, agents, fiducgdrd other Affiliated Persons, so that if
Indemnitee is or was a director, officer, employagent, control person, fiduciary or an AffiliatBdrson of such constituent corporation, or is
or was serving at the request of such constituemtozation as a director, officer, employee, cdrperson, agent or fiduciary or another
corporation, partnership, joint venture, employeadiit plan, trust or other enterprise, such Indiéeershall stand in the same position under
the provisions of this Agreement with respect @ ithsulting or surviving corporation as such Indeesnwould have with respect to such
constituent corporation if its separate existera ¢ontinued.

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, reference®toer enterprises” shall include employee bendding; references to “fineshall include an
excise taxes assessed on any Indemnitee with tetsp@c employee benefit plan; and referenceseovisg at the request of the Company”
shall include any service as a director, officeplayee, agent or fiduciary of the Company which @egs duties on, or involves services by,
such director, officer, employee, agent, fiduciaryther Affiliated Person with respect to an emypk benefit plan, its participants or its
beneficiaries; and if any Indemnitee acted in gfagith and in a manner such Indemnitee reasonabigves to be in the interest of the
participants and beneficiaries of an employee bepkin, such Indemnitee shall be deemed to hatexlan a manner “not opposed to the best
interests of the Company” as referred to in thisesgnent.

(c) For purposes of this Agreement a “Change int@tihshall be deemed to have occurred if afterdbee of this Agreement (i) any

“person” (as such term in used in Sections 13(d)&Hd) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934am&nded), other than a trustee or other
fiduciary holding securities under an employee fieptan of the Company or a corporation owned dliseor indirectly by the stockholders of
the Company in substantially the same proportianheir ownership of stock of the Company, is ardmees
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the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3lansaid Act), directly or indirectly, of securgief the Company representing more than
50% of the total voting power represented by then@anys then outstanding Voting Securities, (ii) durinty geriod of two consecutive yea
individuals who at the beginning of such periodstidnte the Board of Directors of the Company ang mew director whose election by the
Board of Directors or nomination for election by t@ompany’s stockholders was approved by a vo#t lefast two-thirds of the directors then
still in office who either were directors at thegbening of the period or whose election or nomioatior election was previously so approved,
cease for any reason to constitute a majority tifece (iii) the stockholders of the Company apmgr@merger or consolidation of the Company
with any other corporation, other than a mergeramsolidation which would result in the Voting Setias of the Company outstanding
immediately prior thereto continuing to represeither by remaining outstanding or by being coreeihto Voting Securities of the surviving
entity) at least 60% of the total voting power esganted by the Voting Securities of the Compargueh surviving entity outstanding
immediately after such merger or consolidationtherstockholders of the Company approve a plamwiptete liquidation of the Company or
an agreement for the sale or disposition by the gz of (in one transaction or a series of trangas} all or substantially all of the
Company’s assets.

(d) For purposes of this Agreement, “Independemgial €ounsel” shall mean an attorney or firm of migys, selected in accordance with the
provisions of Section 1(c) hereof, who shall notédhatherwise performed services for the Compamngrindemnitee within the last three
years (other than with respect to matters concgrthia right of any Indemnitee under this Agreementf other indemnitees under simi
indemnity agreements).

(e) For purposes of this Agreement, a “ReviewingyPahall mean any appropriate person or body sting of a member or members of the
Company’s Board of Directors or any other persohatty appointed by the Board of Directors who isanparty to the particular
Indemnifiable Claim for which an Indemnitee is segkindemnification, or Independent Legal Counsel.

() For purposes of this Agreement, “Voting Sedast shall mean any securities of the Companyth& generally in the election of directors.
10. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executedénor more counterparts, each of which shall titoies an original.

11. Binding Effect; Successors and Assigns. ThiseAment shall be binding upon and inure to the fitesfeand be enforceable by the parties
hereto
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and their respective successors, assigns, inclatigglirect or indirect successor by purchase, erempnsolidation or otherwise to all or
substantially all of the business and/or assets@fCompany (and the Company may assign its rigfdsobligations under this Agreement in
connection with any such transaction without thesemt of any Indemnitee), spouses, heirs, and parsnd legal representatives. The
Company shall require and cause any successort{ahairect or indirect by purchase, merger, codstion or otherwise) to all, substantially
all, or a substantial part, of the business anasets of the Company, by written agreement in famchsubstance satisfactory to each
Indemnitee, expressly to assume and agree to petfos Agreement in the same manner and to the sateat that the Company would be
required to perform if no such succession had tgkace. This Agreement shall be effective as ofdée set forth on the first page, and this
Agreement applies to any Indemnification Event tiaturred prior to or after such date if Indemniteses an officer, director, employee or
agent of, or attorney for, Company, or was serdnthe request of Company as a director, officeipleyee or agent of, or attorney for, ano
corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust tres enterprise, at the time such Indemnificatioerif occurred. This Agreement shall continue
in effect with respect to Indemnifiable Claims taig to Indemnification Events regardless of whetbgector or Officer or any Indemnitee
continues to serve as a director, officer, emplpggent, controlling person, or fiduciary of then@many or of any other enterprise at the
Company’s request.

12. Attorneys’ Fees. In the event that any actsoimstituted by an Indemnitee under this Agreenoeninder any liability insurance policies
maintained by the Company to enforce or interpngtaf the terms hereof or thereof, any Indemnitegdi e entitled to be paid all Expenses
(including reasonable attorneys’ fees as determiryeithe Company and all other costs, expenses lalightions incurred in connection with
investigating, defending a witness in or partidipgin (including on appeal), or preparing to defebe a witness in or participate in, any such
action) incurred by such Indemnitee with respeduoh action, regardless of whether such Indemistakimately successful in such action,
unless, as part of such action, a court of compgtesdiction determines in a final adjudicatiootsubject to further rights of appeal that each
of the material assertions made by Indemniteelssis for such action were not made in good faitivere frivolous. In connection with such
action, Indemnitee shall be entitled to the advarer# of Expenses (including reasonable attorneyes fis determined by the Company and all
other costs, expenses and obligations incurrednnection investigating, defending a witness ipanticipating in (including on appeal), or
preparing to defend, be a witness in or participgtany such action) with respect to such actioress, as a part of such action, a court of
competent jurisdiction over such action
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determines in a final adjudication not subjectudHer rights of appeal that each of the matesakdions made by such Indemnitee as a basis
for such action was not made in good faith or wamlous. In the event of an action instituted &oithe name of the Company under this
Agreement to enforce or interpret any of the teofnthis Agreement, the Indemnitee shall be entittetle paid all Expenses (including
reasonable attorneys’ fees as determined by thep@oynand all other costs, expenses and obligatimusred in connection investigating,
defending a witness in or participating in (incliglion appeal), or preparing to defend, be a witiress participate in, any such action)
incurred by such Indemnitee in defense of suctoac¢including costs and expenses incurred witheesp Indemnitee counterclaims and
cross-claims made in such action), and shall bdezhto the advancement of Expenses (includingageable attorneys’ fees as determined by
the Company and all other costs, expenses andatiolics incurred in connection investigating, defegdh witness in or participating in
(including on appeal), or preparing to defend, étaess in or participate in, any such actionhwispect to such action, unless, as a part of
such action, a court having jurisdiction over saction determines in a final adjudication not sabje further rights of appeal that each of <
Indemnitee’s material defenses to such action wasnade in good faith or was frivolous. In the eMeilemnitee brings an action for recovery
under any insurance policy referred to in this Bect2, Company shall indemnify Indemnitee for &xpenses incurred in bringing such
action and shall advance to Indemnitee the Expesfsasch action; provided, however, that by exemuthis Agreement Indemnitee hereby
undertakes to promptly re-pay the Company for amhsadvanced Expenses if a court of competentijetion finds that all of the claims
brought by the Indemnitee were frivolous and najaod faith.

13. Notice. All notices and other communicatiorguieed or permitted hereunder shall be in writingl gahall be mailed by registered or
certified mail, postage prepaid, sent by facsiril®@therwise delivered by hand or by messengereasded: (i) if to an Indemnitee at such
Indemnitee’s address and facsimile number as sttt feneath the Indemnitee’s signature to this Agrent, or, at such other address and
facsimile number as the Indemnitee may furnisthéo@ompany; or (i) if to the Company, one copyudtide sent to at the address of its
principal corporate offices, which is currently 501South Margay Avenue, Carson, CA 90746, facsi(3il®) 735-0088, Attn: Chief
Executive Officer, or at such other address andifisite number as the Company shall have furnisbhetle Indemnitee, with a copy to Vice
President, Legal Services, 17150 South Margay Age@arson, CA 90746, facsimile 310.735.0553. Each sotice or other communication
shall for all purposes of this Agreement be treatee@ffective or having been given when delivefetlivered personally, or, if sent by mail, at
the earlier of its receipt or 72 hours after thensdas been
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deposited in a regularly maintained receptacldgtferdeposit of the United States mail, addressddrailed as aforesaid or, if sent by
facsimile, upon confirmation of facsimile transfenen directed to the facsimile number providedfasesaid.

14. Consent to Jurisdiction. The Company and eagérhnitee each hereby irrevocably consent to tlisdjation of the courts of the State of
Delaware for all purposes in connection with antyoscor proceeding which arises out of or relatethts Agreement and agree that any action
instituted under this Agreement shall be commenpeasecuted and continued only in courts locatdddlaware, which shall be the exclusive
and only proper forum for adjudicating such a claim

15. Severability. The provisions of this Agreemsimall be severable in the event that any of thegigians hereof (including any provision
within a single section, paragraph or sentencehale by a court of competent jurisdiction to besilid, void or otherwise unenforceable, and
the remaining provisions shall remain enforceabléhe fullest extent permitted by law. Furthermaoethe fullest extent possible, the
provisions of this Agreement (including, withounitations, each portion of this Agreement contajramy provision held to be invalid, void or
otherwise unenforceable, that is not itself invalidid or unenforceable) shall be construed so agvie effect to the intent manifested by the
provision held invalid, illegal or unenforceable.

The Company shall be precluded from asserting ynsaich proceeding that the procedures and presongpdf this Agreement are not valid,
binding and enforceable and shall stipulate insugh court that the Company is bound by all the&igirons of this Agreement and is precluded
from making any assertion to the contrary.

16. Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be govermgadnd its provisions construed and enforced aoatance with the laws of the State of
Delaware, as applied to contracts between Delavesidents, entered into and to be performed entivéhin the State of Delaware, without
regard to the conflict of laws principles thereof.

17. Subrogation. In the event of payment underAlgieement, the Company shall be subrogated textent of such payment to all of the
rights of recovery of each Indemnitee, who shafleere all documents required and shall do all thetsmay be necessary to secure such rights
and to enable the Company effectively to bring su#nforce such rights.

18. Amendment and Termination. No amendment, naatifin, termination or cancellation of this Agreernghall be effective unless itis in
writing signed by the Company and the Director &fic@r, whereupon all
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Indemnitees (including any that are third partydfemaries hereunder) shall be bound. No waivearof of the provisions of this Agreement
shall be deemed or shall constitute a waiver of@hgr provisions hereof (whether or not similas} shall such waiver constitute a continuing

waiver.

19. Integration and Entire Agreement. This Agreenseis forth the entire understanding between #negs hereto and supersedes and merges
all previous written and oral negotiations, comngitits, understandings and agreements relating wuthject matter hereof between the parties
hereto, including, without limitation, any indemindtion agreement between the Director and Offeaet the Company.

[Signature page follows.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exetthis Agreement as of the date first above written

COMPANY U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC
a Delaware corporatic

By:

Name:
Title:

Address: 17150 South Margay Avenue
Carson, CA 9074

DIRECTOR OR OFFICEF

Printed Nam:
Address
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO DIRECTOR OR OFFICER INDEMNIFICAON AGREEMENT]
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FORM OF UNDERTAKING

The undersigned is the Indemnitee as defined incérdain Indemnification Agreement dated between the undersigned and
Company (the “Indemnification Agreement”). Capitali terms not otherwise defined herein shall hagerteanings give in such agreement.

As a condition to receiving Expense Advances, Inuigae agrees that, if, when and to the extentdHatal judicial determination is made that
Indemnitee would not be permitted to be so inderdifinder applicable law, the Indemnitee shall lrirse the Company for all amounts
theretofore paid by the Company to Indemnitee @msto the Indemnification Agreement within 60 dayshe Company’s demand, but only
to the extent that Indemnitee is ultimately fournd to be entitled to be indemnified by the Compangler the terms of the Indemnification
Agreement, the charter documents of the Comparmju(iing its organizing documents and bylaws), gogliaable state law.

This Agreement shall not affect in any manner sghhich Indemnitee may have against the Comparnyiresurer or any other person to seek
indemnification for or reimbursement of any expensaferred to herein or any judgment which maydrelered in any litigation or proceeding.

[Indemnitee]
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Exhibit 10.5€
CONTRACT OF LEASE
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

This CONTRACT OF LEASE (the “Contract”), made and entered into on Jan@ag010 at Manila, Philippines, by and between:

ROBINSONS LAND CORPORATION , a corporation duly organized and existing unchet lay virtue of the laws of the Republic of
the Philippines, with office address at thet?5 Fl&tobinsons-Equitable Tower, ADB Avenue corner &tav Street, Ortigas Center,
Pasig City, represented herein by its Vice Presidad TreasureTERESITA H. VASAY and its General Manager for Office Buildings
Division, HENRY L. YAP , duly authorized for the purpose and hereinattégrred to as th& ESSOR’

-and-

US AUTOPARTS NETWORK (PHILIPPINES) CORPORATION , a domestic corporation duly organized and exgstinder and by
virtue of the laws of the Republic of the Philipp# with office address at the"5 floor, JAKA Buildi 6780 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
represented herein by its Direct85ANE EVANGELIST, duly authorized for the purpose and hereinaftegrretl to as the EESSEE

WITNESSETH — THAT:

WHEREAS, the LESSOR is the owner of office unitshetRobinsons Cybergate Plazéthe “Project”), described in Section | of this
Contract (the “Leased Premises”);

WHEREAS, the LESSEE has offered to lease the LeBsemhises inclusive of any and all appurtenantésts thereto;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of thesfywing premises and the terms and conditions hetipinlated and restrictions
hereinafter contained and set forth in the Geribeains and Conditions attached as Annex “A” andAtreendments to the General Terms and
Conditions attached herein as Annex “B”, and sutieloagreement as may be necessary, all of wh&emade as integral parts hereof, the
LESSOR hereby leases and delivers unto the LESBBBdd and tenantable condition the premises desthiereunder, under the following
terms and conditions:

BASIC LEASE PROVISIONS

The Basic Provisions of this lease are as follows:

I DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Project . Robinsons Cybergate Pla

Location . EDSA, Mandaluyong Cit

Floor(s) : 9th floor

Gross Aree : 3,685.29 square mete

Hand-over condition :  The LESSOR shall deliver to the LESSEE on the Hawel-Date the Leased Premises with

standard lighting fixtures, air-conditioning unésd piping, and electrical wiring, excluding
switches. Acousti
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ceiling boards are included in the deliverables, liESSEE shall have the option not to have
these installed. However, cost of removal of inathteiling t-runners, if warranted by the
LESSEE, shall be for account of the LESSEE and Seatubject to reinstatement at the end of
the lease in accordance to LESSOR’s specificatmaisconditions. The flooring shall be bare
cement finish and without any floor coverit

All improvements and partitioning on the leasedmiees shall be for the account of -
LESSEE.

The LESSEE shall have the right to commence itgaddit-out/construction work in the Leas
Premises on the Hand-over Date, provided the plame already been approved by the
LESSOR and the appropriate agencies and permttsiingntalities. LESSEE shall also have
right to operate its business on the Leased Pramisee the fit-out work is completed and the
LESSEE has secured the necessary permit for siesiatigm.

Il. LEASE TERM

Number of Year: . Sixty-three (63) months (inclusive of the fit-owdrpd), renewable for a sixty (60)-month term
upon the mutual agreement of both parties and sutgjerior written notice of intent from the
LESSEE five (5) months and a signed renewal contvax (2) months before the termination
date of the original lease term.
The Lease shall commence only upon LESSEE receRigA approval for its application for
registration or sixty (60) days from LESS’s execution of the Lease whichever is ear

Hanc-over Date : Upon receipt of PEZA approval, or at LESE's election which, in any event, shall not be p
to January 15, 2010 nor later than March 1, 2

Contract Commencement Dz . The Lease shall commence on the F-over Date

Rental Payment CommencementC  :  Four (4) months after Ha-over Date

Termination Date . Sixty-three (63) months after Ha-over Date

It is understood herein that the LESSEE shall &lgldi for all obligations of a lessee as embodigtiismContract and Annexes “A” and
“B” even during the fit-out period.

LESSEE shall have the right to terminate the ledsay time after thirty-nine (39) months, uponeipt of ninety (90) days’ prior written
notice. Should LESSEE terminate during months f¢46) through fifty-one (51), LESSEE shall pay affimation Privilege fee equivalent to
four (4) months’ rent. Should LESSEE terminate dgirnonths fifty-two (52) through the end of the §eal ESSEE shall pay a Termination
Privilege fee equivalent to three (3) months’ r&itould LESSEE terminate the lease prior to oterthirtyninth month, LESSEE shall pay
monthly rent payable through the thirty-ninth mopths a termination privilege fee equivalent torf¢4) months’ rent.
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Escalation Rate . 5% per annum, beginning on the third year of tlasdeterm. In case of renewal, this escalation
rate shall also apply to the renewal rent, begigoin the third year of threnewal term

[l RENT PER MONTH

A rental rate of (Pes0)300.00 per square metemparth based on the gross area shall be paid lyBBSEE for the first two (2) years of
the lease. Thereafter, this shall be escalated/opinually.

The LESSEE shall have three (3) months rent-fieeui period beginning on the Hand-over Date. After fit-out period, the LESSEE
shall have one (1) rent-free month each year firhial five-year lease term, as detailed inthetal schedule below.

The following rental schedule shall apply during thitial five-year lease term:

Esc.

Period Monthly Rent Rate
Year From To Per sg.m. Discount Total
— Month 1 Month 3 Fit-out perioc —
1 Month 4 (Peso300.0( 10C% Ren-free —
1* Month 5 Month 7 (Pes0300.0( 0% (Pes01,105,587.0 —
1 Month 8 Month 15 (Pes0300.0( 0% (Pes01,105,587.0
2 Month 16 (Pes0300.0( 10C% Ren-free —
2 Month 17 Month 27 (Pes0300.0( 0% (Pes01,105,587.0
3 Month 28 (Pes0315.0( 10(% Ren-free 5%
3 Month 29 Month 39 (Pes0315.0( 0% (Pes01,160,866.3
4 Month 40 (Pes0330.7¢ 10C% Ren-free 5%
4 Month 41 Month 51 (Pes0330.7¢ 0% (Pes01,218,909.6
5 Month 52 (Pes0347.2¢ 10C% Ren-free 5%
5 Month 53 Month 63 (Pes0347.2¢ 0% (Pes01,279,864.3

* Application of Advance Rer

The rent above-stated is subject to the appropniteolding taxes as required by the relevant lawd regulations. However, the rent
does not include any and all taxes which are bagsgssed, levied or may be imposed by the govetnswah as but not limited to Value-
Added Tax (VAT) and Documentary Stamp Tax (DST)jcltshall be for the account of the LESSEE, if aatile.

Rent shall be payable monthly in advance no l&i@n the first five (5) days of each calendar marthout the need for express demand
but upon receipt of written invoice from the LESS@Rhe LESSEE fifteen (15) days prior to the dated

IV.  SECURITY DEPOSIT

The LESSEE shall pay the amountRESOS: THREE MILLION FIVE HUNDRED TWENTY-TWO THOUSA ND FOUR
HUNDRED EIGHTY-THREE AND 10/100 ((Peso) 3,522,4830), equivalent to three (3) months’ rental based oratrexage rental rate for
five (5) years, as Security Deposit on or beforeuday 15, 2010.

In case of renewal after the initial five-year keasrm, this Security Deposit shall be subjectdjostment based on the average rental rate
for the five-year renewal term. Such adjustmerihenSecurity Deposit shall be payable by the LES&HEBe LESSOR within the first five
(5) days of the initial year of the renewal term.
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The Security Deposit shall be refundable on or teegixty (60) days after the LESSEE has vacated ¢lased Premises at the termina
of the lease, and upon turn-over to and acceptaytiee LESSOR of the said Leased Premises, prowdtledligations incurred directly by
LESSEE and any unpaid charges incurred directlylB$SEE and due on the Leased Premises have béesdtiled by the LESSEE and such
proof of payments have been satisfactorily presetitehe LESSOR as required. Prior to utilizing 8ecurity Deposit as payment for unpaid
and undisputed rent or utilities, LESSOR shall préd ESSEE with a written demand for payment atahal ESSEE fifteen (15) days to pay
all undisputed amounts due. Should LESSOR wiskfund less than the total amount of the Securitgd3é, it shall present a detailed list
with photographs to support any monies proposdxtavithheld.

V. ADVANCE RENT

The LESSEE shall pay the amountRESOS: THREE MILLION THREE HUNDRED SIXTEEN THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED
SIXTY-ONE ((Peso) 3,316,761.00quivalent to three (3) months’ rental on the entieased Premiséd US ANY APPLICABLE VAT,
payable on or before January 15, 2010. Applicastoall be as per the schedule in Article 11l herein.

VI. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
The following shall be for the LESSEE’s account:
. Management Dues PESOS: EIGHTY-FIVE ((Pes0)85.00)per square meter per month based on the gross
Management Dues are subject to periodic adjustment.
Management Dues shall cover services as providdgekbibit A.
The LESSEE shall be charged Management Dues begitmi the Hand-over Date.

Management Dues shall be paid monthly in advandateothan the first five (5) days of each apfieamonth without the need for
express demand from the LESSOR to the LESSEE.

. Water and power consumption shall be charged basedeter reading with a two percent (2%) surchange the rates charged by the
utility companies. In the absence of a meter, réie shall apply as determined by the LESSORhérevent of a meter defect, the
LESSEE shall be liable for any adjustment arishgyefrom.

The above-stated amounts shall not include anyalitidxes, which are being assessed, levied, orbeaynposed by the government,
such as but not limited to Value-Added Tax (VAThieh shall be for the account of the LESSEE, iflejajple.

VIl.  RENEWAL RENT

The rental rate for the renewal term shall be fhe arket rent” at the time of renewal, but ingicumstance shall the rent for the
renewal term be increased or decreased by morel@fanof the rental rate of the last year of th&éahlease term.
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The term “fair market rent” shall be defined to melae market rental rate for buildings of compagadite, location, age and quality, and
should include consideration of the space effigjemratio, the total amount of space being leasethby ESSEE at the time of renewal, and any
leasing concessions which are granted at such aaileabuildings to lessees which are similar ire sind credit to the LESSEE, so long as the
comparable buildings are located in the same bssidestrict as the leased premises.

Should the LESSEE and the LESSOR fail to reachga@eament on the “fair market rent” within a spesifiperiod, the parties agree to
submit the matter exclusively to an arbitrator éonmminated jointly by both parties, and whosesteal be equally shared by the same. Both
parties covenant to submit to the final decisiothef said arbitrator, who shall be selected fronogrreputable real estate agencies that have
done commercial/office leasing transactions fortmational companies for at least five years papthe time of renewal.

VIIl. LESSEE'S PURCHASE OF A/C EQUIPMENT

Subject to a separate Deed of Sale, on the HandBmate, the LESSEE shall purchase from the LESS@HRair-conditioning equipment
installed in the Leased Premid@ESOS: FOURTEEN MILLION (Php14,000,000.00)and agrees to sell back the said equipment atth@e
the lease (original or extended, as applicabléhed_ ESSOR for a token price BESOS: FIFTY ONLY (Php 50.00).

Payment for the purchase of the air-conditioningigepent shall be due on or before the Rental Pay@emmencement Date.

Maintenance and repair of said a/c equipment &leaibr the account of the a/c equipment owner. ddst of quarterly cleaning, howev
is included in the Management Dues being paid by tESSEE.

IX. CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT

The LESSEE shall be required to give a Construdiieposit in an amount equivalentR&ESOS: TWO HUNDRED per square meter
based on gross area, payable on or before JansaPp10. This deposit shall be refundable afteffitheut period, subject to the LESSEE’s
compliance to all items given in the LESSOR'’s ppemation checklist.

The LESSOR shall provide the LESSEE a Stateme@boftruction Deposit, detailing all amounts dechletfrom the said deposit, if
any. The following are costs to be deducted frommGlonstruction Deposit:

a) Power/water consumption charges durin-out/construction*

b) Housekeeping services/cleaning of common areastatfdy fi-out/construction

c) Power and water meter depos

d) Performance cash bond (refundable upon the faitidipliance to all p-operation requirement

e) Unrectified construction violation penali

f)  Construction damages that may oct
* Such power and water charges durin-out shall also be subject to the utility surchav§@%, as per Article VI hereil

Except with regard to power and water consumptimh@eposit charges, amounts shall be deductedtfrer@onstruction Deposit only
after the LESSOR has provided the LESSEE with eatied an opportunity for LESSEE to verify all cheg@nd deductions.
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X. REINSTATEMENT

Not later than thirty (30) days after approvallué LESSEE'’s fit-out plans, both parties shall agnesriting as to the
improvements/installations which shall be retairst] which shall be removed or restored/reinstatede LESSEE’s cost upon termination of
the lease. This list shall be annexed to this Gatsubsequently.

Xl.  DENSITY REQUIREMENTS

The LESSOR undertakes to construct additionalsfiagrwell(s) to meet a minimum density ratio of €} square meters per person.
However, it shall be the LESSEEfesponsibility to ensure that at any given tioteupants of the leased premises shall not exaedddensit
ratio.

In case of conflict between the provisions of Bantract of Lease and the General Terms and Conditittached herein, the provisions
of this Contract of Lease shall prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused trggimment to be executed on the date and in the filsst above-written.

ROBINSONS LAND CORPORATION US AUTO PARTS NETWORK (PHILIPPINES)
CORPORATION

Lessor Lessee

By: By:

TERESITA H. VASAY SHANE EVANGELIST

Vice President & Treasure Director

/sl Henry L. Yag /s/ Shane Evangeli

HENRY L. YAP

General Manager, Office Buildings Divisi

SIGNED IN THE PRESENCE OF:

/s/ Maricel N. Cadiz /s/ Shannon L. Roark
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
(For Lessor)

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
, METRO MANILA) S. S.

| certify that on this date, before me, a notarplpuduly authorized in the city named above tcetakknowledgments, personally appeared:

Competent
Name Evidence of Identity Date & Place Issued
ROBINSONS LAND CORP CTC#0000181° Jan. 9, 2009, Quezon Ci
TERESITA H. VASAY CTC#2560747: Jan. 31, 2009, Muntinlupa Ci
HENRY L. YAP CTC#2680643( Jan. 29, 2009, Pasig Ci

who were identified by me through competent evigeoifcidentity to be the same persons describelaridregoing instrument, who
acknowledged before me that their respective sigaaton the instrument were voluntarily affixedtbgm for the purposes stated therein, and
who declared to me that they have executed theumsint as their free and voluntary act and deedlzatdhey have the authority to sign on
behalf of their respective principals.

This document refers to a Contract of Lease witheéxes “A” (General Terms and Conditions) and “Bh{@ndments to the General
Terms and Conditions) which are made integral pgageeof, signed by the parties and their instrualesitnesses on each and every page
thereof and is sealed with my notarial seal.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL on the date and at the place first above-written.

NOTARY PUBLIC

Doc. No. ; >
Page No ; E @ ! NOTARY PUBLIC, CALIFORNIA 3

Shitml) 0o ANGELES COUNTY 3
Book No. ; j o mrwmﬁwui,mni
Series of . /s/ Robert Salcido
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
(For Lessee)

| certify that on this date, before me, a notarpljsuduly authorized in the city named above teetakknowledgments, personally appeared:
Competent

Name Evidence of Identity Date & Place Issuec

US AUTOPARTS
SHANE EVANGELIST

who were identified by me through competent evideofcidentity to be the same persons describelaridregoing instrument, who
acknowledged before me that their respective sigaaton the instrument were voluntarily affixedtbgm for the purposes stated therein, and
who declared to me that they have executed theumsint as their free and voluntary act and deedfztdhey have the authority to sign on

behalf of their respective principals.

This document refers to a Contract of Lease withexes “A” (General Terms and Conditions) and “Bh{@ndments to the General
Terms and Conditions) which are made integral pgageeof, signed by the parties and their instruslesitnesses on each and every page

thereof and is sealed with my notarial seal.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL on the date and at the place first above-written.

NOTARY PUBLIC

Doc.No. | ROBERT SALCIDO
. COMRM. & 1557882
Page No. ; 3 ) OTARY PUBLIE, CALIFOANIA
W AY/)  L0S ANGELES COUNTY T
Book No. : 1 PR My Caram. Explres Apel 11, 1010
Series of . /s/ Robert Salcid
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STANDARD GTC — CYBERGATE (OFFICE)
ANNEX “A”
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

In consideration of the foregoing premises, thenpayt of rentals and other charges therein stipdilatel in compliance with the
covenants, conditions and restrictions herein iragdass to the use and occupancy of the propertiheopart of the. ESSEE to be paid,
observed and performed, thESSOR herebyL EASES andDELIVERS unto theLESSEE in good and tenantable condition the aforesaid
premises subject to the following stipulations:

1. TERM - The term of the lease shall be for a period afosth in the Basic Lease Provisions. The Contraay be renewed by the
mutual agreement of both parties six (6) monthsrgd its expiration.

If, upon the expiration of the term of this leageafter the termination or cancellation of thisn@act for any cause or reason whatsoever,
and theLESSOR shall allow theLESSEE to be in possession of the premises, the termeolfeifise will be monthly and shall be subject to the
same conditions, covenants, stipulations, andicéstis specified in this Contract.

In the event the ESSEE holds over and remains in possession of the prenaiffer the expiration or termination of the temit® renewe
or extension without theESSOR’s consent, such holdover or continuous possessidhretidoe deemed or considered as a renewal or
extension of this lease, and thESSEE shall be obliged to pay a monthly rent equivalentrie hundred fifty percent (150%) of the highest
rent and other charges paid during the term oflé@ise without prejudice to the right of thESSOR to file an ejectment suit to compel
recovery of the premises and recover whatever damiagnay suffer because of the unlawful detainer.

Should thdLESSEE pre-terminate this lease Contract before the leapees LESSEE shall be liable to pay to tHEESSOR the rental
fees and other charges for the unexpired portighefease term, in addition to the forfeituretod Security Deposit and any unused Advance
Rent as provided in Section 3 hereof.

The LESSOR has the right to pre-terminate this Contract if tEs<SSEE violates any of the conditions of this Contract.

2.RENT - The monthly rental shall be paid at tHEESSOR’s office within the first five (5) calendar days @ calendar month to
which the rent corresponds, without the need ofateinThe_LESSEE shall deduct and withhold the withholding tax dunetioe monthly rental
and remit the same to the Bureau of Internal Reg¢BLR) in accordance with BIR regulations. THeSSEE shall submit to the ESSOR a
copy of the Certificate of Remittance of the withding tax within five (5) days from the time of pagnt of the tax to the BIR. Without
prejudice, however, to all other remedies of tEESSOR under the Contract, all unpaid rentals and othargds which are overdue and unp
shall be subject to interest charges at the ratiereé percent (3%) per month, or the maximum plieganterest rate by law or commercial
practice, whichever is higher, as may be determinetheLESSOR from the date of delinquency until full paymentrief. In addition, the
LESSOR, at its option, may impose penalty of five perog&d) per month, on all unpaid charges includingriests for accounts over sixty
(60) days past due until full payment date.

The interest charges shall also apply to any drati@arages of theESSEE including, but not limited to, unpaid rentals, agnditioning
charges, common usage charges, reimbursementvelogenent costs and such other costs as may berdeésl byLESSOR .

3. SECURITY DEPOSIT AND ADVANCE RENT - Upon execution of this Contract, thESSEE shall pay the. ESSOR a Security
Deposit, the amount of whichsistated in Section IV of the Basic Lease Provisitmserve as security for the full and faithful qadiance of
each and every term, provision, covenant, and tionddf this lease. ThEESSOR shall not be required to keep the Security Defdosin its
general funds and tHeESSEE shall not be entitled to interest on such depdsie Security Deposit shall remain intact during ¢hére term o
this lease and theESSEE cannot demand that it be applied as payment foro&itg monetary obligations under this ContracttHe event the
LESSEE satisfies the ESSOR of its full and faithful performance and compliangith every provision of this lease, the Securigpbsit shall
be refunded to theESSEE not later than sixty (60) days after the expiratidnhe lease term. THEESSEE shall likewise satisfy any and all
monetary obligations to tHeEESSOR, and shall completely and satisfactorily vacatdiver, and surrender the leased premises in ag goo
condition as it was prior to the lease except &prdciation due to ordinary wear and tear, tolB8SOR ..

Subject to the provisions of this Contract, in évent the.ESSEE terminates this Contract before the expiry datenfoatever reason, tl
Security Deposit, shall be automatically forfeitedavor of theLESSOR, to cover expenses incurred by tHeSSOR arising from this lease
arrangement, such as commissions paid to brokecsingentation expenses, etc., except when suchntation is by reason of any civil or
political disturbances and/or uprising, act of waate of national emergency declarec
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the proper government body, or any other circuntgateyond the control of th&SSEE and/or its assignee. In which case, the Security
Deposit or the unused Advanced Rent shall be retlhy thd ESSOR to theLESSEE not later than sixty (60) days from the terminatidn
this Contract. Th& ESSEE'sliability for any breach of this Contract or foryaabligation for the leased premises shall notitnééd to the
amount of the said Security Deposit.

In addition, thd.ESSEE shall pay the. ESSOR an Advance Rent, the amount of which is stateceicti8n V of the Basic Lease
Provisions. The said amount shall be applied ta¢hefor the last number of months to which itregponds or is equivalent. In the event of
pre-termination of this Contract before the leasentexpires, any unused Advance Rent shall liketvés@rfeited in favor of theESSOR.

4. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES - Monthly rent does not include reimbursable expsrgich as, but not limited to, the following
charges which are for the account of tEeSSEE :

a) Management Dues Payment of the Management Dues, upon adviceedfHSSOR, shall be made to tHEESSOR based on the
statement of account of th& SSOR . The Management Dues are intended to covek B®SEE’s share of the maintenance and operating
of the common areas of the Project, the commottitiasj utilities and services as thESSOR may solely and reasonably determine. These
shall include, but shall not be limited to, admirdsive and overhead expenses, decorating expansasance, janitorial, sanitation, garbage
fees, security services, cost repair and maintenahequipment and facilities, light of common arezosts of air-conditioning, water, power,
labor as well as such other related expenses dAEHBBOR may deem necessary. The Management Dues shalbjeesto review to reflect
actual expenses and which charges in no casebghpHid later than seven (7) days after the emédf calendar month to which the charges
correspond.

Any temporary interruption in the facilities or gges mentioned shall not be deemed as an eviofittile LESSEE, nor shall it relieve
the LESSEE of any obligation under this Contract including tieyment of rental nor the abatement thereof nbjestitheLESSOR to any
liability arising therefrom.

b) Individual Services/ Utilities - Upon the advice of theESSOR, theLESSEE shall pay the. ESSOR or the utility companies, prior
to delinquency, all necessary and applicable clssfigewater, electricity, air-conditioning or othegrvices or utilities, used, rendered or
supplied in connection with tHEESSEE’s possession of the premises, together with any sisms® or surcharges in respect thereto and, excej
when the same is furnished by tHeSSOR, shall contract for the same in its own name dradl protect the ESSOR and the premises from
any other charges. Th&aSSOR, after theLESSEE fails to pay the sum due for the utilities withine (5) days from the time it receives
written notice of delinquency, shall have the righshut off all unpaid utilities to the premisdstained by or through tHeESSOR . All costs
of utilities and services provided by or through tfESSOR shall be allocated to tHEESSEE as and in the manner provided for the
Management Dues. Delinquency shall be understobdve occurred if in case of satetered utilities or utilities charged on a peragumete
basis, thd ESSEE fails to pay the obligations due before the fiesten (7) days of the succeeding month. In caséarfges payable directly to
the utility companies, delinquency shall occur ufaiture of LESSEE to pay its obligations one (1) month after suchigailons become due
and payable.

Utility meters shall be provided by thé& SSOR, but the cost of equipment and related installagiopenses shall be for the account o
LESSEE. In the event of a meter breakdown, LHEESSEE undertakes to pay any and all back charges thatresayt therefrom.

In the event air-conditioning for the leased pressis supplied by theESSOR, theLESSEE shall pay the ESSOR the charges for the
use of such, which shall include the costs of dg@ramaintenance, overhead expenses, and suchastiwints th& ESSOR may deem as
reasonable under the circumstance.

TheLESSEE, as well as all other tenants, are prohibited fiestalling and maintaining separate air-conditignunits or systems, other
than those previously agreed upon by the partieg if in theLESSOR’s judgment, the premises require an air-conditiorsygtem separate
from that provided by ESSOR and written permission to install such separateanditioning system is secured from tHESSOR . The
LESSEE shall bear all costs and expenses thereof.

The LESSEE shall pay the foregoing expenses not later thaars€¥) days after the end of each calendar mongei@od to which the
charges correspond.

Any temporary interruption in the facilities or g&es mentioned shall not be deemed as an eviofittimee LESSEE nor shall it relieve th
LESSEE of any obligation under this Contract including tieyment of rental nor the abatement thereof nbjestitheLESSOR to any
liability arising therefrom. However, tHEESSOR shall endeavor to use every effort and diligenceesbore promptly the facilities and services
to their proper functions.
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5.NATURE AND USE OF THE LEASED PREMISES AND USE OF COMMON AREAS - The leased premises shall be used
exclusively for purposes as agreed upon byLtB8SOR andLESSEE, and only under the name and style mentionedarCibntract. The use
of the leased premises other than what is prewaamleed upon, whether temporarily or permanentlyst be with the prior written consent of
theLESSOR, otherwise, th€ ESSOR may, at its option, consider this Contract of Leasinded, without resorting to court action, @age
the rent or compel theESSEE to stop the new activities.

It is understood, however, that thESSOR reserves the right to permit other tenants of ttogelet for the use of other spaces within the
Project for the operation and management of susmbsses identical or similar to that of tHeSSEE .

The LESSEE shall warehouse only such goods in the leased pesnim line with the approved purpose of busindesauction, fire or
bankruptcy or closing-out sale may be conductetiérieased premises without the written consetti@f ESSOR..

The LESSEE shall, prior to or at the commencement of its oeewgy of the premises and at anytime thereaftee, pakventive measures,
as may be deemed necessary, to forestall any damaige leased premises. THESSEE undertakes to continue paying its monthly rentio t
LESSOR should any alterations, additions, improvementstaitations or repairs within the premises be utadken unless the repair being
undertaken is of such extent that tHeESSEE is unable to use the leased premises for the perfoosvhich it was leased as determined jointly
by theLESSOR.

The use and occupancy by thESSEE of the leased premises shall include, jointly vather lessees and unit owners, the use of cor
areas adjacent to the leased premises and pdngoeaf in connection with others, necessary agpotrto and exit from the leased premises,
public toilet, and other facilities as may be dasigd from time to time by tHeESSOR, subject to reasonable rules and regulationshuse
thereof as prescribed from time to time by EfSSOR. The lease does not extend to the outside portibtieeduilding corresponding to or
opposite the leased premises nor to the corridutshallways within the building and no merchandis@roperty of the. ESSEE shall be
placed therein. Without prejudice to the rightshtf LESSOR in this Contract, theESSOR may remove or cause the removal of any object
found outside of the leased premises as describeinhwith costs chargeable to thESSEE .

6. SUBMISSION OF PLANS - Within the time provided for by tHeESSOR, the LESSEE shall submit the construction plan for the
proposed installations, improvements, lightingunes, floor covering, and other installations ay i@ required by the nature and purpose «
business, and only after receiptldfSSOR’s prior written approval of the said floor plan, whiapproval shall not be unreasonably withheld,
and submission to tHEESSOR by theLESSEE of the necessary construction bond, the amounthiéiwshall be solely determined by the
LESSOR, shallLESSEE install and maintain said installations and improeats at its own expense. Any subsequent additidtesations or
changes to the approved plans shall be made ooly wpitten consent of theESSOR . TheLESSEE shall also be responsible for securing all
the necessary government permits or licenses dawphy all taxes necessary for its operations.LHESEE shall furnish thee ESSOR
copies of the said permits and licenses or anywahthereof fifteen (15) days from the start of HiEESSEE’s business and every renewal date
thereof as required by law. ThESSEE must make a declaration of its maximum electrioatl and enumerate thereat, in the checklist
provided by the. ESSOR, the electrical fixtures, appliances, equipmesatilities, etc.

With the prior written approval of tHeESSOR , theLESSEE may install the necessary installations as mayehaired by its business
provided the strength and general structure obthikeling or the premises are not thereby alteredtioerwise adversely affected and, provided
further, that the other conditions of this Contra not thereby violated.

Furthermore, the installation of additional plundpielectrical appliances/equipment, telephone aladiyipe in the premises shall be for
the account of and expense of tHeESSEE , and only after obtaining the prior written consend approval of theESSOR . Such installation
(s) should be made in such a way as not to causagkato the premises. Provided, however, thatdrirtstallation of additional electrical
appliances wherein extra electrical outlets wilineeded, theESSEE shall first furnish th&. ESSOR with plans of such additional outlets for
the LESSOR'’s prior written approval. TheESSEE shall, at all times, cooperate with thESSOR’s agent/representative in thESSOR'’s
regular inspection of theESSEE's electrical load. For this reason, thESSEE shall use only duly licensed electrician(s) who harsure the
the additional load of current shall be within ttegacity of the main switch of the panel on theegponding floor. TheESSEE further binds
himself to comply strictly with the requirementstbé Fire Department and/or Government Electrichary violation of this provision shall
makeLESSEE liable for damages which may result directly oriiadtly therefrom.

The LESSORrreserves the right to refuse any alterations, amditor improvements requested by tHESSEE if, in LESSOR'’s opinion,
there is just cause to warrant such refusal.
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It is further agreed that all such installationd amprovements, except the movable furniture putithe expense of th&aSSEE, shall
remain upon, and be surrendered with the premisesid thereof at the termination of the lease auitttompensation to tHeESSEE, and
without prejudice to the right of tHEESSOR to require thd ESSEE to restore the premises to its original tenantabledition.

7. ALTERATIONS, ADDITIONS, IMPROVEMENTS - TheLESSEE shall not make any alterations, additions or improents
without the prior written consent of thi&SSOR; Provided however, that all such alterations, addgior improvements made by either party
in or upon the leased premises, except the movabigure and fixtures put in at the expense oftBESSEE and removable without defacing
or impairing the property of tHeESSOR, shall remain upon and be surrendered with the mesras part thereof upon termination of this lease
without compensation to tHEESSEE.

8. PARKING AND OTHER JOINT-USE AREAS - It is expressly understood that thESSEE’s privilege to use parking and other
areas dedicated to common use is not exclusivepiitidege of such use by theaSSEE, his employees and customers, is not an integral par
of this lease. It may, therefore, be restrictedegulated by the ESSOR.

Such use shall be subject to the following restiitt and regulations and to such other restrictansregulations as may be promulgated
from time to time by th€ ESSOR.

a) TheLESSEE can park its vehicle, whenever applicable, onlgésignated parking areas and not in driveways, wafk, pedestrian
lanes and private roads except for such lengthmef s may be sufficient to pick up supplies, @ffiarniture and fixtures, goods and
merchandise from or to deliver them to the leasethses.

b) TheLESSOR shall have the sole and exclusive right at any tionelocate driveways, entrances and exits comimasine building,
change the boundaries or locations of the variotsnaobile parking areas, diminish or rearrangepdud&ing pattern therein, or designate
additional or elevated parking spaces.

¢) TheLESSEE shall not allow parking and other areas for comms®a to be obstructed by his operations, exceptagdhennormally
carried or in connection with the needs of the hess.

d) TheLESSOR shall have the sole and exclusive jurisdiction #redright to police, control traffic, regulate apmulgate reasonable
rules and regulations governing the use of theipgrireas, private roads, sidewalks, common driysywantrances, exits and other common
use areas not included within the boundaries ofahsed premises.

e) TheLESSOR reserves the right to conduct, perform, do mairmteaAepair works such as diggings and excavatiorgreets,
sidewalks and other common areas, and no compensaticlaim shall be allowed against tHESSOR by reason of inconvenience or
annoyance to the business as result thereof.

9. CARE OF THE LEASED PREMISES - TheLESSEE shall, at his expense, maintain the leased preririseslean and sanitary
condition, free from noxious odors, disturbing msi®r other nuisances and, upon the expirationeofease, shall return the premises and
fixtures in as good condition as that in which thegre actually found at the beginning of the leasdinary wear and tear excepted. The
LESSEE shall not drive nails, screws, hooks or other alami® on or into the walls frames or other portiohthe premises or in any manner
deface or damage any part thereof. Any damage ddystheL ESSEE may be repaired by tHEESSOR for the account of theESSEE . The
LESSOR shall have the right to require thESSEE to remove any display or promotional matter, or digplayed merchandise which
LESSORreasonably and in good faith considers to be imgrop inappropriate for the general appearanceesgmtation of the premises.

The LESSOR shall be responsible for major repairs which arétéid to those which affect the structure of theestad premises or the
building. TheLESSEE shall allow access to thHeEESSOR on the premises for the purposes of repair or restimogi or such other works as may
be necessary for the preservation, conservatigorawement or decoration of the building or any plaereof. No compensation or claims shall
be allowed against tHeESSOR by reason of any inconvenience or annoyance th H®SEE that may arise by reason thereof.

The LESSEE shall repair promptly at its expense any damagdkea@@remises or any other improvement within thiding caused by the
bringing into the premises of any property for LEESSEE’s use, or by the installations or removal of suctpprty, regardless of who is at
fault or who caused such damage, unless such wadyctaused by thHeESSOR, or its agents or employees; and in default of sephirs by
the LESSEE, the LESSOR may make the same and thESSEE agrees to pay in addition to the rent, the cosethfeto theL ESSOR promptly
upon theLESSOR’s demand thereof. THEESSEE shall be responsible for the maintenance and repaire leased premises including
plumbing and electrical fixtures within the prentisi those serving the same.

4
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The LESSEE must notify theLESSOR immediately of any damage to the leased premibes, dppurtenances as well as any occupation,
usurpation or untoward act being committed, ordatered to be committed, within the leased premises.

No machinery, office furniture, effects or otheugmment may be brought into or out of the buildimighout the prior written approval of
theLESSOR.

The LESSEE shall further maintain the leased premises in arcondition by utilizing plastic bags for the displ of both dry and wet
garbage. Unless garbage is contained in plastis, liagill not be allowed to be deposited in théhawized depository for collections.

10.DAMAGE TO OR DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES - Without prejudice to paragraph 9 of this Contractcase the leased
premises/permanent improvements placed on the pesrshall be partially damaged or destroyed, bycange not covered by insurance,
LESSEE shall immediately repair, restore or reconstruatawse to be repaired, restored or reconstructddlamage or destroyed
improvements to the condition thereof immediatefppto such damage or destruction. The failuréhelLESSEE to complete the repair,
reconstruction or restoration to its original cdiwdi within thirty (30) calendar days from the oo@nce of the loss/damage shall be a material
breach which will entitle theESSOR to terminate this lease, unless tHESSOR grants an extension.

If the damage is so extensive as to amount vistdealthe total destruction of the premises or tamanent improvements, the lease will
be deemed terminated after occurrence of the dgsaad the rent shall be apportioned to the timthefdamage. Notwithstanding the above
provisions, if the premises or the building is dgex by fire or other casualty due to the fault egligence of thé ESSEE or its servants,
employees, agents, visitors or licensees, thehmowitprejudice to any other rights, remedies oseaf action the ESSOR may have against
the LESSEE, the damage shall be repaired by tESSEE or by LESSOR at theLESSEE's expense and tHeE SSEE shall be liable to pay
the rent.

In the event that the leased premises are totakyrayed or cannot be used for the purposes dfElSSEE or rendered uninhabitable by
fortuitous event, as determined jointly by tHeSSOR andLESSEE, whether insured against or not, the lease shdkiminated and
extinguished, and theESSEE's obligation to pay further rentals shall likewisedeemed extinguished. In which case, the Secugfyddit an
the unused Advance Rent, if any, shall not be frdeand shall be returned by thESSOR to theLESSEE within thirty (30) days’ from the
joint- determination by theESSOR and theL ESSEE that the lease has been extinguished.

If the destruction is partial, as determined jgirty theLESSOR andLESSEE, LESSEEmay choose between a proportional reduction
of the rent or rescission of the lease.

11.INSURANCE - TheLESSEE shall, at its sole cost and expense, purchasejaning the entire term of this lease, keep and tagin
any and all installations and improvements on ksdded property insured against destruction or darby fire, earthquake, war and extended
coverage risks with such insurance company or coiepacceptable to thESSOR, in an amount equal to the maximum insurable value
thereof designating both th&SSEE and theLESSOR as the joint beneficiary, the policy to be assigaed delivered to theESSOR not
later than thirty (30) days from the date of th@n@act and will pay the premiums thereon at thesland places that the same are payable to
insure coverage. In case of loss or damage, altamse proceeds shall be used for the purposestufration or reconstruction of the
improvements on the leased premises and B®&SOR's liability shall be limited to such insurance prode@xcept when complete loss or
destruction shall occur during the last year ofl&@se, in which event, thdEeSSOR shall have the option to call for a renegotiatidthe term:
of this Contract. It shall also be the obligatidritee LESSEE to secure, at its expense, during the entire tdrthi®lease, property insurance
coverage over all equipment, furniture and othevailte properties found inside the leased premigkigh copy of the insurance policy shall
be furnished th€ ESSOR not later than thirty (30) days from the date a$ tBontract.

The LESSOR shall notify theLESSEE of the particulars of the fire insurance policy edug the leased premises.

12.SIGNS AND ADVERTISEMENTS - The LESSEE shall not affix, hang, inscribe or paint any notisign, streamer or other
advertising medium within or outside the premis@ghout the prior written approval of thReEEaSSOR, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld. THEESSOR shall remove and/or destroy summarily any such thaaized sign or materials which may be within or
outside the premises in violation of this provisieithout incurring any liability whatsoever.

5
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The LESSEE agrees that theESSOR’s name or the name of the Project shall not be usedy confusing, detrimental or misleading
manner and upon termination of this lease LTEESEE shall cease to use th&E SSOR’s andProject’'s name in any manner.

13. OBSERVANCE OF RULES AND REGULATIONS - TheLESSEE, its agents and employees shall observe all ards
regulations which theESSOR may, from time to time, issue with respect to tearti®ns and dealings with the public, ttESSOR’s agents,
employees and other lessees, provided thdt EH8SOR provides thd. ESSEE due notice of such rules and regulations.

14.PROHIBITIONS - TheLESSEE shall not bring into or store in the leased premaeything of highly inflammable nature, explosive
materials or install therein any apparatus, mackioeequipment which may cause obnoxious tremprogse, or expose the leased premises
to fire or increase the fire hazard of the buildiagany other article which thHeESSOR may reasonably prohibit nor shall thESSEE install
any loudspeaker or device on the roof or exterialiswof the building or on any part of the leaseehpises or allow disturbing or noisy
activities to be carried on therein, it being ursteod that should theESSEE do so, not only shall the latter be responsibleitdamage whicl
such violation may cause th&SSOR and/or its other tenants but thESSOR shall, in addition thereto, have the right to canicis Contract.
If the LESSEE shall so use the building, or deposit therein arghanatter as to result in any increase in theaghtbe insurance payable by 1
LESSOR, the increase shall be for the account oftESSEE.

15.INSPECTION OF PREMISES - TheLESSOR or its authorized agent shall, by two (2) days pwidtten notice to th&é ESSEE,
have the right to enter-the leased premises atraeytb examine the same or make alterations olinepeafor any purpose which the former
may deem necessary for the operation or maintenatbe premises or its installations, and durimg last three (3) months of the term of the
lease, to show the leased premises to prospeetiaats. Written notice shall be dispensed in tlemean emergency or exigency arises
rendering the written notice unnecessary.

16.DISTURBANCE - Disturbance or discontinuance of the possesditinedeased premises on account of repairs, reéimm& or any
construction made on the premises bytB&SOR or for any reasons beyond the control of EEESSOR shall confer no right of any kind to
the LESSEE against the ESSOR, except in cases where the repair is for damagesedawy the fault or negligence of hESSOR, its agent
or employee.

17.ABANDONMENT OF LEASED PREMISES - If the LESSEE shall abandon or vacate the premises or if the isestshould
remain unoccupied for a continuous period of exitegthirty-one (31) days at any time during therteaf this lease and fails to pay the
corresponding renL,L ESSOR may lease out the premises to other persons diesntind th& ESSEE shall continue to be liable for the regular
monthly rent until such time that th& SSOR finds a new_ESSEE for the leased premises. ThESSOR shall also forfeit in its favor the
deposit made by way of damageESSEE hereby expressly appoint&ESSOR or its duly authorized representative as attormefact, with
full power and authority to padlock, break opemetessary, enter the premises, inventory E8SEE’s properties and have them deposited
elsewhere. Furthermore, thESSOR shall have the right to retain the said propewigsecurity for the payment bESSEE’s obligations
under this Contract, which properties, tHESSOR may, ad ESSEE’s duly constituted attorney-in-fact, dispose saidperties and the
proceeds thereof applied to satitlfSSEE’s unpaid obligations without prejudice to any actasmay be appropriate for the recovery of any
deficiency.

18.SUBLEASE, TRANSFER OF RIGHTS - TheLESSEE shall not assign or transfer its rights in this €act nor sublease or sublet
all or any part of the leased premises, withoutpther written consent of theESSOR and no rights, title or interest thereto or therghall be
conferred on or vested to anyone other tharL E®8SEE without such prior written consent

It is expressly understood that thESSEE has no goodwill or patronage rights over the legsedises; that such rights belong
exclusively to the ESSOR, being the owner of the leased premises which fgramsof the building; and that théeSSEE may not sell or
dispose of said goodwill or patronage rights to pegson.

19. ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS/MORTGAGE/ENCUMBRANCE - TheLESSOR reserves the right to assign and convey or
mortgage or otherwise encumber its rights to #ésé in favor of any affiliate or subsidiary, ty ather party. In the event of any assignment,
conveyance, mortgage, or encumbrance of the lgasadises, the ESSOR binds itself to require the assignee or mortgagd®eaeficiary of
the encumbrance to respect and abide by all thestand conditions of this Contract.

20.LIEN ON PERSONAL PROPERTIES OF THE LESSEE - It is agreed that the unpaid rents and charggshpa by thd ESSEE to
the LESSOR for one (1) year under this Contract shall constitupreferred lien on all personal propertiehelEESSEE existing in the lease
premises in accordance with Articles 2241 and 2#48e Civil Code. For this purpose thESSOR s hereby authorized to prevent the
removal of said properties from the leased premizedemand the return from any possessor shoaidltave been removed without the
written consent of theESSOR .
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It shall be understood that thESSEE, its agents or assigns shall not hold tEESSOR, its agents or assigns liable for any actions of the
LESSOR,its agents or assigns done or caused to be dgnesunance of all the provisions of this Contract.

21.EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS OF THE LESSOR - The grant of this lease shall not prejudice oreaskely affect the following exclusive
and absolute rights of tHEESSOR to the extent specified below:

a. To provide for the free and uninterrupted passagl running of water, drainage, electricity,delamunication or other public utilities
or services through the installation of conduitpep, wires, cables or ducts as are now or mayafterebe installed in, on or under the leased
premises, serving or capable of servingRheject or any adjoining property, and to enter the legsedises to inspect, repair and maintain
such conduits, pipes, wires, cables or ducts;

b. To erect, alter or consent to the erection t@ration of any project constructed or to be cartded on any adjoining or neighboring
property, notwithstanding that such erection ceralion may diminish the access of light, view ioreajoyed on the leased premises, or to deal
with such neighboring or adjoining property as tiSSOR shall see fit;

c. To name or rename tReoject with any such style or name and from time to titnezhange alter, substitute or abandon any such
name, without compensation to thESSEE or the other tenants of the Project, provided that ESSOR shall give thd. ESSEE not less thai
two (2) months’ prior written notice of tHEESSOR’s intention to do so;

d. To improve, change, alter, extend, reduce, addherwise deal with the arrangement, design ooggion of theProject and the
LESSEE shall not hold th&. ESSOR liable for any resulting disturbance or discomfanising out of such development work or improvement

e. To make, impose, adopt, supplement, abolisimand such rules and regulations it may considegsgary for the management,
operation or maintenance of tReoject; and

f. To undertake the improvement of tReoject or any development work in an adjoining lot, witltiire vicinity area of th@roject.

22. TERMINATION OF LEASE - TheLESSEE agrees to return and surrender the leased preatisies expiration of the term of this
lease in as good condition as reasonable weareanavill permit and without any delay whatsoevexyaid of all occupants, furniture, articles
and movable effects of any kind. It is expresslgenstood that all other permanent improvementsfiahdes not removable without defacing
or injuring the premises shall pertain to tHeSSOR and shall be surrendered with the premises in goodition without compensation to the
LESSEE.

If the premises are not surrendered at the expiradf the term, theESSEE shall be responsible to th&SSOR for all damages which
the latter may suffer by reason thereof and widleimnify theLESSOR against any and all claims made by any succeddt®SEE against thi
LESSORresulting from delay of theESSOR in delivering possession of the premises to sucheeding_ ESSEE, so far as such delay is
occasioned by the failure of th& SSEE to surrender the premises on time.

23.INDEMNITIES - TheLESSEE will indemnify and hold harmless thdaSSOR from and against any and all claims or demands by
the LESSEE and third persons for loss of life, injury, lossd@mage to property resulting from any accidentheneased premises or
occasioned by any nuisance made or suffered oprémises, or by any fire thereon or growing oudobccurring in, upon, or at the leased
premises, by the occupancy or use of the premisasyopart thereof, whether wholly or in part, cai®y any act or omission of th&SSEE,
its agents, contractors and employees, or arisim@foany accident on the premises occasioned pyailure on the part of theESSEE to
maintain the premises in a safe, sanitary or seotwadition or by reason of thd&ESSEE’s violation, non-observance, or non-performance of
rules, regulations, ordinances, laws and the cmmddf this agreement concerning or affecting thengises or the improvements thereon.

The LESSOR shall not be liable for any damage caused by sirayifrom the failure of the water supply and afeaturrent, or defects
the plumbing, gas, water or electrical installasioor the bursting, leaking or running of any waahd, water closet, cistern, tank or waste pipe
in the premises or for those enumerated undeMBegRY or DAMAGE Clause. TheESSOR shall likewise be exempted from liability for
any injury that may be caused to tHeSSEE, his employee or personnel while inside the buildimgether due to the facilities of thESSOR
or otherwise.
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24.INJURY OR DAMAGE - TheLESSEE hereby assumes full responsibility for any damapelwmay be caused to the person or
property of third persons while remaining eithesually or on business in any part of the leasethfzes and further binds itself to hold the
LESSOR free and harmless from any such claim for injurglamage.

The LESSOR shall not be liable or responsible:

a) For the presence of bugs, vermin, ants, terroitesy other insects or pests in the leased pesmis
b) For the interruption or failure of water suppglyd/or electric current;

c¢) For any article delivered to or left with anyitsf employees;

d) For any loss or losses that may be sufferech®y ESSEE, its agents or customers in the leased premisessmed by theft, robbery
or other crimes.

e) For any damage done or occasioned by, or ariging plumbing, gas, water and/or other kinds giggi, or the bursting, leaking or
destruction of any cistern, tank, wash stand, welteset, waste pipe or drainage or downspout failoy above, upon or about said leased
premises, or for any damages arising from actegligence of th& ESSEE or his employees, or representatives.

25.EXTRAORDINARY INFLATION - In case an extra-ordinary inflation of the Plpiipe Peso should supervene during the term of
this lease or its extensions or renewal, the vafube currency at the time of the establishmenhefobligation, shall be the basis of payme
provided for in Article 1250 of the New Civil Coaé the Philippines. In case of such eventualitg,tESSOR shall have the option to adjust
the monthly rent accordingly. The term “extraordinaflation” shall be conclusively presumed to baupervened if the exchange rate of the
Philippine Peso to the US Dollar which is fixedReso) to the US$1.00 at the time efcexion of this Contract should increase by
more than twenty five percent (25%) of exchange cdithe Philippine Peso to the US Dollar as deieechby the Central Bank Reference
Exchange Rate which shall be conclusive upon thieegaTheLESSOR shall exercise this option by giving written nottoetheLESSEE of
the occurrence of the extraordinary inflation cegplvith the demand to pay the adjusted rent ostleeeding calendar month after receipt of
notice, which in no case shall be more than fift€ls) days. If the ESSEE does not accept the new monthly rent, the leadélshdeemed
automatically terminated upon the effectivity oé thew Monthly Rent

26.STRIKES AND LOCK-OUTS - In case there is strike, loc&ut or other labor dispute in the leased premisestlaere is a substant
interference with the operation of thESSEE s business by reason thereof requiringtE<SSEE to temporarily close its business to the
public or if, as a result thereof, the businesthefother lessees or tenants in the premiseskawitie affected, then thHeESSOR shall have the
option to terminate this lease to protect the tessrof the other lessees or tenants in the premises

27.EXPROPRIATION AND CONDEMNATION - If, at any time during the term of this lease, @®vernment or any of its
instrumentality or political subdivision or any pigtservice company, shall expropriate or condeh&léased premises or any part thereof or
interest therein for any public use or purposen ted in every case, th& SSEE shall, whenever requested by tHESSOR, deliver the
peaceable possession of such portion or portiotisedbuilding hereby leased, or as may be affeatddken by such expropriation, and the
LESSEE shall not, by reason of such expropriation, betleatito any claim against theeSSOR for compensation or indemnity, without
prejudice to the rights of tHeESSEE to claim whatever damage it may be entitled to ftbemexpropriating or condemning authority.

28.PENAL PROVISIONS - The parties agree that all covenants and agretsrherein contained shall be deemed essential thomsli
hereof and that if defect or breach be made orsanl conditions, then this lease, at the discreiffdheLESSOR, may be terminated and
canceled either judicially or extra-judicially, Waut resorting to court action. When extra-judiciahcellation or termination is resorted to, it is
sufficient that a fifteen (15)-day notice in wrigirof its intention to cancel or terminate the Caotibe delivered either personally or by
registered mail. This shall be without prejudicéhte claims for any and all damages, actual andexurential, resulting from such default or
termination.

If after due notice has been given to HESSEE of the cancellation of the lease, the latter failsomply with the demand of the
LESSOR for the return to it of the possession of the psamiand the payment of thESSEE’s accrued obligations pursuant to the provisions
of this agreement, or in the event tHEESSOR should exercise its right to enforce its prefedied on the personal properties of (HESSEE
existing on the leased premises, or in the evedetdult or breach by tHeESSEE of any of the provisions herein contained, tSSEE
hereby empowers tHeESSOR and/or its
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authorized representatives to open, enter, ocqgnipck, secure, enclose, fence and/or disconpbéc utilities and otherwise take full and
complete physical possession and control of theeld@remises without resorting to court actiortat@ inventory and possession of whatever
equipment, furniture, articles, merchandise, appks, etc. may be found therein belonging ta.B8SEE, unauthorized subleases and/or
other persons, as security for the payment of B8SEE 's obligation under this Contract, and to placentie theLESSOR’s warehouse for
safekeeping, charging to th& SSEE the corresponding storage fees therefor; and ie tted ESSEE or other owners thereof fail to claim s
equipment, furniture, articles, merchandise, apgks, etc. from storage and liquidate any liabtlityheL ESSOR within a reasonable period
from the date of theESSOR ’s taking possession of the leased premises dredfESSEE 's personal properties, to dispose of said
property/properties and to apply the proceeds tieoewhatever liability and/or indebtedness LESSEE may have to theESSOR plus
reasonable expenses for the sale, including stdesge without any prejudice to any action as magpropriate for the recovery of any
deficiency. For purposes of this provision and ofhertinent provisions of this Contract, thESSEE hereby constitutes tHEESSOR and its
authorized representatives as tESSEE 's attorneys-in-fact, and all acts performed bymha the exercise of their authority are hereby
confirmed. TheLESSEE hereby expressly agrees that any or all acts paddrby thd ESSOR, its authorized agents, employees and/or
representatives under the provisions of this Agtidlay not be the subject of any petition for a WfiPreliminary Injunction or Mandatory
Injunction in court.

Should thd ESSOR be compelled to seek judicial relief againstti«SSEE, the latter shall, in addition to the damages metibin the
first paragraph of this provision, pay an amountiegjent to twenty five percent (25%) of the amodiaimed in the complaint, but in no case
less than fifty thousand pesos ((Pes0)50,000.80ttarney’s fees , aside from the costs of thggliton and other expenses which the law may
entitle theLESSOR to recover from th& ESSEE ..

Provisions of a penal character in other parthisf€ontract shall be considered as cumulativeeaglief granted by this provision.

TheLESSEE or its representative certifies that he/she hag oe@aused to be read to him/her the provisiortheforegoing Contract,
receipt of a signed copy of which is hereby expyeasknowledged by theESSEE or its representative and that he/she has fullyetstdod
the same.

29.DEFAULT

a) In the fulfillment of all obligations whereinglpayment of money other than rental is involvadiuding but not limited to taxes,
assessments, reimbursements, fees, costs andbdrges, th€e ESSEE is given a period of thirty (30) days from datedefault within which
to make the necessary payment, otherwis&&SOR shall have the right to recover against tiSSEE or exercise the right to rescind the
Contract;

b) In the event thdtESSEE should default in payment of his monthly rentakeiathe last calendar day of the month to whichréms
pertains, as well as payment of interests, pesalties, charges and any other monetary obligatitthén the period provided herein, the
LESSOR, without prejudice to all other remedies in this @ant, shall be authorized to padlock, close akd tmmediate possession of the
leased premises, and after due notice_{B8SEE hereby constitutes the LESSOR his attorney-intiasell all the properties of thHdESSEE
within the premises, which proceeds will be apptiedll the outstanding obligations to thESSOR ;

¢) In the fulfillment of obligations contained ihi$ Contract which involve the performance of anaconstruction of a certain work or
an obligation to do and not to do, the LESSEE mag or remedy any breach or failure to comply witthiirty (30) days from such breach.

Default shall automatically take place upon th&ufai of theLESSEEto pay or perform any of its obligations during thee fixed herein
for the payment or performance of such obligatiatheut necessity of demand or, if no time is fixafter ten (10) days from receipt of notice
or demand from theESSOR. For purposes of default where demand or noticedsired of the ESSOR, the parties hereby expressly agree
that notice addressed to thESSEE delivered at its office in the leased premisestdh@ address stated in this Contract shall beidered as
sufficient compliance of the requirement of noticedemand.

The acceptance by th&SSOR of arrears in rent or the penalty for late paymengxtensions of payment shall not by itself berded a
waiver by theL ESSOR of any breach by theESSEE of any covenant or condition contained in this Cactt Likewise, the acceptance of
payment or performance of one or more obligationthe LESSEE shall not be deemed a waiver by tHeSSOR of any breach by the
LESSEE of any other covenant or conditions contained Imer®ilence on the part of th&SSOR shall not also be considered as condonation
or waiver of any breach or default by theSSEE of any covenant or condition of this Contract.

9
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In the event of default or breach of any of theditbans of this Contract and after the lapse ofgiegod specified in this section, or
(i) even without such breach or default, if tlESSEE shall be dissolved, become bankrupt, insolvent @keran assignment for the benefit of
creditors of all or substantially all of its assetdile any proceeding seeking any readjustmenangement, postponement or condonation or
reduction ofLESSEE s debts, liabilities, or obligations, or (ii) ihe LESSEE abandons the premises and the improvements thesedi) in
case of non-operation for a period of one (1) mdrdm commencement date, thESSOR may, at its absolute discretion, declare this Gun
canceled or terminated, without resorting to cawtton, and require tHeESSEE to vacate the premiseBROVIDED, however, that in case
non-operation, abandonment or illegal detainer eutlprejudice to the payment of penalty for sutdg#l detainer, theESSEE hereby
expressly authorizdsESSOR as its duly authorized attorney-in-fact with futlwer and authority to padlock, break open if neggsand enter
into and take possession of the premises for tbegtion of its interest therein and any actioretakr done therein by the&aSSOR, its
representatives and agents, shall not be a causeydegal action, be it civil or criminal, by th& SSEE. Delay in recovery of possession sl
not be deemed as a waiver of the right ofHtEBESOR to recover possession of the premises.

No waiver by thd ESSOR of any of its rights under this Contract shall leeched to have been made unless expressed in vaitohg
signed by thé ESSOR.

In case of cancellation or termination of this Cant due to default or breach of its terms, tE&SSEE shall pay all reasonable attorney’s
fees, costs and expenses of litigation that mapntared by the non-defaulting party in enforcitgrights under this Contract or any of its
provisions, as well as in the collection of all migrents, fees, charges, taxes, assessmentsianireements which theESSOR may be
entitled to.

30.WARRANTY AGAINST EVICTION - TheLESSORwarrants that theESSEE shall enjoy legal and peaceful possession of the
leased premises at all times, during the leasegenmder the terms and conditions of this Contract.

31.VENUE OF ACTION - It is understood that all legal actions that maybmught on or by virtue of this Contract shallibeéhe prope
courts of Pasig City, to the exclusion of all otkenue.

32.ALTERATIONS, MODIFICATIONS, NOVATIONS OF CONTRACT - This Contract embodies all the agreements op#rdes
covering the properties subject hereof. No alteratmodification, novation, addition or any collateagreement which alters, modifies, nov
and adds to the terms of this Contract shall biel\aald binding unless made in writing and signedh®yparties hereto. It is agreed that in case
any provision of this Contract is declared null ail by a court of competent jurisdiction, the eening provision shall remain and continue
to be valid on the parties.

33.0THER PROVISIONS

a. If theLESSEE is an authorized franchise holder carrying businesker a trade name, the SSEE shall provide th& ESSOR a copy
of the franchise agreement and it shall be undedstioat the grant of franchise is, among othersaaon for the grant of this lease. The
termination or cancellation of the franchise foy aeason whatsoever shall entitle tHESSOR, at its option, to terminate this lease, regardless
of the term of this Contract and without prejudiceany other rights that tHeEESSOR has under this Contract.

b. In the event of renovation, expansion or otleeparate plans of theESSOR on theProject , theLESSEE recognizes the right of the
LESSORto re-assign, relocate, move or transfertBSSEE to another space or area of fi@ject comparable to the present one without the
LESSORincurring liability therefore. The ESSEE agrees to abide by this provision upon sixty (69)sinotice to the same.

c. TheLESSEE shall employ its best efforts and abilities as rhayeasonably necessary to help maintain a hightaspn for the
Project .
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ANNEX “B”
The following amendments are made to Annex “A” (&mh Terms and Conditions):

1) The first paragraph of Article 1 shall be amendedetad as follows

“1. TERM - The term of the lease shall be for a period &fos#h in the Basic Lease Provisions. The Contraay be renewed by the
mutual agreement of both parties subject to tHeviahg:

a) receipt by the ESSOR of written notice of intent from thLESSEE at least five (5) months before the lease expina
b) execution of a mutually agreeable renewal leasé&racinat least two (2) months before the leaseratipn”

2) The 4thparagraph of Article 1 shall be amended to reddl&swvs:

“The LESSEE shall have no right to terminate the lease dutafirst thirty-nine (39) months of the lease. SHALESSEE terminate
the lease prior to or on the thirty-ninth mortESSEE shall pay all monthly rent and charges payableutincthe thirty-ninth month plus a
termination privilege fee equivalent to four (4) mtias’ rent.

LESSEE shall have the right to terminate the lease atteng after thirty-nine (39) months, upon receiptthg LESSEE of at least
ninety (90) days’ prior written notice, subjectagre-termination penalty as follows:

Date of Pre-termination Equivalent rental
Anytime during Month 40 through Month ! Four (4) month’ rent
Anytime during Month 52 through Month ¢ Three (3) montt’ rent

3) The first paragraph of Article 2 shall be amendedetad as follows

“RENT - The monthly rental shall be paid at tHeSSOR s office within the first five (5) calendar day§@ach calendar month to which
the rent corresponds, without the need of demahdLESSEE shall deduct and withhold the withholding tax duretloe monthly rental and
remit the same to the Bureau of Internal RevenuR)Y B accordance with BIR regulations. ThBESSEE shall submit to the ESSOR a copy
of the Certificate of Remittance of the withholditax within five (5) days from the time of paymerftthe tax to the BIR. Without prejudice,
however, to all other remedies of thESSOR under the Contract, all unpaid rentals and othargds which remain unpaid at the end of the
month in which they are due and aft&tSSOR has provided written notice t&=SSEE shall, from the first day of the next month, accrue
interest at the rate of three percent (3%) per monthe maximum prevailing interest rate by lavajehever is higher. In addition, the
LESSOR, at its option, may impose penalty of fieegent (5%) per month, on all unpaid charges.”

4)  Article 3 shall be amended to read as follo

“3. SECURITY DEPOSIT AND ADVANCE RENT - TheLESSEE shall pay the. ESSOR a Security Deposit, as described in the
Basic Lease Provisions, to serve as security ®fuh and faithful compliance of each and evemyrteprovision, covenant, and condition of
this lease as well as LESSEE’s monetary obligationsnpaid rent and utilities and other dues, s charges after termination or
abandonment, and for the condition of the leasethfges. Th& ESSOR shall not be required to keep the Security Defdosih its general
funds and th& ESSEE shall not be entitled to interest on such depdsie Security Deposit shall remain intact during ¢hére term of this
lease and theESSEE cannot demand that it be applied as payment foioitg monetary obligations under this Contraatept as the
settlement of all charges related to the leasechiges at the end of the lease. In the event BRSEE satisfies the. ESSOR of its full and
faithful performance and compliance with the prawis of this lease as well as its monetary oblayetifor unpaid rent and utilities and other
dues, fees and charges and for the condition detimed premises, the Security Deposit shall hendsfd to th&. ESSEE not later than sixty
(60) days after the termination or expiration o thase term. TheESSEE shall completely and satisfactorily vacate, deljeerd surrender tt
leased premises in as good condition as it was fwithe lease except for depreciation due to aminvear and tear, to th&SSOR.
Requirements fot ESSOR 's retaining any of the Security Deposit are preddn the 3¢ paragraph of Section IV of the Basiadee
Provisions.

The Security Deposit and any unused Advanced Retltlse returned by theESSOR to theLESSEE not later than sixty (60) days frc
the termination of this Contract. Th&ESSEE s liability for any breach of this Contract or fany obligation for the leased premises shall not
be limited to the amount of the said Security Dépos

In addition, thdLESSEE shall pay the. ESSOR an Advance Rent as described in the Basic Leasasitmos. The said amount shall be
applied to the rent for the first number of monthsvhich it corresponds or is equival¢’



5) The 1stparagraph of Article 4(a) shall be amended to aeddllowing as the last senten:
In the case of an inconsistency between the pangsof this GTC and the COL, the terms and condtiof the COL shall prevail.
6) The 2ndparagraph of Article 4(a) shall be amended to esafbllows:

“LESSOR shall provide electricity and water (“Imp#ve Service”), either through the service providevia an alternative system, and
security for the premises with no failure in avhilily. Such connections shall be active and openal an aggregate of 95% in any seven
(7) day period. If LESSOR does not meet these |atpar Service level standards, LESSEE may obta@mradte services or terminate this
Lease immediately upon written notice to LESSORy f@mporary interruption (for a period of 72 hoardess) in the Imperative Services
shall not be deemed as an eviction of the LESSBEsall it relieve the LESSEE of any obligatiordenthis Contract through the date of
interruption, including the payment of rental nabgect the LESSOR to any liability arising therefroHowever, LESSOR shall endeavor to
every effort and diligence to restore promptly theilities and services to their proper functions @ontinuation of the interruption shall be
reason for termination of the Lease.

7) The 2rdparagraph of Article 4 (b) shall be amended to @atbllows:

“Utility meters shall be provided by thHeESSOR . In the event of a meter breakdown, HESSOR shall repair or replace the meter at its
sole expense within a reasonable period from reébgipheLESSOR of a written request for repair or replacement fitheLESSEE , and the
LESSEE undertakes to pay any and all interim chargesrttaat result therefrom.”

8) The 6thparagraph of Article 4(b) shall be deleted in isirety.
9) The 1stparagraph of Article 5 shall be amended to realisvs:

“5. NATURE AND USE OF THE LEASED PREMISES AND USE OF COMMON AREAS - The leased premises shall be used
exclusively for purposes as agreed upon byLBBSOR andLESSEE, and only under the name and style mentioneddrOdintract. Should
the LESSEE change its name and style during the lease termwitluibut changing its kind of business and changdiegpurpose for which the
lease was entered into, thESSEE shall provide th& ESSOR pertinent documents to support said change of raarmdestyle and the change of
name and style shall not be considered to be amfahis lease. The use of the leased premises than what is previously agreed upon,
whether temporarily or permanently, must be with phior written consent of tHeEESSOR, which shall not be unreasonably withheld;
otherwise, th& ESSOR may, at its option and after written notice andaday period in which to cure, consider this Corttiaf Lease
rescinded, without resorting to court action, i the rent or compel th&SSEE to stop the new activities.”

10) The 4thand 5thparagraphs of Article 5 shall be amended to reddl&svs:

“The LESSEE shall, at the commencement of the fit-out periothefpremises and at anytime thereafter, take ptexemeasures, as
may be deemed necessary, to forestall any damabe teased premises other than wear and teaistbedinary forLESSEE's business. The
LESSEE undertakes to continue paying its monthly renhelESSOR as provided in the lease should any alteratiorditiads,
improvements, installations or repairs within tlmerpises be undertaken unless the repair being tahkaeris of such extent that thESSEE is
unable to use the leased premises for the purposehich it was leased as determined jointly bytESSOR .

The use and occupancy by thESSEE of the leased premises shall include, jointly vather lessees and unit owners, the use of cor
areas adjacent to the leased premises and pdngoeaf in connection with others, necessary agpotrto and exit from the leased premises,
public toilet, and other facilities as may be dasigd from time to time by tHeESSOR, subject to reasonable rules and regulationd®use
thereof as prescribed from time to time by tEESSOR . The lease does not extend to the outside portibtie building corresponding to or
opposite the leased premises nor to the corridutshallways within the building and no merchandis@roperty of the. ESSEE shall be
placed therein except signage as may be agredtelperties. Without prejudice to the rights of tHiESSOR in this Contract, the ESSOR
may remove or cause the removal of any object faurside of the leased premises and remaining foei@ver 24 hours as described herein
with costs chargeable to th&E SSEE , except if such objects are a cause of nuisantteetpublic or to other tenants of the buildingwinich
case the LESSOR need not wait 24 hours before reipeaid object.”

11) The 1stparagraph of Article 6 shall be amended to redlasvs:

“6. SUBMISSION OF PLANS - Within the time mutually agreed by both partigee LESSEE shall submit the construction plan for the
proposed installations, improvements, lightingunets, floor covering, and other installations ay to& required by the nature and purpose ¢
business, and only after receiptldfSSOR 's prior written approval of the said floor planhieh approval shall not be unreasonably withheld,
and submission to ttLESSOR by theLESSEE of the necessary constructi



bond, the amount of which shall be solely deterihibg theLESSOR, shallLESSEE install and maintain said installations and improeats
at its own expense. Any subsequent additions aditers or changes to the approved plans shall loee mialy upon written consent of the
LESSOR, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. TIESSEE shall also be responsible for securing all the sssgy government permits
or licenses as well as pay all taxes necessaiysfoperations. ThEESSEE shall furnish thee.ESSOR copies of the said permits and licenses
or any renewal thereof fifteen (15) days from tteetof theLESSEE 's business and every renewal date thereof asrezhby law. The
LESSEE must make a declaration of its maximum electrioatland enumerate thereat, in the checklist praviyetheLESSOR, the

electrical fixtures, appliances, equipment, faieitit etc.”

12) The 3rdparagraph of Article 6 shall be amended to readlasvs:

“Furthermore, the installation of additional plumbj electrical appliances/equipment, telephoneteledype in the premises shall be for
the account of and expense of tHeESSEE , and only after obtaining the prior written conisend approval of theESSOR, which shall not b
unreasonably withheld. Such installation(s) shdaddnade in such a way as not to cause damage podaheses. Provided, however, that in the
installation of additional electrical appliancesestin extra electrical outlets will be needed, tESSEE shall first furnish thé ESSOR with
plans of such additional outlets for hESSOR 's prior written approval, which shall not be urseaably withheld. TheESSEE shall, at alll
times, cooperate with tHEESSOR’'s agent/representative in thESSOR'’s regular inspection of theESSEE 's electrical load. For this
reason, th& ESSEE shall use only duly licensed electrician(s) who trerssure that the additional load of current shallvithin the capacity «
the main switch of the panel on the correspondimgrf TheLESSEE further binds itself to comply strictly with theqeirements of the Fire
Department and/or Government Electrician. Any iolaof this provision shall makKeESSEE liable for damages which may result directly or
indirectly therefrom.”

13) Article 7 shall be amended to read as follo

“ ALTERATIONS, ADDITIONS, IMPROVEMENTS - TheLESSEE shall not make any alterations, additions or improents
without the prior written consent of th&SSOR, which shall not be unreasonably withheld; Proglilewever, that all such alterations,
additions or improvements made by either partyrinpon the leased premises, except the movablé@dterand fixtures put in at the expens
the LESSEE and removable without defacing or inipgithe property of the LESSOR, shall remain upot lae surrendered with the premises
as part thereof upon termination of this lease suitttompensation to the LESSEE.”

14) The following shall be added at the end of tistparagraph of Article &

“In any eventlL ESSOR shall provide no fewer than 36 designated parkparss folLESSEE and shall not relocate those spaces wit
providing 30 days’ written notice and relocating gpaces to an area no less desirable than theabr@djocation. The ESSOR reserves the
option to endorse or assign the lease of slotshiré party car park management firm.”

15) The 1st paragraph of Article 9 shall be amendagéad as follows

“9. CARE OF THE LEASED PREMISES - TheLESSEE shall, at his expense, maintain the leased preriniseslean and sanitary
condition, free from noxious odors, disturbing ®si®r other nuisances and, upon the expiratioheofease, shall return the premises and
fixtures in as good condition as that in which thegre actually found at the beginning of the leasdinary wear and tear excepted. The
LESSEE shall not drive nails, screws, hooks or other alautis on or into the walls frames or other portiohthe premises outside the
ordinary course of business, including picturesiteldoards, presentation screens, etc. or in anyherateface or damage any part thereof. Any
damage caused by th&SSEE may be repaired by tHeESSOR for the account of theESSEE . TheLESSOR shall have the right to require
the LESSEE to remove any display or promotional matter, or displayed merchandise whitlESSOR reasonably and in good faith
considers to be improper or inappropriate for taeeyal appearance or presentation of the premises.

16) The last sentence of thedparagraph of Article 9 shall be amended to redolasvs:

“The LESSEE shall be responsible for the maintenance and rgpaire leased premises including plumbing andtetad fixtures within
the premises.”

17) The 5thparagraph of Article 9 shall be amended to rea@lasws:

“No machinery, office furniture, effects or otherugoment, whether owned or not owned by the LESS&#&y, be brought into or out of
the building without the prior written approvalthe LESSOR, which approval shall not be unreasonably withhElowever, in case the
LESSEE has any outstanding unsettled rent, duether charges, the LESSOR reserves the right ttheitl approval until such outstanding
amounts have been duly settled by the LES”



18) The 1stparagraph of Article 11 shall be amended as folic

“11. INSURANCE - The LESSEE shall, at its sole caistl expense, purchase, and during the entiredethis lease, keep and maintain
any and all installations and improvements on ksdded property insured against destruction or darby fire, earthquake, war and extended
coverage risks with a reputable insurance compargppropriate amounts as determined by LESSERtatmksurers, designating the LESSOR
as additional insured, the policy to be deliverethe LESSOR not later than thirty (30) days frém date of this Contract and will pay the
premiums thereon at the dates and places thaathe are payable to insure coverage. In case oblodamage, insurance proceeds shall be
used first for the purposes of restoration or retction of the improvements on the leased presrasel the LESSOR’s liability shall be
limited to such insurance proceeds except whelosor damage is due to the gross negligencdenrtional acts or omissions of LESSOR
employees, officers, agents and contractors. Ifpdeta loss or destruction shall occur during tts¢ year of the lease, the LESSOR shall have
the option to call for a renegotiation of the temfishis Contract. It shall also be the obligatafrthe LESSEE to secure, at its expense, during
the entire term of this lease, property insurarmestage over all equipment, furniture and other atde properties found inside the leased
premises, which copy of the insurance policy sbalfurnished the LESSOR not later than thirty @&ys from the date of this Contract.

19) Article 17 shall be amended as follov

“ABANDONMENT OF LEASED PREMISES - If the LESSEE dhabandon or vacate the premises or if the presrég®uld remain
unoccupied for a continuous period of exceedingyttine (31) days at any time during the term & tease and fails to pay the corresponding
rent, LESSOR may lease out the premises to othrepps or entities, and the LESSEE shall pay theogpjate Termination Privilege plus a
penalty equivalent to three (3) months’ rentaalindonment occurs prior to or on the 39th monthefease, in addition to the Termination
privilege, the LESSEE shall also be liable for tbet and charges through the 39th month. LESSE&blgegxpressly appoints LESSOR or its
duly authorized representative as attorney-in-faith full power and authority to padlock, breakeop if necessary, enter the premises,
inventory the LESSEE’s properties and have thenosiggd elsewhere. Furthermore, should LESSOR makdtten demand to LESSEE for
payment of unpaid rent, utilities, fees, dues atheérocharges and LESSEE not make payment aftéy {80) days, and should the Security
Deposit be insufficient to satisfy LESSEE's obligas to LESSOR for rent, utilities, fees, dues atiter charges, the LESSOR shall have the
right to retain any properties (such as but noitéchto furniture and equipment, but excluding thpsotected by intellectual property rights,)
that is owned outright by LESSEE as security ferpayment of LESSEE’'obligations under this Contract, which propertiesLESSOR may
as LESSEE'’s duly constituted attorney-in-fact, dspof and the proceeds thereof applied to satE§SEE’s unpaid obligations without
prejudice to any action as may be appropriateiferr¢écovery of any deficiency. Property found witttie leased premises which the LESSEE
does not own (i.e., is leased or financed) shalidted and certified by the LESSEE as such, whatlshall be attached to the Contract of Le
as Exhibit “B”, and the LESSEE shall present profbuch claim, and which shall be updated on amahipasis. In no event shall LESSOR
have any security interest in or right to take,, uskmate or sell any of those properties listetExhibit B”.

20) The following shall replace the second paragraphrti€le 23:

“The LESSOR will indemnify and hold harmless theSEEE from and against any and all claims or dembpdse LESSOR and third
persons for loss of life, injury, loss or damag@toperty resulting from any accident in the buigior occasioned by any nuisance made or
suffered in the building, or by any fire thereongoowing out of or occurring in, upon, or at thaded premises, by the occupancy or use of the
premises or any part thereof, whether wholly gpant, caused by any act or omission of the LESS@Rgents, contractors and employees, or
arising out of any accident on the premises ocoasidy any failure on the part of the LESSOR tontzan the building in a safe, sanitary or
secured condition or by reason of the LESSOR'satioh, non-observance, or non-performance of rutggjlations, ordinances, laws and the
condition of this agreement concerning or affectimg building or the improvements thereon. Theipagree that damage caused by or al
from the provision of electricity , water and/ohet utilities to the leased premises by third pattlty companies shall not be indemnified by
LESSOR.

21) Article 24 shall be amended to read as follo

“INJURY OR DAMAGE - The LESSEE hereby assumes full responsibility for damage which may be caused to the person oepy
of third persons while remaining either casuallyporbusiness in any part of the leased premises$uatigkr binds itself to hold the LESSOR
free and harmless from any such claim for injurglamage.

The LESSOR shall not be liable or responsible:

a) For the presence of bugs, vermin, ants, terroitesy other insects or pests in the leased pesntisused by the gross negligence of
LESSEE;

b) For any article delivered to or left with anyitsf employees



c¢) For any loss or losses that may be sufferedh&y. ESSEE, its agents or customers in the leasadipes occasioned by theft, robbery
or other crimes except as may be occasioned by geegligence or intentional acts or omissions c8EDR.

d) For any damage done or occasioned by, or arfsimg plumbing, gas, water and/or other kinds @i, or the bursting, leaking or
destruction of any cistern, tank, wash stand, welteset, waste pipe or drainage or downspout failoy above, upon or about said leased
premises, due to the acts or gross negligenceedfSSEE or his employees, or representatives.

If the Premises are damaged by casualty, LESSORmbaptly make the reasonably necessary repaidsRent shall equitably and
proportionally abate. If repairs cannot be subg&éntcompleted within ninety (90) days, LESSOR Ithatify LESSEE as soon as
practical and either party may terminate this Leaikin thirty (30) days of such notice. LESSOR Ihat repair/replace property of
LESSEE or others.

22) Article 25 shall be amended to read as follo

“EXTRAORDINARY INFLATION - In case an extra-ordingiinflation of the Philippine Peso should supervdogng the term of this
lease or its extensions or renewal, the value®tthrency at the time of the establishment obtbigation shall be the basis of payment as
provided for in Article 1250 of the New Civil Codd the Philippines. In case of such eventualiteg, tiESSOR shall have the option to adjust
the monthly rent accordingly. The term “extraordinaflation” shall be conclusively presumed to baupervened if the exchange rate of the
Philippine Peso to the US Dollar which is fixedP4t6.66 to the US$1.00 at the time of executiorisf €ontract should increase by more than
fifty percent (50%) of exchange rate of the PhiligppPeso to the US Dollar as determined by ther@eBank Reference Exchange Rate within
a six-month period. The LESSOR shall exercisedpison by giving written notice to the LESSEE oétbccurrence of the extraordinary
inflation coupled with the demand to pay the adjdsient on the succeeding calendar month afteiptezienotice, which in no case shall be
more than fifteen (15) days. If the LESSEE doesatgept the new monthly rent, the lease shall leendd automatically terminated upon the
effectivity of the new Monthly Rent.

23) The 2rdparagraph of Article 28 shall be amended to reddlasvs:

“If after due notice has been given to the LESSEfe cancellation of the lease, the latter fallsdmply with the written demand of the
LESSOR for the return to it of the possession efgitemises and the payment of the LESSEE’s acabiéghtions pursuant to the
provisions of this agreement within thirty (30) ddyom receipt of said written demand, or in therdthe LESSOR should exercise its
right to enforce its preferred lien on the persqraperties of the LESSEE existing on the leasedBes, or in the event of default or
breach by the LESSEE of any of the provisions Imeceintained and the LESSEE fails to remedy saiddtrevithin thirty (30) days from
receipt of the LESSOR'’s written demand, the LES®EEby empowers the LESSOR and/or its authorizegsentatives to open, enter,
occupy, padlock, secure, enclose, fence and/oouliswie public utilities and otherwise take fulldacomplete physical possession and
control of the leased premises without resortingdiart action subject to the provisions of Artidle of the General Terms and Conditic
as amended; to take inventory and possession dbwdraequipment, furniture, articles, merchandiggliances, etc. may be found
therein belonging to the LESSEE, unauthorized sidgle and/or other persons, as security for the gatyai the LESSEE’s obligation
under this Contract, and to place them in the LERS@arehouse for safekeeping, charging to the LEHS®e corresponding storage
fees therefor; and in case the LESSEE or other mthereof fail to claim said equipment, furnituaeticles, merchandise, appliances,
from storage and liquidate any liability to the LESR within a period of thirty (30) days from thei@af the LESSOR'’s taking
possession of the leased premises or of the LESSEe#Sonal properties, to dispose of said propgeapérties and to apply the proceeds
thereof to whatever liability and/or indebtednédss tESSEE may have to the LESSOR plus reasonapknsgs for the sale, including
storage fees, without any prejudice to any act®mmay be appropriate for the recovery of any deficy. For purposes of this provision
and other pertinent provisions of this Contraat, tiESSEE hereby constitutes the LESSOR and it®eréu representatives as the
LESSEE's attorneys-in-fact, and all acts perforagdhem in the exercise of their authority are bgreonfirmed. The LESSEE hereby
expressly agrees that any or all acts performetthdy. ESSOR, its authorized agents, employees anepoesentatives under the
provisions of this Article may not be the subjetany petition for a Writ of Preliminary Injuncticor Mandatory Injunction in court.

24) The last paragraph of Article 28 shall be amendagad:
“Each party or its representative certifies thashe has read or caused to be read to him/herdvésipns of the foregoing Contract,

receipt of a signed copy of which is hereby expyessknowledged by that party or its representatind that he/she has fully understood the
same’



25) Article 29 shall be amended to read as follows:
29. DEFAULT

a) In the event that either party has not perforaredbligation under the lease, this Contract bewotules or regulations, it shall have
thirty (30) days after receipt of written noticerin the non-defaulting party to cure the breach shall be deemed to be in default. The non-
defaulting party shall have the option to termirthie lease, seek legal relief or all of the above.

In the case of Imperative Services under Exhibib Ahe Lease and described above, the cure peraltise 72 hours or the LESSOR
shall be in default and subject to termination withpenalty or to the procurement of replacemenices at LESSOR's sole expense.

b) In the event that LESSEE should default in paynoé his monthly rentals after the last calenday df the month to which the rent
pertains, as well as payment of interests, pesalties, charges and any other monetary obligatitthén the period provided herein, the
LESSOR, without prejudice to all other remediethis Contract, shall give the LESSEE ten (10) days the last calendar day of the month
to which the rent pertains to cure the breach. &iger, without the LESSEE being able to cure bagédch, the LESSOR shall be authorized to
padlock, close and take immediate possession dé#sed premises, and after due notice, the LES®EEby constitutes the LESSOR his
attorney-in-fact to sell all the properties of tHESSEE within the premises, which proceeds wilapgplied to all the outstanding obligations to
the LESSOR;

c) In the fulfillment of obligations contained ini$ Contract which involve the performance of ahaaonstruction of a certain work or
an obligation to do and not to do, the LESSEE mag or remedy any breach or failure to comply witthiirty (30) days from such breach.

In the event of default or breach of any of theditians of this Contract and after the lapse ofgieeod specified in this section, or
(i) even without such breach or default, if the ISE abandons the premises and the improvemeneothesr (i) in case of noroperation fol
a period of one (1) month from commencement datkout payment of rent, the LESSOR may, at its aliealiscretion, declare this Contract
canceled or terminated, without resorting to cawtton, and require the LESSEE to vacate the pesnBROVIDED, however, that in case of
non-operation, abandonment or illegal detainer outtprejudice to the payment of penalty for sutdg#l detainer, the LESSEE hereby
expressly authorizes LESSOR as its duly authorgtminey-in-fact with full power and authority tagock, break open if necessary and enter
into and take possession of the premises for tbiegtion of its interest therein and any actioretakr done therein by the LESSOR, its
representatives and agents, shall not be a causaydegal action, be it civil or criminal, by th&SSEE. Delay in recovery of possession shall
not be deemed as a waiver of the right of the LER$&@recover possession of the premises.

If the LESSEE shall be dissolved, become bankioptlvent or make an assignment for the benefiredlitors of all or substantially all
of its assets or file any proceeding seeking aagjtestment, arrangement, postponement or condonaticeduction of LESSEE's debts,
liabilities, or obligations, the LESSOR, at itsesalption, may terminate this lease or require tBE&EE to deposit, within ten (10) days after
receipt of written notice, six (6) months’ Rentaaklitional Security Deposit plus the amount eq@rato the six (6) months utility charges and
management dues. In the latter case, if the LES&HEE0 comply with its obligation to give additial Security Deposit and the amount
equivalent to six (6) months utility charges anchagement dues on such date specified by the LESB@RESSOR shall immediately
terminate this lease without need of any noticenéoLESSEE and the LESSEE shall be subject to payofehe termination privilege fee for
the appropriate months in which the terminationuoscas set forth in the lease, and such otheridmgbarges. No penalty shall be charged in
addition

If LESSOR shall default in the observance of amgnt{ecovenant or condition hereof and fail to remedgommence to remedy (and
diligently pursue until completion) such defaulthin thirty (30) days after receipt of notice fratBRSSEE, LESSEE may, but shall not be
obligated, to cure such default and to deduct gstscand expenses thereof from the Rent due hezguntdess such failure cannot with due
diligence be cured within a period of thirty (3@yd, in which case, such failure shall not be dekandefault hereunder if LESSOR proceeds
promptly and with due diligence to cure such faland diligently completes the curing thereof withireasonable time. Should LESSOR
breach any of the Imperative Service Levels unlisriease and fails to cure such breach withindi&r4y at LESSEE’s option, LESSEE may
immediately terminate this Lease without additionlaligation other than for damage to the premisesed forth above, or obtain replacement
services at LESSOR’s sole expense.

Default shall automatically take place upon th&ufai of the defaulting party to pay or perform ariyts obligations during the time fixed
herein for the payment or performance of such alilign without necessity of demand or, if no timéxed, after ten (10) days from receipt of
notice or demand from the LESSOR. So that in trentthat the defaulting party has not performedatsesponding obligation under the
Contract or other rules and regulations withingleeod specified herein, and thus became in deféndtnon-defaulting part shall have the
option to terminate this lease, in addition to thmedies afforded to the non-defaulting party uiderContract. For purposes of default where
demand or notice is required of the non-defauliagy, the parties hereby expressly agree that@atildressed to the defaulting party
delivered at its office in the leased premisestdh@ address stated in this Contract shall beidered as sufficient compliance of the
requirement of notice or demar



The acceptance by the LESSOR of arrears in rethteopenalty for late payment, or extensions of payinshall not by itself be deemed a
waiver by the LESSOR of any breach by the LESSE&ngfcovenant or condition contained in this Carttraikewise, the acceptance of
payment or performance of one or more obligationthe defaulting party shall not be deemed a wdyethe non-defaulting party of any
breach by the defaulting party of any other covéwamronditions contained herein. Silence on the githe non-defaulting party shall not also
be considered as condonation or waiver of any breaclefault by the defaulting party of any cover@ncondition of this Contract.

No waiver by the non-defaulting party of any ofrights under this Contract shall be deemed to h@em made unless expressed in
writing and signed by the non-defaulting party.

In case of cancellation or termination of this Gant due to default or breach of its terms, thewdkihg party shall pay all reasonable
attorney’s fees, costs and expenses of litigatian may be incurred by the ndefaulting party in enforcing its rights under tRisntract or an
of its provisions, as well as in the collectionadifunpaid rents, fees, charges, taxes, assessamhteimbursements which the non-defaulting
party may be entitled to.”

26) The following shall be added to Article &
“33. OTHER PROVISIONS
a. no change
b. no change
c. no change

d. Mutual Indemnification. LESSEE shall indemnifiefend and hold harmless (“Indemnify”) LESSOR fralinthird-party claims,
liability or costs due to the default, work, groegyligence, acts or omissions of LESSEE, its agemployees or visitors. Likewise, LESSOR
shall Indemnify LESSEE from all third-party claimigbility or costs due to the default, work, oogs negligence, acts or omissions of
LESSOR, its agents, employees or visitors.

e. The LESSOR undertakes to provide the LESSEE bpglower supply through generator set in the ewépbwer interruption. Subje
to force majeure, in case the LESSOR fails to plehe LESSEE back up power supply for a contingauid of three (3) days from the tir
the power interruption occurred, the LESSEE shalébtitled to terminate this lea”



Exhibit A

ROBINSONS CYBERGATE PLAZA
CUSA COVERAGE

ITEM NO. PARTICULARS
l. POWER, LIGHT & WATER

Il. MANAGEMENT FEES
Il CONTRACTED SERVICES
Security Service

Janitorial Services

Receptionis
Technicians
Pest Contro
Garbage Haulin
V. POSTAGE/TELEPHONE/MAILS

V. INSURANCE

VI. REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
PM Supplies & Stock
Electrical
Mechanical
Plumbing/Civil
Electrical PM
Busduct Retightening/Scanni
Switch Gear/ Substatic
Synchronization Pane
BMS Maintenanct
FDAS Maintenance

Mechanical PV
Elevator Maintenanc
Aircon - VRV System
Genset Parts & Fui

INCLUSIONS

Covers Power and water of common areas such asgagcround, floor lobbies, equipme
rooms, perimeter lighting, et

Covers building Administration sta
3rd party contractors hired by RL
Covers officers/duty guarc

Covers regular cleaning of common areas such dsdspelevators, common toilets,
parking areas, fire exits, e!

Covers receptionist,

Covers Operations and PM technicii
Pest control on common are

Daily garbage collection by service provic

Building administrative expense like office teleplaservice and cellphones, mailing
billings etc.

Yearly Fire Insurance and General Public Liabilitgurance

Incidental items used by Operations Techniciarefectrical use
Incidental items used by Operations TechniciarMechanical us:

Incidental items used by Operations Techniciarpfombing and civil use

Done annually usually during Holy We
Done annually usually during Holy We
Done annually usually during Holy We
Quarterly Preventive Maintenance of Building Managat

System(BMS) Quarterly Preventive Maintenance of Eietection and Alarm System
(FDAS)

Monthly preventive maintenance work by Service Cactbr
Quarterly cleaning of aircon units at Office Ur

Incidental items for replacement and regular smfdRiesel Fuel for Genset



Elevator Parts Contingenci Stock parts for replacement of defective p

Aircon Parts Contingencie Stock parts for replacement of defective p
Fire Pump Syster Annual preventive maintenance work of Fire Pumpt&w
Other PM
Window Cleaninc Every other yea
STP Water Analysi Test water samples as required by DE
Chemicals for STP /Lubricants Covers expenses on chlorines, caustic sodas aridduots of Sewerage Treatment Plant
(STP)
Cistern & Elevated Tank Cleanit Done twice a yee
Other Parts Contingenci Covers others not included in the above expe
VII. SUPPLIES Office supplies of Building Administratio
VIII. REPRESENTATION Includes representation expenses for such actvilie Annual Fire Drills, Bomb Thre:
drills and other expenses related with Governmegenties
IX. TRAVEL & TRANSPORTATION Covers transportation expense by staff in relatiotheir functions
X. MISCELLANEOUS Cover expenses related to staff including trainisgd seminar
XI. CONTIGENCIES Provides additional budget for repair and replaggréincidental items not covered in

detailed budge

Note: In a single tenancy office floor wherein thaant is given by BUILDING MANAGEMENT an exclusivght to the common comfo
rooms, lobbies and hallways on the floor, the teésaall be fully responsible for the maintenandeasing and sanitation of the said areas.

IMPERATIVE SERVICES

Throughout the Lease Period, Lessor shall providauigh a third party property management firm priypeained engineering/operational
support employees (the “Building Management Teantip will be available 24 hours a day. The BuildMignagement Team will be located
either at the building; provided that if the BuildiManagement Team (or any portion of the teamptdocated at the building, Lessor shall
its best efforts to provide the Building Managem&eam with such communication and back-up supgis aecessary to ensure a response
time of approximately 15 minutes or less, subjedbtce majeure events. The Building Managemennisiaall be trained with regard to the
general operation of the building including Lessdryack-up power systems (including operation of@hlerators and related systems), A/C
systems, life safety and security systems andntteeaction of such systems with Lessee’s interystiesns. The Building Management Team
shall establish and maintain an escalation coflisidbr engineering and operational issues whighrot be addressed by the team within
prescribed time periods and such contact list dielvailable to the Building Management Team aggkke at all times. The Building
Management Team shall be available to assist Legglke@®ccupancy issues that arise after Regulaic®fflours and holidays (such as, but not
limited to, maintenance trouble-shooting, back-op/er operations, life safety and alarm systemsyrigcetc.).



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ifdllewing Registration Statements:

1)
2)

3)
(4)

Registration Statement (Form S-8 3B38179) pertaining to the 2007 Omnibus IncentianRInd the 2006 Equity Incentive Plar
U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc

Registration Statement (Form S-8 333-149978ppeng to 2007 New Employee Incentive Plan arel2807 Omnibus Incentive
Plan of U.S. Auto Parts Network, In

Registration Statement (Forn-8 33:-158224) pertaining to the 2007 Omnibus IncentianRIf U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc., a

Registration Statement (Forn-3/A 332-163811) pertaining to the Prospectus of U.S. AwdsPNetwork, Inc. for the registration
2,500,000 shares of its common stc

of our report dated March 12, 2010, with respe¢h&oconsolidated financial statements of U.S. ARdots Network, Inc. included in this
Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended Jan@2a2010.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 12, 2010



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT
RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Shane Evangelist, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fK.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or donditate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(H and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financédarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision to provide reasonable assersegarding the reliability of financial reportiagd the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles; and

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitigt occurred during the registrast’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s Board of Direct¢os persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2010

/sl SHANE EVANGELIST
Shane Evangelit

Chief Executive Office
(principal executive officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT
RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Theodore Sanders, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fK.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or donditate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(H and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financédarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision to provide reasonable assersegarding the reliability of financial reportiagd the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles; and

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitigt occurred during the registrast’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s Board of Direct¢os persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2010

/sl THEODORE SANDERS
Theodore Sande

Chief Financial Office
(principal financial officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of U.S. Autar® Network, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K tbe fiscal year ended
January 2, 2010, as filed with the Securities anchBnge Commission on the date hereof (the “RepdrtShane Evangelist, Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 IL.S81350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906eobthbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdititon and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 12, 2010

/sl SHANE EVANGELIST
Shane Evangelis
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of U.S. Autar® Network, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K tbe fiscal year ended
January 2, 2010 as filed with the Securities anchBrge Commission on the date hereof (the “Repdrthheodore Sanders, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 L. S81350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906eob#hbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 12, 2010
/sl THEODORE SANDER!

Theodore Sande
Chief Financial Office




